T . The Corporation of the Township of Nipissing
1\?}”1’;51 é—fg‘-’{NG 45 Beatty Street

- Nipissing ON POH 1W0
"Life the way it should bc™ a8 Telephone 705-724-2144 Fax 705-724-5385

www.nipissingtownship.com

AMENDED

Tuesday, February 20, 2024
**START TIME 6:30 p.m.**

1. Disclosure of pecuniary interest.
2. Committee Reports.
3. Resolution: Adopt the minutes of the meeting held February 6, 2023.

4. Resolution: Approve in principle the Application to Purchase Shore Road Allowance in
front of Broken Lot 11, Concession 19 — Duggan.

5. Resolution: Approve in principle the Application to Purchase Shore Road Allowance in
front of Concession 15, Pt Lot 13 — Lamka.

6. Resolution: Approve emergency purchase of furnace for Fire Station #1.

7. By-Law: Amend 2022-34 Procedure By-Law; 4.6 to remove reference to newspaper
and update reference to Public Notice By-Law.

8. By-Law: Amend 2021-50 Parking By-Law; updates to remove an emergency loading
zone, amend parking restrictions along Birchgrove Drive, Rocky Shore Drive and
Sunset Cove Road to extend for public safety.

9. By-law: Amend 2019-41 Road Status and Maintenance By-Law; updates to procedures
and hardware/software in use.

10.Correspondence.
11.Accounts to pay.
12.Closed Session:
S. 239(2)(a) the security of the property of the municipality
Purpose: Council to review information regarding an investigation into a
complaint of land uses not compatible with current zoning.

13.By-Law: Confirming Proceedings of Council at its meeting held February 20, 2024.

14. Adjournment.

Council meetings will be held in person at 2381 Highway 654, Township of Nipissing Community
Centre and virtually utilizing the Zoom platform; and will be livestreamed to the Township of Nipissing
YouTube channel.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2XSMZqRNHbwVppelfKcEXw



The Corporation of the Township of Nipissing

RAFIZeING s sy o
Nipissing ON POH 1W0

Telephone 705-724-2144 Fax 705-724-5385
www.nipissingtownship.com

“Life the way it should be” _'*;333?'.;

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Council will be considering amendments to the following by-Laws at the February 20, 2024 regular
Council meeting.

By-Law Number 2022-34, The Procedural By-Law
From:
4.6  Council may, by Resolution, alter the date and/or time of a reguiar meeting provided that

adequate notlce of the change is aested—en—ﬂae#ewnshaﬁ—websﬁe—m—pmt—en—the#emm-efﬁee

4, 6 Council may, by Resolution, alter the date and/or time of a regular meeting provided that
adequate notice of the change is advertised in accordance with the Township’s Public Notice By-Law.

Purpose for amendment:
Update the notice requirement to match current notice by-law.

By-Law Number 2021-50 to regulate parking of vehicles

From:

2.3(6) BirehgreveReoad-{Party Rock™:

2.5 Birchgrove Read CParby-Reek™) at lot provided, corner of Rocky Shore Drive.
7.6 “hisfher”

Schedule A, 1. Y

- -
Illustration 1. Emergency Loading Zone.

To:

2.3(6) Remove entirely.

2.5 Birchgrove Drive at lot provided, corner of Rocky Shore Drive.

7.6 “their”

Schedule A, 1. Remove entirely. Re-arrange numbering accordingly below.

Illustration 1. Extend no parking area along Birchgrove Drive up to Muskeg Road intersection; Rocky
Shore Drive up to Pike Bay Road intersection and Sunset Cove Road up to Jones Road intersection, to
accommodate curves and increase road safety.

Remove Emergency Loading Zone (located on private property).

Purpose for amendments:
Update the by-law to capture changes in property boundaries and safety concerns.

By-Law Number 2019-41 Road Status and Maintenance By-Law

From:

2.4 a. Posting on the Township website, notice page.

2.4 b. Circulation of the notice to the following local radio stations.

Schedule C, Winter Seasons — Shall start November 15* of each year and ends April 15* of the
following year. Winter crews shail be on call between these months.

Schedule D Winter Patrol Procedures

e Patrol rotation shall start on Sunday and finish on Saturday each week.

e Patroller on duty shall start patrol at 3 am each day,

e Point #9 - Patrol Sheets (3 instances).

» Operations Superintendent will print out Weather Report each morning.

To:

2.4 a. Posting on the Township website, social media pages in use and CodeRed.

2.4 b. Remove entirely. Correcting remaining items in list numerically as required.

Schedule C, Winter Seasons — add in “Patrol may be suspended or re-scheduled in accordance with
weather requirements by the Operations Superintendent.”

Schedule D Winter Patrol Procedures

o Patrol rotation shall start on Thursday and finish on Wednesday each week.

o Patroller on duty shall start patrol at or before 4 am in response to weather conditions. The
Operations Superintendent or designate may aiter patrol start times at their discretion
dependent on weather conditions, current and anticipated.

Point #9 - Tablet (3 instances).

o Weather conditions will be completed each day by entering information into tablet, weather

application in use. To be completed by Patroller on duty.

Purpose for amendments:
Update the by-law to capture changes in procedures and hardware/software in use.

Please forward any questions or comments to admin@nipissingtownship.com.
Kris Croskery-Hodgins
Municipal Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer Date: February 13, 2024



MINUTES

TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
Tuesday, February 6, 2024

A regular meeting of the Township of Nipissing Council was held on Tuesday, February 6, 2024
starting at 6:30 p.m.

The meeting was held in person at the Township of Nipissing Community Centre, and livestreamed to
the Township of Nipissing YouTube Channel.

Present: Mayor Tom Piper and Councillors Tom Butler, Stephen Kirkey, Shelly Foote and Dave
Yemm.

Staff: Operations Superintendent Dan Maclnnis; Office Assistant-Intern Kim Turnbull; Land Planning
and Technology Administrator-Deputy Treasurer John-Paul Negrinotti; Fire Chief-MLEO-CEMC Wiill
Bateman and Municipal Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer Kris Croskery-Hodgins.

Disclosure of pecuniary interest: None.

Committee Reports:
Councillor Shelly Foote: Township of Nipissing Recreation Committee

Councillor Stephen Kirkey: North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority Source Water Protection
Committee

Mayor Tom Piper: Eastholme Home for the Aged Board of Management

R2024-027 T. Butler, D. Yemm:
That the minutes of the Council Meeting held January 16, 2024 be adopted as published. Carried.

R2024-028 S. Kirkey, S. Foote:

THAT we pass By-Law Number 2024-07, being a By-Law to prescribe the form and manner for the
provision of public notice under the Municipal Act, 2001.
Read a first, second and third time and passed this 6t day of February, 2024. Carried.

R2024-029 S. Foote, D. Yemm:

THAT we pass By-Law Number 2024-08, being a By-Law to appoint a Building Inspector for the
purpose of the enforcement of the Building Code Act, its regulations and the Building By-Law for the
Corporation of the Township of Nipissing.

Read a first, second and third time and passed this 6™ day of February, 2024. Carried.

R2024-030 S. Kirkey, T. Butler:
THAT we renew the Agreement for Integrity Commissioner services with Harold Elston, per the

Agreement in place under By-Law Number 2019-11, for a period of 2 years ending November 1, 2025.
Carried.

R2024-031 D. Yemm, S. Foote:

THAT we accept the resignation of Lauren Stillar from the Township of Nipissing Recreation
Committee. Carried.



Minutes — February 6, 2024 — Page 2

R2024-032 T. Butler, S. Kirkey:
WHEREAS municipal public works departments from across the Province of Ontario provide invaluable
services to our communities ensuring the health and safety of all residents;

AND WHEREAS if it was not for our municipal public works employees from across the Province of
Ontario maintaining our public roads systems, our communities would not be able to function as
emergency personnel could not respond to calls, school buses could not get our children to school.
Residents would not be able to get to work, school or appointments and many more basic functions
would not be able to happen;

AND WHEREAS municipal public works departments are already feeling the impacts of a labour
shortage, which will only be exasperated over the next three to five years, which will cause levels of
service municipalities are able to provide to ensure the health and safety of our residents to decrease;

AND WHEREAS there is currently no provincial-wide course that properly trains potential municipal
public works employees, specifically relating to municipal heavy equipment.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Nipissing supports the work of the Association of
Ontario Road Supervisors to develop a Municipal Equipment Operator Course to address this issue;

AND THAT we request the Province of Ontario’s Ministry of Labour, Training, Immigration and Skilled
Trades to fully fund the Municipal Equipment Operator Course in 2024 through the Skills Development
Fund;

AND THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to Minister David Piccini, MPP Vic Fedeli and the
Association of Ontario Road Supervisors. Carried.

R2024-033 T. Butler, S. Kirkey:
That we accept the correspondence as presented. Carried.

R2024-034 D. Yemm, S. Foote:
That the statement of accounts dated: January 20, 25, 30, and February 1, 2024; totaling
$174,658.62 be approved. Carried.

R2024-035 S. Foote, T. Butler:
That this part of our meeting will be closed to the public as authorized by Section 239(2)(a) and (b) of
the Municipal Act, 2001, c. 25, for consideration of the following subject matter:
(a) The security of the property of the municipality or local board;
Council to discuss options regarding a complaint of land uses not compatible with current
zoning.
(b) Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees.
Council to receive requested information on municipal staff matters.
Time: 7:01 p.m. Carried.
Staff members John-Paul Negrinotti and Kim Turnbull left the meeting.

R2024-036 S. Kirkey, T. Butler:
That we resume to an open public meeting. Time: 7:51 p.m. Carried.



Minutes — February 6, 2024 — Page 3

R2024-037 T. Butler, S. Foote:

That we pass By-Law No. 2024-09, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council at its
meeting held on February 6, 2024.

Read a first, second and third time and passed this 6™ day of February. Carried.

R2024-038 S. Foote, D. Yemm:
That the meeting be adjourned. Time: 7:52 p.m. Next regular meeting to be held February 20, 2024.
Carried.

Mayor:

Municipal Administrator:

Minutes prepared as per Section 228 (1){a} of the Municipal Act, $.0. 2001, c. 25.
Clerk to record, without note or comment, all resolutions, decisions and other proceedings of the council.
Minutes to be approved by Council at the next regular Council Meeting.



Township of

NIPISSTNé TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING

“Life the way it should be" :‘%ﬁ;@‘, RESOLUTION
DATE: February 20, 2024

NUMBER: R2024-

DRAFT

Seconded by i

BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That this Council does approve "in principle” the Application of Andrea Dickinson
and Tracy Duggan, to purchase the Shore Road Allowance located in front of
Broken Lot 11, Concession 19, Township of Nipissing.

2. That this resolution is subject to the following conditions:

¢ The Council shall select an independent firm specializing in land surveying
to complete a Peer Review of the survey work completed in relation to
Reference Plan 42R-21838 submitted by the applicant for this application
to confirm the location of the shore road allowance.

Following confirmation of the shore road allowance location, the following
studies will be procured:

¢ The Council shall select an independent search firm specializing in fishery
issues and environmental issues to complete an independent investigation
and report to determine the geographic limits where development couid
occur and to ensure compliance to the Provincial Policy Statement.

« The Council shall select an independent search firm specializing in
Archaeological Studies to complete an independent investigation,
Archaeological Assessment, Stage II, per consultation with Dokis First
Nation.

e That the applicant will be responsible for the payment of all the
Municipality’s administrative, legal accounts and Environmental Impact
Study, Archaeological Assessment, and Peer Review of Survey work costs
in connection with the processing of this application.

o That in accordance with the Municipality’s policy, notice and a copy of the
draft plan will be mailed to the adjacent owners.

For Against

PIPER
BUTLER
FOOTE
KIRKEY
YEMM

Carried

Mayor: Tom Piper



Tosnshiip of NG

NIPISSING TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING

“Life the way it should be" .“‘*:;?;;".‘, RESOLUTION
DATE: February 20, 2024
NUMBER:  R2024- D RAF I |
Moved by }

:
.

Seconded by

BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That this Council does approve “in principle” the Application of Shardell Lamka,
to purchase the Shore Road Allowance located in front of Concession 15 PT Lot
13 PCL 7580 N/S, Township of Nipissing.

2. That this resolution is subject to the following conditions:

s The Council shall select an independent search firm specializing in fishery
issues and environmental issues to complete an independent investigation
and report to determine the geographic limits where development could
occur and to ensure compliance to the Provincial Policy Statement.

¢ That the applicant will be responsible for the payment of all the
Municipality’s administrative, legal accounts and Environmental Impact
Study costs in connection with the processing of this application.

e That in accordance with the Municipality’s policy, notice and a copy of the
draft plan will be mailed to the adjacent owners.

For Against

PIPER
BUTLER
FOOTE
KIRKEY
YEMM

Carried

Mayor: Tom Piper



Township of

NIPISSING TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
"Ljfe the wityy it should be” :’“;ﬁg”% RESOLU-I-ION
DATE: February 20, 2024

NUMBER:  R2024-
Moved by
Seconded by

WHEREAS the furnace at Fire Station #1 stopped working and was not able to be
repaired;

AND WHEREAS three quotes were obtained prior to the emergency replacement was
ordered;

NOW THEREFORE we approve the purchase of a new furnace for Station #1 from
Hartfell Heating for a cost of $4,300.00 plus applicable taxes.

For Against

PIPER
BUTLER
FOOTE
KIRKEY
YEMM

Carried

Mayor: Tom Piper



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
BY-LAW NUMBER 2024-10

Being a by-law to Amend By-Law Number 2022-34, cited as the “Procedural By-Law” to update the
public notice guidelines for meetings.

WHEREAS the Township of Nipissing Council passed By-Law Number 2022-34, the Procedural By-
Law, to establish rules governing the proceedings of Council, the calling of meetings and the
conduct of Members pursuant to Section 238 of the Municipal Act, 2001;

AND WHEREAS changes to the Public Notice By-Law have been made to represent changes in
media circulation;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Nipissing amends By-Law
Number 2022-34 to the following:

4.6  Council may, by Resolution, alter the date and/or time of a regular meeting provided that
adequate notice of the change is provided in accordance with the Township’s Public Notice By-
Law.

Effective Date:
That this By-law shall come into force and effect immediately on the passing thereof.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 20™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024,

THE CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING

D RAF | Tom Piper, Mayor:

Kris Croskery-Hodgins,
Municipal Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer:



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
BY-LAW NUMBER 2024-11

Being a by-law to Amend By-Law Number 2021-50, to regulate the parking of vehicles within the
Corporation of the Township of Nipissing.

WHEREAS the Township of Nipissing Council passed 8y-Law Number 2021-50, the Parking By-Law,
to establish rules to regulate the parking of vehicles;

AND WHEREAS changes to property boundaries and parking restrictions are required;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Nipissing amends By-Law
Number 2024-11 for the following:

2.3(6) Remove.
2.5 Remove (“Party Rock”).
7.6 Remove “his/her” replace with “their”.

Schedule A, 1. Remove “Unopened Road Allowance between Concession 18 and 19, Lot 11 and the
abutting Shore Road Allowance — designated as an Emergency Loading Zone, no parking at any
time. Update to lllustration 1 as required.

Schedule A, 3. Change to “Birchgrove Drive up to intersection with Lakeview Drive; Rocky Shore
Drive up to intersection with Pike Bay Road and Sunset Cove Road up to intersection with Sandy
Bay Road — No parking on roadway. (Reference lllustration 1).

Scheduie A, 10. Remove entirely — now included in 3.

IHustration 1, update to restrict parking along both sides of the road along Birchgrove Drive up to
the intersection with Lakeview Drive; Rocky Shore Drive up to the intersection with Pike Bay Road
and Sunset Cove Road up to the intersection with Sandy Bay Road.

lustration 8, remove illustration.

Effective Date:
That this By-law shall come into force and effect immediately on the passing thereof,

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 20™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.

THE CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING

Tom Piper, Mayor:

|
] Kris Croskery-Hodgins,

e S S - Municipal Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer:



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
BY-LAW NUMBER 2024-12

Being a by-law to Amend By-Law Number 2019-41, cited as the Township of Nipissing Road Status
and Maintenance By-Law.

WHEREAS the Township of Nipissing Council passed By-Law Number 2019-41, the Road Status and
Maintenance By-Law to adopt Minimum Maintenance Standards for Municipal Highways in the
Township of Nipissing;

AND WHEREAS changes to procedures, equipment and programs used are required;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Nipissing amends By-Law
Number 2019-41 for the following:

2.4(a) Posting on the Township website, social media pages in use and CodeRed.

2.4(b) Delete.

Schedule C, Winter Seasons — To be added after “Winter crews shall be on call between these

months.”:
Patrol may be suspended or re-scheduled in accordance with weather requirements by the

Operations Superintendent or designate.
Schedule D, Winter Patrol Procedures:
Point #3 — change to “Patrol rotation shall start on Thursday and finish on Wednesday each week.”

Point #6 — change to “Patroller on duty shall start patrol at or before 4 am in response to weather
conditions. The Operations Superintendent or designate may alter patrol start times at their
discretion dependent on weather conditions, current and anticipated. *In the event of a winter
weather event requiring winter maintenance operations, working hours may be extended past the
scheduled shift as needed.”

Point #9 — Replace three (3) instances of “Patrol Sheets” with “Patrol Tablet”.

Point #13 — change to “Weather conditions will be completed each day by entering information
into Patrol Tablet using the weather app in use. To be completed by the Patroller on duty.”

Effective Date:
That this By-law shall come into force and effect immediately on the passing thereof.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 20™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024.

THE CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING

Tom Piper, Mayor:

DRAFT

Kris Croskery-Hodgins,
Municipal Administrator-Clerk-Treasurer:



]

;T;P{Sm_ — TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
“Lie e sy i o e C ORRE SPONDENC E
February 20, 2024

1. Minutes of the Township of Nipissing Cemetery Committee Meeting held
February 14, 2024.

2. Minutes of the Township of Nipissing Recreation Committee meeting held
February 5, 2024.

3. Minutes of the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit board of Health
meeting held November 29, 2023.

4, Resolution from the Municipality of Calvin regarding wildland firefighting strategy
and fleet management.

5. Letter from OPP Superintendent Phil Whitton regarding the change to the
Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019.

6. Letter from the Ministry of Northern Development regarding modernization of the
Northern Services Boards Act (NSBA).

7. District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board (DSSAB) Chief
Administrative Officer’s Report for January 2024 and February 2024.

8. Letter from the Lions Club of Powassan thanking Council for the 2023 donation.

9. Support request from the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM)
regarding support for a comprehensive social and economic property review.

10.Resolution from the County of Prince Edward regarding the life span of fire
apparatus.






MINUTES

Township of Nipissing Cemetery Committee
February 14, 2024

The Nipissing Township Cemetery Committee met on Wednesday, February 14, 2024.
The meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m.

Present: Councillor Tom Buter, Councilior Dave Yemm, James Scott, Tom Marchant,
Dan Maclnnis Operations Superintendent, and Kris Croskery-Hodgins Municipal
Administrator

Regrets: Brett Macdonald
Pecuniary Interest: None.

MOTION NUMBER C2024-01
Moved by: Dave Yemm Seconded by: James Scott

THAT we appoint Tom Butler as Chairperson for the Cemetery Committee for 2024.
Carried.

MOTION NUMBER C2024-02

Moved by: Dave Yemm Seconded by: James Scott

That we adopt the Minutes of the Cemetery Committee meeting held July 11, 2022, as
circulated. Carried.

Cemetery Strategic Planning:

Nipissing Union Cemetery
- Fencing along Hwy 654 to restrict vehicular access.
- Seek public input regarding interest in a columbarium for this cemetery.
- Investigate a second designated cremation section.

St. John's Alsace Cemetery
- Investigate an expansion on the remaining property - $10,000 designated in
budget for survey costs, licensing expansion.

Commanda Union Cemetery
- Investigate a designated cremation section.

Review of By-Law 2022-38, rules and regulations governing cemeteries in the Township
of Nipissing. No changes requested.

2024 Proposed Budget was reviewed.

(

)



Cemetery Committee Minutes — February 14, 2024 — Page 2

MOTION NUMBER C2024-03
Moved by: Tom Marchant Seconded by: Dave Yemm

That we approve the proposed 2024 Cemetery operating budget, as presented.
Carried.

MOTION NUMBER C2024-04
Moved by: Dave Yemm Seconded by: James Scott

That the meeting be adjourned at 11:18 am. Carried.

Chairperson:

Secretary:

Minutes prepared as per Section 228 (1)}(a) of the Municipal Act, 5.0. 2001, c. 25.
Clerk to record, without note or comment, all resolutions, decisions and other proceedings of the council,

Minutes to be approved by the Board at the next scheduled Board Meeting.



Recreation Committee Minutes
February 5, 2024

MINUTES

Township of Nipissing Recreation Committee
February 5, 2024

A meeting of the Township of Nipissing Recreation Committee was held on Monday,
February 5, 2024 starting at 6:32 p.m.

The meeting was held in person at the Township of Nipissing Community Centre, and
livestreamed to the Township of Nipissing YouTube Channel.

Present: Kathy Shaw - Chair, Mayor Tom Piper, Councillor Shelly Foote, Lisa
Chalapenko-Carmody, Margaret Hughes, Terri-Lynn Paynter, Ron Phillips and James
Scott

Staff: Will Bateman, Fire Chief, CEMC, Municipal By-law Officer and Kim Turnbull
Regrets: Andrew Barry and Lauren Stillar

Disclosure of pecuniary interest: None.

MOTION NUMBER 2024-06

Moved by: Mayor Tom Piper Seconded by: James Scott

THAT the Minutes of the January 15, 2024 Recreation Meeting are approved as
circulated. Carried

Discussion:
a) Bottle Drive: Bottles were collected on Friday and Sunday for the month of
January 2024
- Bear Creek Landfill - $155.60
- Wolfe Lake Landfill - $95.30

b) Chair Yoga:

- Marg provided an update to the first 2 weeks of the program. On January
29" the class had 22 participants and on February 5% — 20 participants with
new participants at the February 5t class.

- There is no cost to participate in the program however, food and money
donations to the 2 local food banks are appreciated and welcomed.

- To date there has been 48 Ibs of food collected. The money is in a sealed
container and will be opened at the end of the 10 weeks and will be split
evenly between the Powassan and Callander food banks.

- The food collected to date will be donated to the Powassan food bank and in
2 weeks the food will be donated to the Callander food bank. Kim Charters,
the instructor has offered to help with the drop off of the food bank
donations.



Recreation Committee Minutes
February 5, 2024

c) Famaly Day Event, February 18, 2024:

Event to run 5:30 p.m. 7:30 p.m. However, the event will be weather
dependent, for the ice rink to be available.

- Colder temperatures are predicted to come, weather will be monitored as it
gets closer to the event.

- D] has been booked and confirmed for the event and is being donated.
There will be no cost to the Recreation Committee.

- Fireworks to be set off at 7:00 p.m.

- Hot chocolate to be provided.

- Fit pits for the event, James to provide the wood.

d) Teen Dances:
- First dance planned for February 23, 2024 has been cancelled due to a lack
of DJ.
- Investigating other options for DJ’s for the future Teen Dance dates.
- Options will be brought forward at the next Recreation Committee meeting.
- The next Teen Dance is scheduled for May 10, 2024,

e) Spaghettu Dinner March 2, 2024:

All ordering to be done in bulk to get the best prices.

- Meat for the meatballs and meat sauce to be ordered from Mill Bay Market.

- Requests to suppliers for donations for homemade desserts for the event.

- Bread to be purchased from Roger.

- Cost for the event the same as last year 12 and over $15 and 11 and under
$7, event will run 4:00 p.m. — 7:00 p.m. Eat in or take out.

- We have take-out containers and supplies from last year for the event.

Commanda Community Update:
Ron provided an update on some upcoming events:
- Mini-mart February 18" — there is still some space available for vendors.
- Spring Dance — April 20t — there will be live music for the dance.

MOTION NUMBER 2024-07
Moved by: Mayor Tom Piper Seconded by: Councillor Shelly Foote

That the Meeting is hereby adjourned at 6:45 p.m. Next Meeting to be held March 4,
2024 Carried

Chairperson:

Secretary:



Recreation Committee Minutes
February 5, 2024

Minutes prepared as per Section 228 (1){a) of the Municipal Act, 5.0, 2001, c. 25.
Clerk to record, without note or comment, all resolutions, decisions and other proceedings of the council.
Minutes to be approved by the Board at the next scheduled Board Meeting.






A regular meeting of the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit was
held on Wednesday, November 29, 2023, via teleconference. The meeting was open to the
public and live streaming of the proceedings was provided for the media and public through a

link on the Health Unit's website.

PRESENT:
Nipissing District:
Central Appointee
Centra! Appointee
Eastern Appointee
Central Appointee
Woestern Appointee

Parry Sound District:
Northeastern Appointee
Southeastern Appointee

Public Appointees:

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

Acting Medical Officer of Health/Executive Officer
Executive Director, Finance

Executive Director, Clinical Services

Executive Director, Community Services
Executive Director, Corporate Services

Executive Director, Human Resources

Executive Assistant, Director’s Office

REGRETS:

Central Appointee
Western Appointee
Central Appointee

Recorder
Executive Assistant, Office of the MOH/EO

Sara Inch

Dave Wolfe

Rick Champagne (Chairperson)
Maurice Switzer

Jamie Restoule

Blair Flowers
Marianne Stickland

Tim Sheppard
Catherine Still

Dr. Carol Zimbalatti
Isabel Churcher
Shannon Mantha
Louise Gagné

Paul Massicotte
Josée Goulet
Christine Neily

Jamie Lowery
Jamie McGarvey (Vice-Chairperson]
Karen Cook

Nelly Bothelo

1.0 CALLTO ORDER

The Board of Health members joined the meeting in person from the Nipissing Room at 345
Oak Street West, North Bay, Ontario, and virtually via Teams video conference.



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 29, 2023

Rick Champagne, Board of Health Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 5.48 p.m.
2.0 APROVAL OF THE AGENDA

The agenda for the November 29, 2023, Board of Health meeting was reviewed, and the
following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/01 *Wolfe/Stickland

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health Agenda, dated November 29, 2023, be approved.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No {Please circle one)
~Name: For: Against:  Abstain:  Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X Jamie McGarvey R
Karen Cook R Jamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers X Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer X —
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X s ]
lamie Lowery R Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”
3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

There were no conflicts of interest declared.

4.0 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

5.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Date: January 24, 2024

Time: To be determined

Place: To be determined

6.0 BUSINESS ARISING

6.1 Report back on alPHa Fall Symposium 2023

Sara Inch & Dr. Zimbalatti attended the virtual session on Risk Communication and Human
Rights Lens at the alPHa Fall symposium.

Key points from the session:
Implementing a Human Rights-Based Approach (HRBA) in seven stages.

B-G-009-001 Surssudeaants Page2 of 6



Minutes: Board of Heaith
Date: November 29, 2023

Public health faced accusations of human rights breaches during the COVID-19 pandemic.

- In emergencies, it's acceptable to bypass some HRBA steps, compensating for it later.

- Human rights tribunal ruled that mask mandates during the pandemic didn't violate
human rights.

- Only the legislature can amend the Ontario Human Rights Code.

- Caste-based discrimination is a policy position, not a ruling; tribunals follow policy
positions.

- Policy drafters use policy positions to inferm legislation.

- Invaccine-related cases, there's a right not to be vaccinated, but it doesn't grant
unrestricted access.

Implementing a Human Rights-Based Approach involves a thorough process, considering
historical context, community needs, and cultural nuances. Flexibility, inclusivity, and
community engagement are key elements. Emergency situations might warrant bypassing some
steps temporarily. Specific case examples illustrate the intersection of human rights, health
policies, and risk communication strategies. Communication is a process, not an event.

Dr. Zimbalatti attended other sessions as well at the alPHa Fall symposium. She shared a few
highlights:

- Organizations can move the human rights agenda forward by following a Human Rights
approach, informing partners and the public that they do so, and explain what that
means.

- Dr. Moore spoke at the symposium and announced that the Chief Medical Officer of
Health Annual Report will be released shortly with a focus on tobacco, alcohol, opioids,
and cannabis. He also shared that there will be a population health assessment plan in
Ontario in collaboration with Public Health Ontario with a report back to the Legislature.

- Health Units that underwent merger shared their experiences and lessons learned — the
biggest effort they had to put in was around aligning leadership and culture between
two health units.

- Inthe discussion which followed the presentation on merger experiences, the
membership indicated that it would be useful if alPHa created and made available to
members a repository of merger resources. AlPHa leadership indicated this is
something they felt they could do.

7.0 REPORT OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH
No report of the Medical Officer of Health was prepared for this meeting.

8.0 BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
8.1 Finance and Property Committee
A Finance and Property Committee meeting was held prior to the Board of Health meeting.

The following motion was read:

Heoaith Unit
g AALITLA

8-6-009-001 Burasu ds sants Page 3of 6



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 29, 2023

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/02 *Stickland/Sheppard

Be It Resolved, that on recommendation of the Finance and Property Committee the Board of Health for
the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit approves the 2024 Board of Health Public Health Budget,
as presented, with a total shareable base of 517,360,680.

Furthermore Be It Resolved, that on the recommendation of the Finance and Property Committee the
Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit approves 2% of the 2024 municipal
share be paid from the municipal reserve and the remainder levied to the municipalities.

The recorded vote was as follows:
RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No ({Please circle one}

Name: For: Against:  Abstain:  Name: _ For: Against:  Abstain:
Rick Champagne X Jamie Restoule X
Karen Cook R Marianne Stickland X
Blair Flowers X Maurice Switzer X
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery R Tim Sheppard X
Jamie McGarvey R Catherine Still X

“Carried”
9.0 CORRESPONDENCE
10.0 NEW BUSINESS

11.0 IN CAMERA

11.1 A position, plan, procedure, criteria or instructions to be applied to any negotiations
carried on by or on behalf of the Board.

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/03 *Wolfe/Flowers

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health move in camera at 6:12 p.m. to discuss item #11.1. A
position, plan, procedure, criteria or instructions to be applied to any negotiations carried on by
or on behalf of the Board.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  {Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For: Against:  Abstain;

Rick Champagne. X lamie McGarve.\; R

Karen Cook R lamie Restoule X

_Blair Flowers ' X Marianne Stickland X

_Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer X

_Sara inch X Dave Wolfe X

_lamie Lowery R Tim Sheppard X
tiaaith unit

7o\
B-G-009-001 M Sn tantd Pagedof 6



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 29, 2023

“Carried”

At the close of the in camera session, the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/04 *Wolfe/still

Be It Resoived, that the Board of Health rise and report at 6:36 p.m.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No {Please circle one)

Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For; Against:  Abstain:
~ Rick Champagne X Jamie McGarvey R

Karen Cook ) R lamie Restoule X

Blair Flowers X Marianne Stickland X

Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer X

Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
~lamie Lowery R Tim Sheppard X
“Carried”

Upon rising and reporting, the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/05 *Wolfe/Stickland

Whereas mergers by public health units under the Ministry of Health’s Strengthening Public
Health plan are currently referred to as voluntary, yet mergers are increasingly being
understood to be necessary for local public health unit sustainability; and

Whereas feasibility assessments must be completed in time to inform the merger fund
application within the Annual Service Plan, which is to be submitted in March 2024;

Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit
directs staff to request provincial one-time funding for consultation to study the feasibility and
potential risks and benefits of mergers with neighbouring public health units; and

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That additional Board of Health direction be sought should further
consultation result in a recommendation to change the focus of the feasibility assessment of
voluntary mergers with other regional local public health agencies.

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health approves consulting externally for the
completion of the feasibility assessment without undertaking a fulsome Request for Proposal
{RFP) process.

The recorded vote was as follows:

TR ey Py b Bt
Health Unit
S AL

B-G-009-001 Sureau da sante PageSof 6



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 29, 2023

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  (Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain:  Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X lamie McGarvey R

Karen Cook R Jamie Restoule X
_Blair Flowers X _Marianne Stickland X

Catherine Still X  Maurice Switzer X

Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X

Jamie Lowery R Tim Sheppard X
“Carried”

12.0 ADJOURNMENT

Having no further business, the Board of Health Chairperson adjourned the Board of Health
meeting at 7.00 p.m.

Original Signed by Rick Champagne ~ 2024-01-24
Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson Date (yyyy/mm/dd)
Original Signed by Nelly Bothelo 2024-01-24

Nelly Bothelo, Recorder Date (yyyy/mm/dd}

Hasith Unit
LA ICLA

B-G-009-001 Suresyds samie Page 6of 6



A regular meeting of the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit was
held on Wednesday, November 22, 2023, via teleconference. The meeting was open to the
public and live streaming of the proceedings was provided for the media and public through a

link on the Health Unit’s website.

PRESENT:

Nipissing District:
Central Appointees
Central Appointees
Central Appointees
Central Appointees
Eastern Appointee
Western Appointee
Parry Sound District:
Southeastern Appointee
Western Appointee
Public Appointees:

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

Medical Officer of Health/Executive Officer
Executive Director, Community Services
Executive Director, Finance

Executive Assistant, Director’s Office

REGRETS:
Central Appointees
Northeastern Appointee

Recorder

Executive Assistant, Office of the MOH/EQ

1.0 CALLTO ORDER

Karen Cook

Sara Inch

Jamie Lowery

Dave Wolfe

Rick Champagne (chairperson)
Jamie Restoule

Marianne Stickland

Jamie McGarvey (Vice-Chairperson)
Tim Sheppard

Catherine Still

Dr. Carol Zimbalatti
Louise Gagné
Isabel Churcher
Christine Neily

Maurice Switzer
Blair Flowers

Nelly Bothelo

The Board of Health members joined the meeting in person from the Nipissing Room at 345
Oak Street West, North Bay, Ontario, and virtually via Teams video conference.

Rick Champagne, Board of Health Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 5.10 p.m.
Mr. Champagne announced the recent appointment of Dr. Zimbalatti as the Medical Officer of

Health by the Ministry.

2.0 APROVAL OF THE AGENDA



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: Nc_wember 22,2023

The agenda for the November 22, 2023, Board of Health meeting was reviewed, and the
following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #BOH/2023/11/01 *Stickland/Still

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health Agenda, dated November 22, 2023, be approved.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  {Please circle one}

Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For: __Against:  Abstain:
Rick Champagne X B Jamie McGarvey R
Karen Cook X Jamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X 5 Maurice Switzer R
Sara Inch i X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery_ X Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”

3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

There were no conflicts of interest declared.

4.0 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES
4.1 Board of Health Minutes — September 27, 2023

The minutes from the Board of Health meeting held on September 27, 2023, were reviewed
and the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #B0H/2023/11/02 *Cook/Restoule

Be It Resolved, that the minutes from the Board of Health meeting held on September 27, 2023,
be approved as presented.
The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  (Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain:  Name: For: __Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X Jamie McGarvey R
Karen Cook X Jamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer R
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery N X Tim Sheppard X
“Carried”

T o T
Haalth uUni

o
B-G-009-001 Surmau dw sante Page20f 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

4.2. Board of Health In Camera Minutes — September 27, 2023

The minutes from the Board of Health meeting held on September 27, 2023, were reviewed
and the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #BOH/2023/11/03 *still/Lowery

Be It Resolved, that the in-camera minutes from the Board of Health meeting held September
27, 2023, be approved as presented.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No (Please circle one}
Name: For: Against:  Abstain:  Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X Jamie McGarvey R
Karen Cook X Jamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X __Maurice Switzer R
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe - X
Jamie Lowery X TimSheppard X

“Carried”

5.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Date: November 29, 2023

Time: 5.30 p.m

Location: 345 Oak Street West, North Bay, Ontario

6.0  BUSINESS ARISING

6.1. Intimate Partner Violence and Recommendations for Local Public Health Action
The following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H+/2023/11/04 *Inch/Lowery

Whereas, the Ontario Public Health Standards identifies violence as a topic for consideration
within the Substance Use and Injury Prevention Standard and requires public health units to
use a comprehensive health promotion approach that addresses risk and protective factors to
reduce the burden of preventable injuries in the health population;

Whereas, the Ontario Public Health Standards require public health units to monitor and assess
trends related to injuries;

Whereas, public health units and their programs, such as Healthy Babies Healthy Children and
Sexual Health, respond to disclosure of intimate Partner Violence or support disclosing of
Intimate Partner Violence within individual client care using best practices;

W W Bt
H:aﬁ'h"ﬁﬂ‘l“t
S AALITS D

B-G-009-001 Surasu ds sante Page3af 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

Whereas, it is well documented that Intimate Partner Violence is a serious preventable problem
that significantly impacts victims and their children with effects across the lifespan and has
considerable societal costs associated with medical and mental health services, lost
productivity, and criminal justice and child welfare costs;

Whereas, responding to and preventing Intimate Partner Violence requires urgent and
sustained evidence-based interventions by multisectoral agencies at a local and provincial level
that are effective in preventing violence, and effective in changing risk and increasing protective
factors, especially in adolescents and young adults;

Whereas, intimate Partner Violence is generally underreported. Locally reported police, victim,
and healthcare service data likely does not represent the full extent of Intimate Partner
Violence, nor the risk and nature of the abuse and how it varies across specific population
groups (e.g., 2sLGBTQ+, Indigenous) and age groups. Local level survey data is not available on
Intimate Partner Violence, as collected through the Statistics Canada General Social Survey on
Canadian’s Safety (Victimization), or Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs};

Therefore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District
Health Unit is committed to being a member on the Violence against Women Coordinating
Committee (VAWCC) of Nipissing and VAWCC of Parry Sound, and support the efforts of staff to
research and consult with local, regional, and provincial experts and community partners to
enhance surveillance methodologies, knowledge of effective prevention strategies, promotion
of local services, and capacity for collective action and evaluation; and,

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health call on the Province of Ontario to invest
in surveillance and analytical methodologies at a provincial and local public health unit level to
gain a better understanding of the prevalence of Intimate Partner Violence and Adverse
Childhood Experiences and to permit monitoring of trends, and data-informed action; and,

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health call on the Province of Ontario to
develop a Provincial Intimate Partner Violence strategy to support the identification,
implementation, evaluation, and monitoring of effective violence prevention strategies; and

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health call on the Province of Ontario and the
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (MCCSS) to increase the funding allocated
to the Healthy Babies Healthy Children Home Visiting program that is operated out of local
public health units. The program directly services individual parents who need more support.
Within this work, staff respond to disclosure of Intimate Partner Violence or support disclosing
of Intimate Partner Violence. The annual budget for the Healthy Babies Healthy Children
program has not increased in over 10 years.

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health provide correspondence of these
resolutions to district municipalities, Ontario Boards of Health, Victor Fedeli, MPP (Nipissing),
Graydon Smith, MPP (Parry Sound-Muskoka), John Vanthof, MPP {Timiskaming-Cochrane), the
Honourable Doug Ford (Premier), the Honourable Merrilee Fullerton {Minister of Children,
Community and Social Services}, Sylvia Jones (Minister of Health), the Honourable Michael
Kerzner {Solicitor General of Ontario}, Josée Bégin (Assistant Chief Statistician, Statistics
Canada), and Chairs of the VAWCC of Nipissing and VAWCC of Parry Sound.

Waaith Unit
b AA LTI

B-G-009-001 Suresu do sante Page 4 of 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes f No  {Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X lamie McGarvey X
Karen Cook X lamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Stil! X Maurice Switzer R o
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery X Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”
7.0 REPORT OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH

The Report of the Medical Officer of Health for the November 22, 2023, meeting was presented
to the Board of Health for information purposes,

Comments and questions were taken and answered.
8.0 BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

There were no Committee Reports to bring forward.
9.0 CORRESPONDENCE

Board of Health correspondence listed for the November 22, 2023 meeting is made available
for review by Board members in the Board of Health online portal.

10.0 NEW BUSINESS

10.1 Endorsement of Ontario Public Health Association’s Letter on Modernizing Alcohol
Marketplace and Product Sales.

The following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #BOH/2023/11/05 *McGarvey/ Restoule

Whereas, Alcohol is a well-established risk factor for death, disease {including certain cancers,
cardiovascular disease, liver disease), disability, unintentional injury, risky behaviour, social
problems, and violence or aggressive behaviour;

Whereas, The Health Unit district has significantly higher rates of emergency department visits
and hospitalizations due solely to alcohol consumption, compared to Ontario;

Whereas, The Health Unit district has significantly higher rates of heavy drinking episodes for
persons aged 19 years or older compared to Ontario;

[y B
Heaith Unit
‘* ' 'I'\i i

B-G-009-001 Surasy de tanrd Page Sof 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

Whereas, Increased availability and affordability of alcohol has a particularly negative impact
on school-aged Ontarians, for whom the risk of adverse outcomes from drinking is greater than
adults. Alcohol is a leading risk factor for worsening academic performance, injury, violence,
suicide, and death in youth;

Whereas, Within the Health Unit district a majority of high schools (87%) and almost two-thirds
of post-secondary institutions (63%) are within a 3km distance of an alcohol retailer.

Whereas, When alcohol becomes more available and affordable, there is an associated increase
in healthcare costs, lost productivity, criminal justice and other direct costs;

Whereas, The 2019 regulatory changes that have led to the relaxation of alcohol control policies
have already placed Ontarians at an increased risk of harms and health related outcomes;

Therefore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health endorse the Letter from the Ontario Public
Health Association on Modernizing Alcohol Marketplace and Product Sales to raise awareness
about, and work to reduce the impact of increased access to alcohol; and

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health call on the Province of Ontario to
implement the following policy measures:

e Reduce retail density
e Maintain or decrease hours of sale, with no exceptions

« Strengthen Ontario’s alcohol pricing policies including taxation, minimum pricing or
other means.

« Stop further privatization of alcohol sales

+ Apply a whole of government, health-in-all-policies approach to alcohol modernization,
and

Furthermore Be It Resolved, That the Board of Health provide correspondence of these
resolutions to district municipalities, Ontario Boards of Health, Victor Fedeli, MPP (Nipissing),
Graydon Smith, MPP (Parry Sound-Muskoka), John Vanthof, MPP (Timiskaming-Cochrane), the
Honourable Doug Ford {Premier), the Honourable Sylvia Jones (Minister of Health) and the
Association of Local Public Health Agencies {alPHa).

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  {Please circle one}
Name: For: _ Against:  Abstain:  Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X lamie McGarvey X

Karen Cook X Jamie Restoule X =

Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X

Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer R

Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X

Jamie Lowery X Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”

tieaith Unit B
LiaLryiixy

8-G-009-001 Dursau da sante Page 6 of 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

11.0 IN CAMERA

11.1 A position, plan, procedure, criteria or instructions to be applied to any negotiations
carried on by or on behalf of the Board.

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2023/11/06 *Stickland/Lowery

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health move in camera at 6:04 p.m. to discuss item #11.1. A
position, plan, procedure, criteria or instructions to be applied to any negotiations carried on by
or on behalf of the Board.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  (Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champé-gﬁe X Jamie McGarvey X
Karen Cook X Jamie Restoule X -
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer R
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery X Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”

At the close of the in camera session, the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #B0OH/2023/11/07 *Wolfe/Still

Be it Resolved, that the Board of Health rise and report at 6:59 p.m.

The recorded vote was as follows:

RECORDED VOTE FOR CIRCULATION: Yes / No  (Please circle one)
Name: For: Against:  Abstain: Name: For: Against:  Abstain:

Rick Champagne X Jamie McGarvey X
Karen Cock X Jamie Restoule X
Blair Flowers A Marianne Stickland X
Catherine Still X Maurice Switzer R
Sara Inch X Dave Wolfe X
Jamie Lowery X Tim Sheppard X

“Carried”

Direction was provided; there was nothing further to report.

Weaith nit
S AA ALY

B-G-009-001 Suresyds sante Page 7 of 8



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: November 22, 2023

12.0 ADJOURNMENT

Having no further business, the Board of Health Chairperson adjourned the Board of Health
meeting at 7.00 p.m.

Original Signed by Rick Champagne _ 2024-01-24
Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson Date (yyyy/mm/dd)
Original Signed by Nelly Bothelo _ 2024-01-24 -
Nelly Bothelo, Recorder Date {yyyy/mm/dd)

Health Unit

L i gy

B-G-009-001 Buresu da wante Page 8 of 8



January 12, 2024

Hon. Stan Cho, Minister of Long-Term Care
Ministry of Long-Term Care

6" Floor, 400 University Avenue

Toronto, Ontario

MS5G 185

Dear Minister Cho:

Re: Governance Structure Review of Boards of Management for Territorial District
Homes

Congratulations on your recent appointment to Minister of Long-Term Care. We wish you all the
best with your new portfolio.

We are member municipalities of the District of Nipissing East Home for the Aged (Cassellholme)
and represent seven of the nine member municipalities. Our home is one of only six homes in
Northern Ontario that fall under Section 128 of Ontario's Fixing Long-Term Care Act, 2021 as
territorial district homes governed by Boards of Management. We are in a unique situation as
only 6 homes out of 627 long-term care homes in the province are territorial district homes. We
are mostly small, rural municipalities who joined forces with the City of North Bay, the ninth
member municipality, in the 1960s to provide care for the eldest population in our communities.

In 2007, the Ministry mandated that Casselltholme be redeveloped to class A beds by 2025. The
Board of Management at Casseilholme determined that a brand-new building was the most cost-
effective option available to meet class A standards. It took from 2007 to 2022 for the Board of
Management to begin construction of the new home. There are likely various reasons as to why
it took so long to get shovels in the ground, but what became evident from the onset of
redevelopment discussions was that the governance structure of the home is flawed. This is no
fault of the Board; it is provincial legislation that dictates the governance structure of our home.

Prior to beginning the redevelopment of Cassellholme, member municipalities went through a
long and difficult process of negotiating and finally accepting to proceed with the build which
created significant hardships between member municipalities and the Board of Management. To
this day, there is a damaged relationship with the Board. This is certainly not how we
neighbouring municipalities wanted the process to play out and we are now faced with the
outcomes: a strained relationship with the Board and a construction project that ballooned from
the initial estimate of approximately $50 million to more than $120 million over time with us having
little say over redevelopment decisions. Although our municipalities do not disagree that the
home needed to be redeveloped, we disagree with the process by which the Board of
Management went ahead with the redevelopment. There were not equal decision-making
opportunities for all member municipalities. Because of the governance structure, municipal
appointees from the City of North Bay and the provincial appointees (5 out of 7 Board members)
were able to dictate the direction and make all development decisions leaving the remaining eight
municipalities with very little say. One member municipality and the province made a $120 million
decision that the rest of our communities must live with and finance for the next 25 years.

As Cassellholme develops, we small rural communities feel that our concerns for improved
representation of our communities and public accountability to our citizens have been largely



ignored. And with the passing of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the recognized impacts on long-
term care homes and their residents, we feel that these deserve better attention. We are
requesting that you review the governance structure for territorial district homes to allow for
permanent municipal representation for all member municipalities.

As per current legislation, the Boards of Management are each made up of a combination of
municipal and provincial appointees. Appendix “A” outlines the current structure of the Board of
Management for each home. It is not equitable that one or more of the municipalities within a
district has several permanent Board seats, and each remaining municipality rotates
representation on the Board. On the Board in our home, the City of North Bay has three
permanent seats while all other municipalities rotate having a seat every 12 years. Only 33.3% of
the municipal owners (3 of 9) of our home have a vote on the governance and direction of seniors’
services in our district at any given time. All municipalities pay into the home's costs, each paying
equal share per dollar of assessment; therefore, all municipalities should have permanent
opportunity to participate in the direction of the home.

There are a few options for amending the Board composition of homes. We are not necessarily
asking that the Ministry reduce the number of permanent seats a municipality has. We are asking
for all to have a permanent seat. This may mean increasing the number of board members per
Board of Management or a combination of additional seats and a reduction or elimination of the
number of provincial appointees. Is there a need for provincial appointees? They are not Ministry
staff or health care professionals that are on the Board to provide health care expertise or
governance skills. The appointees are members of the community not necessarily any different
than elective officials who are members of their community.

Although not all municipalities belonging to the 6 district territorial homes may agree with our take
on the governance structure for the homes, we have requested their support for the Ministry to
review the legislation and provide opportunity for municipalities to be consulted. Our Councils
have passed resolutions to this effect. Enclosed are copies of our resolutions. Should the Ministry
not proceed with a review of all Boards of management, for our home, the District of Nipissing
East Home for the Aged, we are asking you to amend Schedule 3 of O. Reg. 246/22 under Fixing
Long-Term Care Act, 2021 by: (1) removing the Town of Mattawa, Municipality of Mattawan,
Township of Calvin, and Township of Papineau-Cameron from the membership of The District of
Nipissing East Home for the Aged to support the Algonquin Nursing Home located in the Town of
Mattawa; and (2) replacing Schedule 3 as follows:

“The board of management for the District of Nipissing East shall consist of seven members and
the areas they represent, and the manner of their appointment shall be as follows:

1. Area 1, represented by three members to be appointed by the municipal council of the
City of North Bay.

2. Area 2, represented by one member with one to be appointed by the municipal council of,
i. the Township of South Algonguin,

3. Area 3, represented by three members with one to be appointed by each of the municipal
councils of,

i. the Township of Bonfield,



ii. the Township of Chisholm,

iii. the Township of East Ferris.”

We thank you in advance for committing to review the governance structure of territorial district
homes and should you feel it beneficial, we welcome a meeting, at your earliest convenience, to
consult on any proposed changes to the legislation.

Sincerely,

Narry Pafjuette (Jan 5, 2024 T0:09 EST)

Narry Paquette
Mayor
Township of Bonfield

Kichard Gould

Richard Gould (Jan 8, 2024 13:46 EST)

Richard Gould
Mayor
Municipality of Calvin

Joih Bgeic

Gail Degagne
Mayor
Township of Chishoim

Paudine Rochefort

Pauline Rochefort {Jan 9, 2024 12:42 EST}

Pauline Rochefort
Mayor '
Municipality of East Ferris

RA.Belanger

R.A.Belanger (Jan 12, 202410:49 EST)

Raymond Belanger
Mayor
Town of Mattawa



futze

Peter Murphy {Jan 18, 20244731 p&7)

Peter Murphy

Mayor

Municipality of Mattawan

Robert Corriveau (Jan 24, 2024 1039 EST}

Robert Corriveau

b

Mayor

Township of Papineau-Cameron

C.C.

John Jordan, Parliamentary Assistant, Ministry of Long-Term Care

Hon. Vic Fedeli, MPP Nipissing

District of Nipissing East Home for the Aged (Cassellholme) Member Municipalities
District of Kenora Home for the Aged (Pinecrest) Member Municipalities

District of Manitoulin Home for the Aged (Manitoulin Centennial Manor) Member
Municipalities

District of Nipissing West Home for the Aged (Au Chateau) Member Municipalities
District of Parry Sound East Home for the Aged (Belvedere Heights) Member
Municipalities

District of Parry Sound West Home for the Aged (Eastholme) Member Municipalities



L 4 S %005 ¥ 8 | 1s8M punog Alied Jo ousig
L z S %E +9 6 ¥l | 1se3 punog Alied Jo JouisIg
L Z S %000 0 [4 159 BuissidiN Jo 111sIg
L z S %L 99 9 6 }seg buissidiN Jo 1ouisia
L 4 g %t v 14 6 ulinojiuely jo Jouisig
6 £ 9 % 14 6 elouay Jo Jousig
pieog pieog
pieog uo pieog uo uo jeas uo jeag
slaquialy | seajuloddy | seaynoddy B INOYIA e JNOYMA
pieog | [eoulncig | [ediounpy | sepyedpiuny | sonneddunyy | sapedidunpy
0 #€j0) 10 # J0 # 30 % Jo# | Joqual jo # SWOH 21381g

h\<!- x_ t:mna<







Corporation of the Municipality of Calvin

CALVIN

Council Resolution

Date: January 30, 2024
Resolution Number: 2024-31
Moved By: Councillor Moreton
Seconded By: Councillor Manson

Background: Before Calvin township became a township, it was burned by
numerous forest fires. This was before the time of fire towers, water bombers,
and municipal fire departments. A 1881 report from Lawrence Tallan, Provincial
Land surveyor, states: "“The township of Calvin has been traversed by repeated
and severe fires — so well have the flames done their work that with the exception
of an insignificant portion, scarcely a vestige of the original timber remains."

History has a way of repeating itself, and now rural municipalities and remote
areas need more than ever to be prepared to respond to forest fires. Invasive
pests like the emerald ash borer and the spruce bud worm are killing large
numbers of trees, leaving copious amounts of dry kindling in our forests just
waiting for a careless human or a lightning strike. Qur forests are choked with
deadfall and forest fires are becoming increasingly difficult to control. Add to this
the effects of rising temperatures and drier seasons, or climate change, and we
could be facing increasingly disastrous forest fires. This is not the time to be
caught short with limited forest fire-fighting resources.

Jordan Omstead of the Canadian Press recently wrote: “But as Canada's water
bombers age — and wildfire seasons are expected to intensify — some wildland



firefighters and emergency preparedness experts say the country needs to prop
up its fleet of firefighting aircraft, even though several provinces are playing down
concerns about capacity.” He quotes Eric Davidson, president of the Ontario
Professional Association of Wildland Firefighters, “We're really starting to see the
effect of the aging fleet.”

The article further states the John Gradek, lecturer at McGill University estimates
that almost half of the larger water bombers used to fight Canadian forest fires
are nearing the end of their service life.

However, a Canadian company making a large skimmer-style water bomber is
backed up with orders from European countries until the end of the decade.

Ontario has its own fleet of aircraft. They have 20 fixed-wing aircraft which
includes 9 CL215 and CL415 water bombers that are 24 years old on average. The
remaining 11 aircraft are an average of 54 years old. Melissa Candelaria, a
spokesperson for Minister Graydon Smith says the MNR can handle Ontario fires
with these aircraft, but Jennifer Kamau, communications manager for the Canada
Interagency Forest Fire Centre, CIFFC, noted that other provinces contract out
firebombers and last year there was a strain in Canada to get the resources to
areas in need because there were so many fires across the country at the same
time and very few aircraft available.

Peter Zimonijic of the CBC quoted the Canadian Association of Fire Chiefs (CAFC)
President Ken McMullen, “It's not often that the fire chiefs sound the alarm. We
are very concerned about this impending crisis that the summer of 2024 and
beyond is going to bring our sector”

In 2023 we all smelled the smoke and saw the sky turn brown. Buildings can be
replaced, but lives cannot. And once an area is burned it takes more than a
lifetime for it to return to its original state.

WHEREAS Forest fires are a very real threat to rural municipalities.



AND WHEREAS smoke from forest fires put people’s health at risk. Thisis
especially true of children and the elderly. The David Suzuki Foundation reports
that wildfires kill many thousands of people per year and most of the deaths are
from smoke inhalation.

AND WHEREAS forest fires are a very real danger to the climate and according to
The Guardian, in 2023 they emitted three times as much carbon as the entire
carbon footprint of Canada.

AND WHEREAS according to the John Crace interview in The Guardian with
William Kurz, a retired scientist with Natural Resources Canada, around two billion

tonnes of carbon have been released into the atmosphere from forest fires in
2023.

AND WHEREAS carbon emissions from forest fires are not counted against
Canada’s Paris agreement commitments, according to Kurz, but they far exceeded
all of the emissions tied to Canada’s economy (670 mega tonnes, or 0.67 billion
tonnes, according to Environment and Climate Change Canada).

AND WHEREAS that standing healthy forest serves as a carbon sink, drawing in
carbon, but once destroyed by fire, even though second growth takes its place, it
is much less effective for many decades.

AND WHEREAS the federal government owns no water bombers and assists the
provinces through the CIFFC, Canadian Interagency Forest Fire Centre, a
spokesperson with CIFFC says that last year there were too many requests and not
enough inventory to meet the needs of the country.

AND WHEREAS as reported by De Havilland Canada who manufacture the
Canadian made water bomber, they have contracts with European countries for
the next 22 of its new DHC-515 planes, which will take until 2029 or 2030 to
complete and there will be very little production available to replace the aging
water bombers in Ontario and the rest of Canada.



NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the counci! of the Corporation of Calvin
Township urges and encourages the Federal Government to commit additional
funds for cost sharing of provincial firefighting and to consider the development of
a national strategy of firefighting. Furthermore, we urge the federal government
to consider the measures necessary for acquiring a national fleet of Canadian-
made waterbombers, with home bases strategically located to best serve and
respond to the needs of rural communities, and a national fire administration to
better coordinate and manage efforts across the country. We also encourage the
introduction of a program similar to the Joint Emergency Preparedness Program
(JEPP) which was ended in 2013.

And we encourage Minister Graydon Smith to step up the on-the-ground
firefighting capability and water bomber acquisitions in Ontario.

AND THAT this resolution be forwarded to The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau,
Prime Minister of Canada, The Honourable Bill Blair, Minister of National Defence,
The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, The Honourable Graydon Smith,
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry of Ontario, The Honourable Vic Fideli,
Minister of Economic Development Ontario, the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities (FMC) and the Association of Municipalities Ontario {AMO).

AND THAT this resolution be shared with all 444 municipalities in Ontario for their
consideration and adoption.

Results: Carried

Recorded Vote:

Member of Council In Favour Opposed
Mayor Gould ([ O
Councillor Moreton O L]
Councillor Latimer O O
Councillor Grant O O
Councillor Manson O O



&

Ontario Police Municipal Policing Bureau
Provincial provinciale Bureau des services policiers des municipalités
Police de I'Ontario

Tel: 705 329-6140 Tél. :705 329-6140
Fax: 705 330-4191 Téléc.: 705 330-4191

File Reference; 612-20

January 30, 2024

Dear Mayor/Reeve/CAO/Treasurer,

April 1, 2024, has been proclaimed as the official date on which the Community Safety and
Policing Act, 2019 (CSPA) will come into force. At that time, it will repeal and replace the
current Police Services Act, 1990 (PSA).

We wish to confirm that the OPP 2024 Annual Billing Statements remain in effect after April 1,
2024, and municipalities will continue to be billed in accordance with costs in the statements.

Under the CSPA, all municipalities policed by the OPP will be subject to Regulation 413/23
Amount Payable by Municipalities for Policing from Ontario Provincial Police. This regulation
preserves the cost-recovery methodologies currently in effect. The OPP Billing Model cost
allocation method remains the same under Reg. 413/23. There are transitional provisions
included in the Regulation that stipulate that 2024 annual billing statements will not need to be
reissued.

Should you have any further questions about your annual billing statements or any other billing
inquiries, please reach out to the OPP Municipal Policing Bureau Financial Services Unit at
OPP.MPB.Financial.Services.Unit{@opp.ca

Sincerely,

V7

Phil Whitton
Superintendent
Municipal Policing Bureau Commander

c: Detachment Commander

777 Memorial Ave. 777, avenue Memorial
QOrillia ON L3V 7v3 Orillia ON L3V 7v3






0¢ jo | afeq uojsialg Aoljod J1Balens | |e19USD) JONDIIOS U3 JO ANSIUI

Z 's)eag aAljejuasaiday Aunwiuos

“y2Ea JaquiSl 1DUN0I | Jo uaunuiodde au) 1o Ajqisucdsel ale JUSWYSEISD BY) Ul SEQIUNWWCD |y »
g :S)eag Jaquwiay ||ouno)

‘diysumo] [aysen
pue Jjopnyj ‘iseq spuelybiH o Ayedioiungy ‘diysumo | uojsejiopa ‘diysumo] Nouawi ‘spueybiy sBunsep jo Alediciunyy 'Aeperey
10 Aledioiuniy ‘diysumo | OAB/MOMES) ‘POIDUEY JO UMC] 10} pajlwi] @ Jou Aew jnq Buimoljos eyl sepnjou) eele JuslydIe) yYolraueq

1 :5]e9g JAqUIS pieog (201
| :saspuoddy [elouiAolg

‘'SaAllBjUasasdal Aunwwod g ay) jo wawuodde ay) 104 ajqisuodsal Apuiol aJe JUsuyoeIap ayl Ul SaNIUNWIIoD |V »
Z 's)eag aaleuasalday AjJunwiwo)

“JAqUaW IDUNOD

1 Jo waunuiodde ay Joy ajqisuodsal Apuiol e abeja abpupung pue uemejaubep Jo Aediounyy ay) ‘diysumo] Buong  »
*JaquUIBW [IDUNOD

i jo awyuiodde ay) Joj aiqisuodsal Ajuiol ase diysumo) Auad pue diysumo | UHSJUOW/YSILINADW ‘ALIea) JO UMO] ay) e

-IaguWaW (PUnod | jo waunuiodde ay) Joy ajqisuodsas Apuiol ase abeja Jaary yInog pue diysumo] Jeyoep ‘diysumo] Ajor e

JBqWa 1DUno? | o Jusunuiodde auy 10} s|qisuodsal Ajuiof ase diysumo ] uosiaky pue abe|ia siied sng ‘dIUSumMo] Inoully e

¥ :SjEag JaquIaly I2Uno

abe|a abpupung ‘diysumo] Buons ‘abejia Jaay Yyinog
‘diysumo uosiaiy ‘diysumo) Ausd ‘diysumo] yuLjuoyoLInop ‘uemelsube jo Ayredioiunyy ‘diysumo] Jeyoew ‘Asulesy] jo
ume] ‘diysumo] Alop ‘afie|ia siied saung ‘diysumo] noully o3 pajii aq jou Aew jng Guimo||o} ay) sapn|aul BaJle Juawyales spueybiy uinbew)y

uondussag jusiuysejaq

(z¥ 40 Z¥ 1B)O1) preOg JUBWIYOBIEQT "d'd'O INO YIM Sjuswiyoersd ‘d'd'0 1

uswiyorisp eyl Aq peailjod Aydesboab alus ay)

apnjoul [Im Bale JusLydled ay) se ‘uojeinbBal ay) ul spnpul 0] palinbal aq 10U |IM Bale JusWYdIed 8y} ‘pJeoq Juawiyoejap
auo AJuo yum sjuswiyoelap 1o} ‘eidwexs 104 "uonenbal ay) ul apnoul ) Alessanau aqg Jou |im Jey) sasodind 3oeqpas)
pueE UoNBHNSUOD JOP|OYaXB]S JO} UOHBWLIOUI [euClIppE sapnjoul uonduossp SIY) JBY) 8j0u ases|d ‘spleoq ¢g Buljejoy
‘sjuswiyoelap 9 WoJj yoeqpas) Jaployayels pue olgnd 10} suoijsodwod pasodold ay) psemioj Bumpnd st Ausiuiw sy |

SNOILISOJWOD QYv0Sg INJWHIOVLIIA d'd'0 - V XIANIddVY

Bunsod yzoz Aenuep
6102 ‘19v Bumijod pue Ajoies Ayunwiiion ay) Jepun suoneinbay
(MN0) AnsiBay AlojeinBay s,oueiu)



ggjog mmm& uoisialg Aoljogd o1bareng | [eiauRs) JONDICS Yl JO AllsIupy

9 1sjeag JoqUIdN pJeoy [B10]
¢ :sosjujoddy [ejoulaold

‘sealejuesaldal Qunwiwos Z ey Jo usuuiodde ayy Jo) sjqisucdsal s| Quno) juerg e
Z :sjeag aapmuasaday Aunuwoy

‘sIeqIBLL |Iounod Z au) Jo Jusuguiodde ay) Jo} eigqisuodsal s Qunop Juelg e
Z :SIEag IqUWa [1PUNno)

elg o AUnoD o) pajiugj 34 10u Aew Ing Huimogjoj ey} sepnjoul eale juewiyses) Aunon jueig

91 ‘sjeag saqual pieoq [ejoL
¢ :saajuioddy |e1oUIAOI4

‘uonen 18Ji4 Julod 188 SS00W ‘uonen

1814 SHMeYop Elyeps (uopod wsypou) diysumo ) Aeg uelbioad) ‘saye exoysnpy ‘2bplqaoeIg JO UMO] 'JSINYUBARIL) JO
umo] :yoea saejuasaidal Agunwwod | jo Juswyuiodde ayy Joj 9|qIsuodsal sle JUSWYIBISP 3y} Ul sanunwwod Bumoliopay) -
9 :s)eag aAaneRuasaiday Aunwwo)

*1I8quiawW |Iaunod |, Jo Juswiuiodde sy o) sjgisuodsal st (Ayjedidiunw Jan-1addn} exo)sniy JojomsIg eyl .
‘Yoea JAQUIaL [Iounod | Jo Jusunuodde ay) J0) siqisucdsal aJe JuaWyoeISp 3Y) Ul SIIUNWLLCD iy
1 151e9g JaqQUIa 1oUnod

UONBN 18114 JUIO4 193(] SO0 ‘UGNEN 1Si14 symeyop BlyeAA (uoipod wsypou) diysumo) Aeg ueibioan ‘diysumo |
sexe eyoysnpy ‘ebpuqeskelg Jo umo) ‘ISINYUSARIS) JO UMO| 10} pajiwi] aq Jou Aew yng Buimo||0) aY} SapN|oUl Base Juawyes) abpugeoe.g

2| :sjeag Jaquial pieog [ej0L

Z :sesjuloddy |eroulAcld

‘aaneuasaidal Ayunuuos | ay) Jo juswulodde ay) 1o} |qisucdses AQuIO] aJe JUSLUYIEISP BY) Ul SOIUNWWOS ¥ e

Bunsced vzoz Aenuer
6102 ‘1ov Bunijod pue Aajes Apunwiwos sy Japun suoneinboy
(MM0) AnysiBay AuojenBay s.ouejup




0¢ jo ¢ abed uo(siaIg Adljod d1Bajens | [elausg Joyolog syl Jo AnsIuiy

G :Sjeag Jaqualy pJeog [ejol
Z :sesjuioddy [e1ouinolg

"aAneuasaldal AYunwiwod | ay} jo awjulodde
sy J0) alqisuodsal Apuiol ase LB 1S8AA JO AlllediDtuny sUl pue diysumo] PICMUINGS ‘ydmung uopng jo Ayediounpy syt -
| :Sjeag aanejuasaiday Ajunwwos)

“JaquIsil IUNoY | Jo wsunuiodde ayy Joy siqisuodsal s) ulb|g |enua) jo Ayediunpy 8y| e
“Jaquiaw ;punod | jo uasunuiodde sy soy ajqisuodsal Ajuiol ase diysumo | apiyelep ay) pue weyleg jo Ajlediounpy oy e
Z is)esag Joaquiagy [1ouno)

uonen asemeag ‘uib|g 1sapn Jo Anediungy ‘diysumo] plomyinog ‘diysumo ) apiyeep ‘ysimung uopng jo Ajjedmoiuniy
‘uib|g [enuad) jo Aedoiungy ‘weykeq jo Aledidiungy 0} pajwi] aq jou Aew yng Buimo|jo) ayl sapnjow eale Juawyajer uibg

G :S]Eag JAqLUD pieog [2)0]
| :saajujoddy [e1ouACId

‘aaneyuasaldal funwiwos | au jo Juawiuiodde auy Joj ajqisuodsal s) sa)e eyUemeY JO D YL e
| :s1R0g aanejuasalday Aunwuio)

"SISQUISL [IUNOD £ YY) 10 Jusuguiodde auy Joj s|qisuodsal st SaxeT BULBMEY JO A0 8yl e
¢ :S)Ees Jaquiay I9uUnod

S9YET BULIEMEY JO A)D) ;0) paliui 8q Jou Aewt 3ng Buimolo) 8y} Sepnjoul Bale JUswyajes sy eypemey Jo A0

1 Sjeag Jaquisy pieoq [e)o]
| :saajuroddy jeioujacad

‘poam] o

Aledisungy ‘diysumo] uopmey-6ulpng ‘exe pue eiouuepy jo Agedounpy ‘diysumo] sopep ‘sbuiseH anuan jo Ayjediounpy
‘aAneuasasdal) Aunwos | ay) jo Juawuiodde ay) Joy sqisucdsal Ajuiol aie JUSWYsesp ayi ul salpunwwod Bumorojay)] e
| :sjeag aanejuasaliday Ajunwwo)

‘paam] Jo Aredioungy ‘diysumo ] uopmer-Buipng ‘eye pue elouuep jo Ajedisiungy ‘diysumo] copepy ‘sBunseH anuan
10 Afediouniy tyoea Jaquiaul 10Uno2 | Jo uauwucdde ayy Jo) aiqistodsal 2ie JUSLIYDe)ap YL Ul SANIUNWWOD Buimolo) syl
G :S)}eag JaqUIAlY [12UNo)

diysumo] |ayses pue jopn] ‘paam] Jo Ajjediolunyy 'diysumo] uopmey-Buipns ‘axe pue Biouuep jo Aedioungpy
‘diysumo | sopep ‘sBunsey snuel) jo Aediounyy (o3 pajwi| @q jou Aew ng Guimoljo) ayj sepnjoul Bale JuaLwIYdIe) sBuliseH |enuan

Bunsod yzoz Aenuer
6102 ‘1ov bupijod pue Ajgjes Apunwiwo?) ay) Japun suone|nbay
{MHO0) Ansibay AiojeinBay s.ouejuQ




0¢ 0 # abed uoisialg Adljod 216ajens | |esausD J0NIIOS 2Y) Jo Ansiuliy

¢ :sadjujoddy [eiduUlAOld

seAneuesasda AJUNWIWOS § ay) Jo Jusunuiodde auyy Jop s|qisundsal Afjuiol sie JuslWYIEBp By Ul SeIUNWIWOS Y e
P 'sjeag aAnRjuasaiday Aunwiwoe)

YOS Jaquisul 1aunod | jo waunuiodde sy} Jo) sjqisuodsad aJe JUSWYDEISP Ay} Ul SBRIUNWWCS | *
6§ :5J89G JaqUIS] HOUNOY

{1ox0u0y
aden) uonen 1su4 papaosun ysemep jo semeddiys ‘(usabneg maN) uonen 1sui4 usabneg Jjo uonen Aemq|lo ‘diysumo] siebyinog
‘eINSuiUad 8ang YINOS JO UMD ‘BINSUUad 2anig Wayuon jo Aredioungy ‘piojeaiy jo Ayjediounpy ‘spueybiy Asug) jo Ayjediouniy

‘diysumo | syn|g ueibioas) ‘diSUMD | YUOMSIEYY) (03 pajiwi ag Jou Aew jng Buimol|o} sy) Sapniou] Bale Juawyaled aorug Asig)

g :sjeag JaquIsy pieoyq |ej0)
} sajuloddy |e1ouIA0Lg

"2ANBIUSSRIdR) AJIUNWIWICD | B} O Juawiuicdde ay) 1o} ajqIsuodsal | BUOISUSAID) Jo Ajediouniy 8] e
| :$1eag aanejuasasdoy LHlunwwos

-JaqLUawW (1DUnod | Jo Jusuiuiodde ay) 1oy a|qisuodsal s {Julod PUBS) HPqEBUIYSIUY IYSEBADN IMBUlg o
‘slequisW [15UNo9 ¢ J0 Juswuiodde auyy 10} sjqIsucdsal S| aUO)sUSRIL) Jo AediDuniy Byl e
¥ :S1e38 AN NOUNCH

uoneN Isii4 gs# oxe BuoT ‘Quiog pueg)
Naqeeuysiuy 1yseeian mBuig ‘sucisuasig Jo Alediciunpy (o) pajiwi] aq Jou Aew Ing Buimo]jo) 9y} SIPN|dul BAE JudUYIILD aUo)sSuUaaI)

6 :S1eag JqUID pieog [BI10L
Z :saajuioddy |ejouracidg

"diysumo] deusjuUOI4 YUON pue diySumo] Seusiuold [BRual)
eanguesaldas Auunwiwos | jo Jusunuodde ey Jos aiqisuodssa Apulol aie Juswiyoejap auy) Ul saUNWWod Buimojjol ayy e
‘uonen isi4 uemipeeqo joqeys pue diysumo] Seuaioly
Winog :yoes sAnejuasasded AIUNWWod | Jo Jusunuiodde ay o} sjqisuodsal ale JuBLUYIEBIep BU) Ul SSIUNWWOD Buimoljo) sy
¢ !sjeag eAneuasalday Ajunwiwo?)

*SIoquIaLL 1uUnod Z Jo Jusuguiodde auy) 104 ajqisucdsal st diYSUMO] DEUSJUCIY LHNOS e
*JBquIBWY IOUnod | Jo Juauijuiodde aup Joj ajqisucdsel S1 diysumo] JBUSJUGId YUON e
“Jaquisw Iunod 3 Jo esuguiodde sy Jo) ajqisuodsal si diysumo | JeuSjUCI] [BOURD e
¥/ 51895 JBGUISI 1I9UN0Y)

uonen 114 uemiipeeqo 10qeys ‘diysumo] Jeusjuoiq ynog
‘diysumo | seusjuoI4 YUoN ‘dIySUMO] SBUSIUOIS [BAUSY) 10 peyjun) aq Jou Aew Jng Buimo|jo) ey} sepnioul eale Juswiyoled OBUSIUOIS

Buisod vzoz Aenuep
6102 ‘1ov Buiijod pue A1ajes Apunwiwon) ay) 1apun suonenbay
1(MYO) Aiysibay Lioje|nBay s.oueup




0¢ Jo ¢ abeq uolIsiAlg Aoijod o1balens | |RleuR9) JCIDI0S S JO ANSILIW

Z sagjuioddyy je12ulA0lg

‘Angsaymen Jo umo] ‘diysume ] uejdweys ‘diysumo] 1ousbejue|d pue
payy (yoea aajejuaseades AUnwwod | jo uawjuiodde ayy Jo) s|qisuodsal ale JUSWYOEISP By} Ul SaUNWWo2 Bumojio) ayy e
€ :sjeag aanejuasalidsy Ajunwwo)

"YOBD JaquIaw |12unod | 1o juswyuiodde sy Joj |qIsuUOUsal S JUSWILDEISP SY) Ul SBRIUNWIWIOS Y
G :sjeag Jaquiagy HoUNoY

uonen a4y jo Anediounyy ‘AungsaymeH Jo umo] ‘diysumo] AngsaymeH jse
‘diysumo| uieidweys ‘'diysumo] jsusbejueld pue payly 103 paliwi] 24 Jou Aew Ing Buimaljos ay} sepnjoul eale Juawyaje) AngsaymeH

1 :S)eas Jaqualy pieog [ejol
| :so9juioddy |e1dulAosd

-aanejuesalsdal Qunuiwicd | ey jo wauguiedde auy 1) sjqisucdsal Aquiol aIe JuaWyIEIBP aY} Ul SONIUNWILIOD |y
| :sjeag aApRuasasdey Aunwiwo)

“JBQUUIBL OUNCD | 10 Juswuiodde au) Joj 3|qisucdsad i {ounos sen-1addn) uoungieH jo Awnog syl e
"UDED JaqUUBW ouncd | Jo wawjuiodde au 10} SiISU0dSal SR JUSLWIYIBIED Ay} Ul SBRIUNWILLOD Iy e
G :S]eaG JOGUIAY I9UN0D

1seg spueybily jo Ayjedioiuniy ‘diysumo sliH uapuiy
‘e 18 LesAq] jo Aledioungy ‘diysumo] spue|ybiy uinbuobiy 01 peyuil] aq jou Aew Jng Buimoilo} ay} Sapnjoul eale Judwyden Aunos uopngiey

7 'Sjeeg Jequialy pieog [ejol

| :saayuoddy je1oujacid

‘aARURSsaIdal Aunwwod | o Juauwgutodde ay) 1o} s|qisucdsal S| UONEN 1S4 UpRID maN |y Jo sebnessissiy e
"saAneuasaldal Alunwwos g jo uawuiodde ay) 104 ajqisuodsal s| puetlipleH 10 Ajuno) ayy e
¢ isjeag eanejuasasdey Ajunwwo)

“Jaquisl [19UNos | 0 Jusluulodde ayj 10} spqisucdsa) S| uoneN 1S4 Bipaln MaN ay) jo sebnessissiy e
*SIaqWSLL 1Unod Z o Jusunuiodde ay) Joj sjqisucdsal S) pUBWIPIEH JO AlUNO) Byl e
€ ISIEDT JHQWIR [12UNC)

uojeN
1814 JIpaIny MaN 8Y; Jo sebnessissiyy ‘pUBLUIPIEH JO AUNos 0} panwy| 3¢ Jou Aew Ing Buimo|o) syj Sapn|aul BaIE JUSLLIYDIETD) pueLlIpiEH

9} :Sje0g Joquio pieoq 1e10L

Bunsod vzoz Adenuep
610z ‘1ov bumniod pue A)gjes Apunwiwio?) ay) Japun suole|nbay
{(HN0) AnsiBay AiojeinBay s.ouejuQ




0¢ Jo g abed uoisialg Aatjod A1Bejens | [eisueg Jonolog syl Jo AnsiuiN

LI -sieeg Joquiol pieod [ej0L
Z 'sosjujoddy jejoulrold

*yoes sagejussaldal AQuUnwiwos | jo Juawiuiodde ay) 1o} 9|qisuodsal ale JUSWDEISP JU} Ul SSQIUNWLLCD Iy
£ :S1eag aApejuasasday Aunwiwoy

“yoea sIaquIswW Iouno? Z o Juaunuiodde auy) jo) ajqisuodsel aie JUBLUYZEISP BU) Ul SSUNWWICO |/ o
9 :Sjeag Joquiajy 19Uno)

yoeeg ebesepy
Jo umo] ‘diysumo] JejembBuuds ‘diysumo) maiest) 10} pajiwgg 3q jou Aew nq Buimoljo} ay) sapnjoul eale Juswiyaed JSSAA BIUOINH

0} :S)ees Jequa pieoq [eJo]
Z :saaoddy [e1douacad

‘seanejuasesdal Alunwwod Z ay) Jo Juswuiodde ay) Joj a|qisuodsal ARUIo[ aJe JUSWYIEISp Sy Ul SaNUNWWOD |y o
Z :sjeag aaneasaiday AQunwiwos)

‘ueiny yinos jo Agedidunpy ‘diysumo | uoinH YUoN

‘Alaquin] -S1Uo Jo Alfedioiungy ‘1se3 uouniH Jo Ajjedioiuniy 'Youapoo) Jo UMO] ‘UoInNH [BRua) Jo Ajljediouniy ‘1sjemanig
JO AjlediDiungy (YoB2 JAQUISLL IDUNe? | Jo Juaswjulodde ay) 1o} 2|qISUOdSal BB JUSWILDIEIDP Sy} Ul sapunwwod Bumolioy syl .
9 :§)eas JaguIBy [I2UNoD

uoIny Yinos Jo Ayedpunpy ‘diysumo ] uounH ypon ‘Ausquang
-SLIoW o Anediounpy ‘1se3 uoinH Jo Aedizunyy 'diysumo] HIIMOH ‘Yauspoc) JO UMe] ‘uoiny [eguas) Jo Agedidiunpy ‘isjeman|g
1o Altjedioiuniy ‘diIySUMO ] USOUBMEAA-SWIOGIOD)-PIBLYSY 0} pajiul] aq Jou Aew jng Buimo]jo} ay3 sepnjoul EaJE Juswydjed uoinH

9 :sjeag Jaquisiy pleog [ej0l
| :sovjuioddy jerauiacig

-seanejuasaides Apunwiwos Z Jo usuguiodde ay) Joj sjqisucdssl st eyoNSNN JOPINSIgaYL *
Z :s)ees aapejuasasdey Apunwiod

‘Uyoee Jequislu 19unod § Jo Jusunuiodde sy} Jo} 8iqisucdsal aJe JUBLIYDEISP A Ul SBIUNWILICS | e
€ 1S1e8g JAQUUBJN [IPUN0D

ejoNsniy
10 1S 'diysumo sAeg Jo SXET 'SfJIASIUNK JO UMO) 10} pajiwl] 8¢ Jou Aew Ing BUIMO||0) a4} SOPN|ILY BaJe JUSWIYDIED a[jIASiUny

01 :Sieag Jaqual pieog |230L

bunsod vzoz Aenuep
6102 ‘1ov Buionog pue Ajejes Apunwiwo?) 8y) sopun suoniejnboy
{(M¥M0) Ansibay Aloje|nbay s.ouejup




0g oL ommn_ uoising Aojjod a1Bajeays | [esauan) JONI0S SU) JO AlSIUIY

‘yoea aanejuasaidal AHunwiwo? | o Juswiuiodde ay) 10) 3|qisu0dssl 1. JUsWYIRIEP SY) Ul SBIUNWLIOY [y«
g :sjeag aanejuasasday Aunwwod

"YoBS J2qUIBL [12UN0D | Jo Juawuodde auy) Jo) SIqISU0dsal 2B JUSWYDEISP AU Ul SARIUNWILIOD [y =
8 :5)eag JaquIa |I2UNoy

diysumo |
Aalrep Al ‘yuad Jo umo] ‘diysumo) anbejuopy ‘s iddississipy jo umo] ‘diysumo] spuelybiH xreueq ‘diysumo] As|swi3 yuoN
-puowiwInI(] ‘8oe|d U0I9HED JO UMo] ‘diysumo] ypmyoag 0} pajiwi| aq jou Aew ing Buimo(|os sy} Sapnjou| eale Jusuysjes) Aunog yieue

1 -Sieag Jaquialy pieog [ejoL
2 'seajuioddy |elaunosd

‘saageuasalder Aunuued g ay) jo juawjuiodde sy Joy ajqisuodsal Aguiol aie Juswyoelap au ul S9IUNWWOS [y =
7 :sjeeg aAnejuasesday AJunwiwo)

“Jaquiaw [1ounod | jo Juswiuicdde ay) Jop gjqisuodsal s| LOREN 1S4 837 asnoyaseag
“Jaquisi [IDuned § jo Juswiulodde ayy so4 ejqisuodsal s diysumo | ALeSOW

“Jaquiswl 1aunod | jo Jusuiuiodde sy o) ajqisucdseal s) diysumo] uemeyoelep
“JaquIsw Founod | jo usunucdde sy 10 s|qisuodsa. s| diysumo) axeT] sepie
"SIOGUISW HOUNOY Z 40 Jusuiliodde ay) 1oy sjqisucdsal S| e)e] PUBPUIY JO UMOL )
-Jaguiaul Ipunco | jo uaunuiedde auy Joj a|qisucdsal si diysumo] Jsupnes)

1 :s)eag Jequwa [19uno)

uoneN Isii4 eye asnowsaeag ‘diysumo) Auesol ‘diysumo] uemasyoeiey ‘diysumo]
e JapueT ‘SYET PUBPMIY JO uMO] 'diysumo] Janjines) (o) pajiwij aq jou Aew yng Buimoljo) ayl sapnjou) ease Juswyde e puepny

LI :Sieag Jaquuaiy pieog (Bjol
Z seajuioddy [e1aulaolg

‘saaneuasasdal Qunwiwod Z au} Jo Juawulodde ay) Joj ajgisuodsal Ajuiof aJe JUSLWIYDRISP ay) Ul SSNIUNWIWOD Y
2 'sjeas aaneasaiday Ajunwwosn

‘diysumo ] asiouaq)ipn euoBny YUoN ‘(ayeT uaplon) uonen 1sii4 uebeussemyld o suinbuobiy ‘diysumo]

uinbuoBiy Yinos ‘diysumo] Aa|jea eysemepely ‘diysumo] spieyory pue AuebeH ‘diysumo] uejbey pue ysopud ‘diysumo )
As|[eA 2I34OUOY |OES JAGISW JIDUNOD | JO Jusunuiodde sy 10} 3qisucdsal aie JUSWIYDESP 3y} Ul safunwisod Bumoljoy 8y, e
1 :sjeag saquiajy [IDUn0D

diysumo] asopaqip euoBly UHON ‘(93eT uap|oD) uonep 1s114 uebeueemyld
Jo suinbuoBly ‘diysumo] uinbuoBly yinos ‘diysumo] Asjjea exysemepepy ‘'diysumo] spieyoly pue ApebeH ‘sojeqy ‘diysumo]
uelbey pue Y20puAii ‘eusprug ‘diysumo) As||eA arayouog 103 pajiwi| ag jJou ABw Ing Buimo(|o) 3y} SIPNjoUl BaIR JUWYIIED ao|e|ry

Bunsod $2og Aenuep
6102 ‘1ov Buniog pue Aleges Apunwiuon ay) Japun suonenboy
:(M¥0) Ansibay Alojeinbay s.ouejuQ




0¢ jo g abed uoisiag Ao1jod a1Bajeng | [e1eusD JONOIOS By) JO ANSiU

G :S)EdS JAqUIBl pieog |10
| :saajunoddy e1auiaold

aaRUasaldal AJunwwod | ay Jo wawjuodde ay) 104 3iqisuodsal Apuio] aie uawyseidsp ay) ul SSHUNWWOD |y e
| :sieag aAnejuasalday Aunwwod)

‘SIaquiBW IUNe? Z 10 Juawiuicdde sy Joj ajqisucdsal §1 UOYIBIBA JO UMD BY) e
“Jaquisty (19uno | Jo uewiwoedde au) Joy sjqisuodsad si diysumo| abpemnoyuery e
€ :S)eag JOqUIBY [12UN0)

uoyiRLEpy JO uMo ] ‘diysumo) aBpemnojueyy 103 paywi) aq Jou Aew Ing BuUIMO|O) Y} SAPN[OUI B3R JUAILYDIED) uoyjelepn

L} :Sjeag Jequisy pieog (301
Z :seejuioddy [e1oUIACIg

'saapeIuasaldal Aunuwwces Z auy Jo Jusunuiodde sy) Joy siqisuodsal Aguiof aie jusawydelap S Ul SINIUNWWOD [y *
Z :sjeas aanejuasauday Ajlunwwo?)

YorS JEqUISLU [19UNod | Jo Juswiuiodde ey} J0) a|qIsucdsal ale JUSWYORIEP St 1 SBRIUNWILICD Iy
1 151898 [19Uno?

sbeja
yodisap ‘diysumo | saxeT nespry ‘diysumo) Spuejs| puesnoy] ay) pue spas ‘diysumo) spuels] Seuajuold ‘diysumo| abuo
10 0J4 ‘diysumo] Aapn-umoppaqezig ‘diysume] suayly :0} pejiwy| @q jou Aew nqg Buimoljo] ay) Sepnjoul ease Juelydled) Aunon spaen

0 :512eS Jaquisy pJeog fe)0]

v :saapuioddy [e1oulacld

Bunsod 2oz Aenuep
6102 ‘19v Buioyod pue Ayajes Ayunwiwios) ay) 1spun suoneinbay
((NNO0) Ansibay AlojeinBay s .ouejup




0% 10 ¢ 2bed uoistal(] Ao1jod o16a3eayg | [eJsuRs) JONIIOS BY) Jo AlsSIUIp

G :Sjeas JaquIs| pJeog |el0L
| :saapuoddy [e1outAcld

‘aanejuasasdal Aunwwod | sy jo uswiuodde ayy 1oy aiqisuodsal S| AJUNOD HIOHON o
| :sjeag aAnejuasalday Ajunwwos)

‘S1aguIaLl I9UN02 ¢ 40 Wauguiodde ayy Joy s|qisucdsal s1 QunoD JjopoN e
¢ :Sjeag Jaquua (19Uno)

Aunoo yopop 03 papwi| 8q jou Aew jng Buimo|jo) aY) Sapn|dUl Bale JusLLIYDIRD Y|OUON

1 1S)easg Jagquway pieod [ej0
| :sasquioddy [ejauaodg

"aguaQ sauley] Jo Ajjedounpy sy) pue xess|ppi 1SemUInos Jo Alljledioiuniy ‘xesappi YHON

jo0 Ayredonyy ‘abeia Aingman ‘anuad xassippiy Jo Alljledisuniy ‘diysumoy ydinppig ueonT ‘diysumol a)edlep apiejRpy
:saAnellasasdal Aunwiwod Z au) Jo juaunuodde sy 1oy ajqisucdsal Auiof ale JUsLILDEIEP BY) Ul SAILUNUILIOD Blimolopay] e
Z :sjees aanejuasasday Aunwwo)

18gWIBW IDUnod | Jo Juawiuiodde ay) 10 a|qisuodsal S| anuan) sawey| jo Aediiunpy syl e
“JAQULAW IoUnod | Jo Juauguiodde ay) Joj ajqisuodsal s aaual) XISaPPIW Jo Aediunpy syl e
1aquIsw
1PBunod | jo usunuiodde sy 10y ajqisucdsa. Apuiof are xasaippyy IoN Jo Aedibiunpy sy pue diysumo] ydinppig uesny e
*Jaquiaw [Iounod | jo Juswyuiodde
au) 4o} ajqisuodsai Ajulof ale xasa|ppli 1Isemyinos jo Ajjlediounpy auy pue sbeia Angmsp ‘'diysumo] ajeniay apiejlspy e
¥ :S1eag JaquIBl [1I9uUno)

uoien

18114 sewey ] ay) Jo BpIdUQ ‘UOHEN IS114 Sawel| auy jo semaddiyd ‘ucen iy asemelaq-aasunpy ‘anuay) sewey] Jo Ayediounpy
‘Xasa3{PPIW 1S8MUINCS Jo Alfedoiuniy ‘xas3|ppI YHON Jo Aljedidiuny ‘abiejia Angman ‘aqua) xass|ppiy jo Ayjediounyy
‘diysumoj, ydinppig ueon ‘diysumo] sjedis|y spiejepy 03 pajiull eq jou Aew jnq Buimoljoj ayy sapn|oul ease Juswyayes Xasa|ppin

Bunsod +zoz Aenuer
610z 12V buiijod pue Ajajes Apuniuwos syl Japun suonenbay
:(MNO) AysiBay A1ojenBay s,oueuD




0t Jo 0L 0mmn_ uoisialg Aaijod oibajens | [eiauas JONDIOS a3 JO ANSIUIN

01 :sje0g laqUsl pieog |Bj0] |
Z ‘seajujoddy [e12ujA0ly _

"Yyoea aaneuesaidss Aunwiwed | jo Juswjulodde sy) Jo} a|qisuodsas ase JUSWYIBSP S} Ul SBIIUNWWOD Y e
¥ :s)eog aAnejuasasdey Apunwwor)

‘YoB® Jaquusl I2UNoD  JO Juawiuicdde su) 10} S1qISUodsal SR JUSWYDIBJSP 3y) Ul SOHUNWILLOD [ »
P :$Jeag JaqUIBR [IPUNo)

diysumo] weassg |
‘diysumo | eseusey ‘diYsumo] SJUoPaW-0I0 'BIIIUQ JO AlLD (0] pajiwil aq jou Aew yng Buimol|o) 8y} sapnjout eale Juswyses | =1[([/]e)

G :5)eas Jaquisly pleod |e1o]
| :saajuioddy |RIDUIACLY

‘aAlfejuasaudal Aunwwed | ayy jo wawjuodde ay) sof aiqisucdsas Ajulol aie JuawiyselBp SY) Ul SSIHUNWIWOS Iy o |
| :Sieag sanejuasasday Qunwwos

"YOBS Jaquuatl jounad | o Juawnuiodde syl 10} 3|qisucdsal ale JUSWIYIRISP Yy Ul S3NIUNLIWOD |y
£ :S)eag Jaquiay 19UNoD

yaswnaa |
M3N JO UMO] "diysumo| essT ‘diysSumo] onuoioso ] -efelpy :0) pajwy aq Jou Aew yng BUIMo]|0) aY) Sapn|ou) Bale JUaLIYIIeD ebesemenon

0l :sieag Jequialy piecg [230L
2 'seajuloddy |e1oujaoad

‘saajejuasasdal Aunwiwod Z ay) Jo wauquiodde ayy 10} ajqisuadsar ApUol aue JUSWIYDEIaP Y} U SSNIUNWILLIOD [y »
Z :sjeeg eageuesaidey Aunwiog

"UoleN isitd 3|SRplY

pue sjiiH Juai] jo Aylediolunyy ‘diysumo] uoyiwe 'diysumo syeiwes?) ‘uolybug jo Ayjediounyy ‘diysumol puewipieH/
WOIMUNY JYJBS JaguIaw [19unod | jo Juswiuiodde au Jo) aiqisucdsal ase ( Juawyoelep aut ul sspunwiwed Bumolol aly] e
g :5)eag JequIe [1ouUNo)

adoH Hod jo Ayjeddiuniy ‘ucheN isiig eaIepiy ‘siiiH wel ] jo Alledioiunyy ‘diysumo | uojiueH ‘diysumo] syewrs)
‘uojybug jo Ayjedoiunpy ‘diysumo | puetlipleH/ oMUY 0} pajiul] aq Jou Aew ng Guimo|jog ay) Sopnjou] Bale Juawiysen pPuepaquWINYUoN

Bupsod ¥zZoz Aenuep
6102 ‘1ov Buiijoq pue Ajeyes Apunwiwoy) sy} Jepun suoneinbay
:(MYO) AysiBay Alojeinbay s.oueju)



0€ JO L} abed uolsiAlg Adllod a1Bejens | e18UsD) JOUDNOS 81 JO ANSIUIN

7 :S)eas aapejuasaxday Aununuoes)

"SIBqISLL [IDUNod ¢ 8y} Jo Jusuiuicdde ay) 10 a|qIsucdsal 51 1SapA AUIND JO AYD e
€ :5JE9S JOqUIBK (I2UNo”)

1Sap4 SUIND JO A1D) 0} pajiwgy aq you Aew yng Buimo||oj ayy SapN|oul BaJe JUSWIYIIED 1S9/ SIUIND

G :S)eag Jaquisjy pieog ej0L
| :seajutoddy jeisuwacid

‘saAnejuasaldal AUnwiwod Z ay) Jo Juswiuicdde au) Joj 2|qisuodsal S| pJemp a2uld JO Aunoj eyl e
Z :sleag aanejuasaltday Ayunwwon

‘ssequIaLL |1DUNod Z ay) Jo Juswiuiodde ay) Jo} 31qISUcdsal S pJEMPT 80Uld JO AUNoD Byl e
Z :S18ag JaqUIBl JI9UNo)

pJemp3 89ulld Jo AUNoY) 03 pajwi| aq jou Aew tnq Buimo||o) 2yl SapNIaul BaJIe JUSWILDIE) Aunos piemp3 asuld

Sl :sjeeg Jaquely pieog Bl
¢ :saajuloddy |e1oulA0lg

‘seaneiuasasdal Ajunwwos ¢ ay) Jo uawjuodde ay) Joy sjqisuodsas Apuiof ale JUSWIYORISD B} Ul SSRIUNWILICD Iy *
¢ :sjess sanmuasasday Ajunwwo)

"o JOqLUBW Jounc? | Jo Juawiuiodde au) 10} 8|qISUCASa! BB JUSWIYIELED Yl Ul SBNILNUIICI (I
6 :S]eas JOqUWa |IoUNOD

uolieN Jsui4 @47 sAIND ‘UonEN JSUid BUleMEIH ‘seyen Juaz) jo Alediounpy
‘diysumo) uimjesg ‘'diysumo] ueybeuopy Uinog-aaqeuc) 'diysumo] eupemey yuoN ‘diysumo) usnuyispi-luow|ag-io0ieAeH
‘diysumo] sswwng-oino ‘diysumo ] poosmioN-jepoydsy 103 paywll 2q jou Aew Inq Bumo|jo) ay) Sapnjoul BaLe JUILIYIIED ybBnoloqisyed

g :S)eag Jaquial pieog |ejo)
Z :saajuoddy jeoujaosg

‘yoes salejuesaide) Apunwwos | o usunuodde ay) 10} s|qisuodsal ale JusWYIelap ay) Ul SAUNUILLIOD |IY  »
€ :sjeag aAnejuasatday AJunwwos)

‘yoea Jaquiaw 1Iounod | jo juaunuiodde ay) 10} iqISUOdSa) a1e JUSWILYDEISP SU) U) SONUNWILLIOD ||y
£ 151898 JAQUIAWY [19UNOD

yuad 1sapA Jo Ayjediouniy
‘diysumo) 1seg yuad ‘Yuad YUON 1o Ajlfedioiuny 1o} payiuwi aq jou Aew jng Buimo|jo} ay) Sapn[oul Eale Juawyoies) Auno) yuad

Buiisod ¥zoz Aenuer
6102 ‘1ov buiijog pue A)sfes Apuntiwor) ay) 1apun suoyieinbay
:(NHO0) AnsiBay Aiojenbay s.ouejuQ



0gijoZiL mm.wn_ uoisialg Ad1jod d1Bajens | [eisus JOUNOS BY) Jo ANSIUI

Z :saayuoddy |e1doulacld

‘saapejuasaidal Aunwwos ¢ ay) jo wawuiodde ayy Jo) s|qisucdsal AQUIo] )8 JUSWYIBISP SUY) Ul SAIUNWWOD |y e
£ :s)eag aAneussatday Aunwwos

YO JSqUISW ounod | Jo uaunuiodde ay 1oy 8|qisuodsal a1 JUSWILIEIAN S Ul SAIUNWWIOD ||y o
¢ 1$leeg Jaquspy (15UNoY

uoneN ay] Jo Aedidungy ‘diysumo
[[955Ny ‘puEpa0N-aoualel) Jo Al ‘abeIA uew|asses) (0} pajwi] 24 Jou Aew Jng Bumol|oy auy sapnjaul Bale Juawyaled Aunon lassny

L1 :5)eag Jaquisy pieog [ejolL
Z :seajuioddy [eIouIACIg

‘saAneILesaldas AJunwwos z ay) Jo jusuuiodde ay) 104 ajqisuadsas Afuiol ale JuswyoEap SY) Ul SSRIUNWIWICD |l
Z ‘sjeag aanpeluasalday Aunwwod

"YoBS JAQUBIU IOUNOD | JO Juswiiodde oy} 10} 9|QISuodsal )8 JUSWIYDEIED AU} 1 SSIIUNWILCD [y o
1 :S1e9g JAqUISly HOUNO0D

diysumo ] uoiBay Jajema)yps ‘diysumo ] Aspuciguoisewpy ‘diysumo] majusy ‘diysuma) spiseeig/qenow 'diysumo)
UOHOH ‘dIYSUMO] BYSEMEPE} Jeteals) ‘Joudusy JO UMO L 10} papiwi| 3q Jou Kew ng Guimo|jo) sy} sapn|dul eose Juswyses) mayuay

G :S)eag Jaqualy pieog [ejoL
| :seajuioddy je1oulacld

‘e pay Jo Auediiunpy sy pue diysumo] sped Jeg
'saAleIUasaldal AJUNWIWeD Z ay) Jo Juauwnuiodde ay 1o) s|qisuodsal ARuiol aie Juswyoejap sy} Ul S8RIUNWWOS Bumoliop syl e
Z 'sjeag aanejuasaaday Aunwwod

"@)eT pay jo Ayjediouniy ay) pue diysumo)
s|le4 183 :4yoea 1aquiaLl 1DUNOD | o Juswiuodde ayy oy 2|qisuodsal 1 JUAWYIRIAP S} Ul sajiunwwod Bumoloj syl e
Z 'Sjeas JaquIay j1ouno)

uonen isilJ
wnyiBueyid ‘a)et pay 10 Aupedidiunpy ‘diysumo) sjied Je3 :0) pajwil| aq jou Aew yng BUIMo||0) 34} SIPN|IUI BIIE JUBWYDIJED) ayel pey

L :51eag 13quIisy pieog [B10)

Z :seauioddy |eouiaoid

‘saanejuasasdas AQunwwod g ay) 1o Juswjuiodde auyy 10} s|qIsSucdsal SISO SIUIND JOAND »

Bunsod ¥zZoz Aenuer
6102 19V Buroiod pue fsjes Ayunwiwo?) ay) sspun suoneinbay
:(MYO) Ansibay Auojeinbay s.ouejuQ



0¢ jo £ abed uo|stalg Ao1jod 21Bajens | ([eieuag) OIS L Jo Ausiuiy

Z ‘seautoddy [e1ouiA0Lg

‘saanEjuesasdas Aunwwod Z au; jo Jusuguiodde ayy 1o} ejqisucdsal Apuiol ale Juswiydejap auy) Ul SeNIUNWWOD [y«
Z :sjeag sAnejuasalday Aunwwod

‘yoes Jaquisw |IPunod | Jo jusuiuiodde ay) 10} a|qisuodsal aie JUSLUYIEBP aY) Ul SBIIUNLIWIOS Y o
G :S]1E9S JAQUIB HOUNOD

aonig ynosg Jo Apjedipiungy ‘sulpiesury jo Apjedpiungy 'diysumo] SSojuly-UoINH
‘uopia0ig Jo Ayjedioiunpy ‘aljsiapi3-uely jo Ajedicunyy (0} pajiwl aq jou Aew nq Buimoljo] sy} sapn|aul ese Judwydje) annig yinog

G !S)eag Jaquisy pieoq [e1o]
| :seajuloddy |el1oUIADSH

-aAnejussasdal Aununuod ¢ jo Juswuodde a4y} Joj alqIsucdsal s1NoYooT XNOIG Jo Aljediiungyy e
‘aafejuasaldal Aunwwod | Jo Juswiuiodde sy) Joy a|qisuodsal s) diysumo) aye apiold e
Z :S)eag aAnejuasasday Apunwwoe)

“laguiaw unod | jo Juasunuiodde ay) Joj ajqisuodsal s1N0X007 XNoIG Jo Ajjedidiunpy e
19qUIBWI IPUNoY | Jo uswiuodde auy 1o) s|qisuodsal s diysumo | syeq epdld e
Z 15)eag JaquIdR |1Duno)

(@xe7 1nos Big) vonep 1si14 Bnmnuiuug
qisooyABIyNUALYIIY ‘uoleN 1SN Bxayadeps ‘uoneN 1sii4 uimadexemen ((axe] punoy/mowebeaps) Uonep 1sii4 @] Noqued
YUON 'INox00T Xnoig Jo Aljedioiunpy 'diysumo) a3eT apiaid 03 pajiwi] aq Jou Aewl ing Buimo)|o) ay) sapnioul BaJe Juswysies INOHC0T] XNOIg

§ 'sjeeg Jequely pieog [BjOL
L :seajujoddy |[ejoujaold

‘aanejuasaidas Alunwwos § jo auguiodde ey 10) ajqisucdsad s1 diYsumo) | PPY U2epIaqy 8 UNPaJal 'Pleucpolely e
-aanejuasaldal AQunuwiwog | jo suguiodde sy o) s|gisucdsal §1 diysumo} pre ] e
Z :Sjeag sAapejuasalday Ajunwion

“Jaquiaw [IDUnos | Jo Jualuiodde ay) Joj e|qisucdses 51 diUSUMO] |,pPY USSPIaqY '@ UNPaIa ‘PlEUCPIBY
"Jaquiaul [1Iouno? | Jo Jusuguiodde auy) 10} qisucdsal 51 dIYSUMO] pIRT  »
7 [SIERG ISqUIBR JI5UNOY

uoneN 18414 9910 aIqeuessily ‘euemayaleq o sAemglio ‘diysume |
LPPY UaapIeqY B YIPSIa ‘pleucpaely ‘diysumo] pile (o) pajiwi| aq jou Aew ng Buimot|oj Sy S3PNjoUs BaIR JUIWLDIED auen 9)S INES

6 'S)eas JsqWIa pleog |Bl0L

Bunsod vyzoz Aenuer
61027 ‘1oV Buioijog pue Ajgjes Apuniwion) ay) Japun suoneinbay
(NY0) AnsiBay Aiojeinbay s.oueuO



0¢ Jo ) obed uoisialg Aaljod MBajelg | [e1ousD Joyol0S By) Jo AnsiuN

G :S)eag JAQUIAW pieog [B10L
Z s9vuoddy je1suiacad

"aAleiuasaldas Apunwwoa | 8y} jo wswuodde ayy so ajqisuodsal si (jlouno Aunoy) AueBugis pue sepung JUOULIOIS B o
L :sieag aAanejuasasday Ajunuwiwoe)

"SIBGWIBL [IDUNoD g 10 Juawjuodde ay) oy ajgisuodsal si (lounos Hunon} Auebuals pue sepung ‘JuowIo)g syl e
Z s)eag JaquIaly [Iouncd)

sepung] Yinog jo Aediounpy ‘diysume) Juowuols yinog ‘diysumoj AueBusis) yinog ‘diysumo] Juouwiolg Auebualg
yuon ‘diysumo] AueBusisy ypop ‘diysumo] Sepung YUON 10} paylwi] aq jou Aew 3ng Buimo||o} syl Sepnjaul ease Juawydied pue sepungg JUoWIOIg

g 1S)eeg JaqLuefy pieog [eI0L
Z seauioddy [elouiaoag

‘angejussaldas Qunwwod | jo Jusuuiodde ay) 1o} ajgisuodsal s) sjed sionbol| JOUMOL e
‘aAnejURsaldal Auununued | jo jusunuiodde ayp 10y sjqisuodsal s1 diysumo) uosayiey-IsAlY Yorlg .
Z :sieas aaneuesasdey Aunwuwio)

slaquiaw Z Jjo Jusunuiodde ay) 1o) a|qisuodsad s S|4 sionbol| Joumo) e
*SIBGLUBLW [IDUnod Z Jo juswuiodde ay) Joj siqisucdsal s1 diysumo| uosayiep-1oaly yoelg e
¥ :5)eag JAqIBl |1oUno)

uonen 1s114 yadeupiuy Windy ‘uopen 1sil4 1504 Buldly
‘slle4 sionboi| Jo umaj ‘diysumo| uosauyie-IaAly Yoe|d (o) pajiwi| aq Jou Aew inq Guimoljo) Ay} SIPNOUI BIIE JUIWIYIIED asuidnaiog ynog

€| :SIE3G JaqUID| pieog jejo}
¢ :seauioddy |e1pulacly

‘yoea aagejuasaldal Aunwwiod | Jo usunuiodde ayy Jo) a|qisuodsal aie JUSWIYOBIEP a4} Ul SBRIUNWWOD Iy o
G :sjeag aaneuasaiday Ajunwiwiosn

"YoBa Jaquisw jouncd | Jo Jusunuodde sy} 1o} 2|qIsuodsa. sie JUSWLIEISP BUI Ul SANIUNUWIWIOD 1Y @
¢ 1S]ESG JAqUIBH N19UNOY)

diysumo) Aeg uenbioss ‘diysumo) Aull
‘diysumo] Ae ‘auaysinBuejauad Jo UMO] ‘PUBIPIN JO UMD 103 pajiwl] aq jou Aew Jng Buimoj|o) ay) Sapnjoul ease Juawyoes Aeg uelbioag yynog

6 :Sjeas Jaqualy parog (€10

Bunsod ¥zoz Aenuepr
6102 ‘1ov Buiijog pue Ayeges Ajunuiwoy ay) Jspun suoneinbay
:(MH0) Ansibay Aiojeinbay s.ouejuQ



0¢€ jo G| abed uoisiag Aaljod 3169jens | [e18USD JONDIOS AU} jo AiisiLgy

T} ‘5)ess Jequis|y pieoy [&0)
Z :saaqunoddy je1oulacsg

'saAneUasaldal Ajiunwiwoo Z ay) Jo Juaunuiodde ay; Joj ajgisuodsal ARuof aJe JUBWLYIEISP ) Ul SARIUNWIWIOY (Y *
Z :5)eag aaneuasasday Aunmuwo)

"yoes Jequis [1aunos |, Jo Juswiuiodde ay) 10} 3|qisuodsal aie JUSWYDE)SP Y) Ul SBUNLIWIOS |y o
g :51eag Jaquuiay Iounoc?)

uoneN
18414 18|U] AeaualH ‘auo)sapyal o Aufedioungy ‘diysumo) obejadiyory ay] ‘digysumo] uinBag ‘punog Aued Jo umo} ‘diysumoy
1e[ayoW ‘Iebnogow Jo Aediounpy ‘diysumo] Buipen) 0y pepwu) eq jou Aew jng Buimo(jog ey} sepnjou| esJte Juswiyajes punog Aued 1SeM

G :Sjeag Iaqua pieoq |ejo]
1 :saaquoddy [EIDUIACIY

"aaneuasaldal Aunwwos awy o Juawiuiodde ay) Jo) sjqisuodsal si {(lounon Auno) uolbulleas .
} :sjeag saneluasalday Aunuwos

‘Slaquiaul I2UNod ¢ 3 40 Jusunuiodde sy 1oy sjqisucdsal si {1puno) Auno)) uoiBuljaps e
¢ !S}eag Jaquagy [12uno)

diysumo| yuoN uciBuljiaa ‘diysumo] yauiisngd ‘o 1o umo] ‘diysumo) ucaidepy ‘'diysumo)
esowelsgydiens ‘uu3g jo umo] ‘diysumo) uolBulaps S4uas) (01 palI 8¢ Jou ABwW INg BUIMO|(0) 8Y) SBPN|SUI BSJR JUsIYDIRD uo)Buniam

6 :S1eag Jaqiualy pieog jejol
Z sagjujoddy je12uInclg

‘saanejuasaldal Aunuwod Z 10 juswiuodde ay) Joy sjqisuodsal Apuiol ale Juswyoeiop ayl i SSNIUNWWOD |ff  »
Z :sieeg aanRuasarday funuwuoy

*diysumo ] Jaary SIUA ‘BmepA JO Atedioluny ‘diysumo] suAedawoy ‘diysumoy sjainasgng ‘diysumo)
neajdeys 1yoes JaquUatu founod | Jo juaunuiodde auy Jo) ajqisucdsad aue JuswydeIap ay) ul sapiunuWoD Bumoor sy e
G :S)ees Jequisly |Iouno)

uonep isii4 auAedaulol ‘uonep 1sdig uatondiyony ‘diysumo] JeAly aUAA ‘BMBAA Jo Allediounpy ‘diysumo]
sudedawwoy ‘diysumo] sppainaigng 'diysumo] nesjdeysD ;o) peyiwi] od Jou Aew Ing Suimo]io} oY) S6pnjou| eale JUsuiysies 1se3] Jowadng

Bunsod vzoez Aenuep
6102 ‘1ov Bunog pue Algges Aunwiwion ay) 1apun suopenbay
{(4y0) Ansibay Auojenbay s,0LBIUQD




0¢ 10 9| abey uoisialg Aa1jod 21Bayeng | [BIBUSS) J0)IN0S BY) JO ANSIUIN

"SI9qQUIBL JOUN0D g 2L} JO JUSUNuIodde auy 10} ejqisucdsal 5| diysumo] aoeul| e
Z :sjeag Joquay |1ouno)

uonepN 1514 usabnesg ‘diysumo] aoeub| seasy JusIyeD gjoz uspiuqg

G :S)eeg Jaquia|y pleog [Ejol
I :saaujoddy fe1oulrold

‘sAnEIURsalda) AIunwwod | ay jo waunuiodde ayy Jo) ejqisuodsal siuspliQ o AiD oyl .
| :Sieag aanRyuasasday Alunwiios

‘SJeqUIBW [[DUNO2 € JO Juawjulodde ay) Jo) sjqisucdsal st uspligjo QIp eyl e
£ Sjeag JAQW [IDuUnc)

uspAl(] JO A ealy Juawysjen £10} uapAq

G :S)eas Jaquiajy pleod |E10]
| :seaujoddy [eroutaold

‘saanejuasaldas Aunwwos Z ay) jo uaunuiodde sy 10} ajqIsuodsal S1 SUIBJUNOR N|E 3YL JO UMO] BY] «
Z :sjeag aAnejussalday Kunuiwos

-SI2quWIaW [19uUN0D Z 2y} Jo Juswiuiodde ay) 1o} sjqisuodsas S| SUBIUNOW BN(Y U JOUMO) BY| e
Z 1SJEaS JACUIBY [IDUNOD

SUIZJUNO BN|g 841 JO UMO] Baly JUBIYDIED Zwz poombBuijjon

G :SJeag JOqIB|y pieog [Bj0]
L :saapuoddy jeiouaosg

‘sanneuasaldal ApUnWIWoS Z ay) Jo Juaswiulodde ay) 1g) s|qisucdsal s1 poombBuylo) Jo UMOL BY) e
Z :sjeag aanejuasasday Ajunwwio)

*SJ3qWIAW [I2UN03 Z 8y) JO uaunuiodde ay) 10) a|qisucdsal 5| poombBulioD) Jo umoL Byl e
Z S1EIS JAQUIBH [15UNOY

poomBul|o7) JO uMO] (BaIY JudWYIIe) clol poombBuloo
spieog
uonduoaseq Jo Jaquuny usuiyde)eq

(61 40 61 1e}OL) Spieog JuewydE}dd ‘d'd’'O FHOW O OML YIMm siuswyoeleq 'd'd'O gl

Bunsod vzoz Aenuep
6102 ‘10v Buisyod pue Alojes Apunwiwior) ay) Japun suoneinbay
(MYO0) AnsiBay Aioyenbay s.ouryup



0€ J0 2} 8bed uoisiAlg Ad1jod 21Bajeng | [BI0USS) J0IDICS 2Y) JO ABSIUIN

diysumo] exeleles) 1Se3 ‘A3j[eA PUBIS JO UMO ) ‘dIYSUMO | JJUBIBWY TBB.Y JUaWIYIIED viog uuayng

1 'sjeag Jaquisly pieoq |0l
L :sadjujoddy |e1ouiaold

‘saANBuSSadal APUNWWos ¢ sy} Jo Juswiuiodde ay) 10} 8|qISU0dsal S| SUINGRYS JO UMO] ayl =
¢ :sjeag aanejuasaidey Apunwwon

“s1aquiswl [I9unod ¢ ay) Jo Jusuiuiodde au) 10) s|qIsuodsal S| BUINYBUS JOUMO | BY| =
£ 1s)eag Jaqual [1IDuno)

BUINGIBUS JO UMD (BalY JUSWIYDIED vioz uayng

9 :Sjeag Joqusiy pieog |BjoL
L :sesjuicddy |eIoUIAOIg

‘saanejuasaldas Aunwiwos ¢ ay) Jo Juswyuiodde sy) Jo) a|qiIsucdsal s appasbueiD Joumo)] Ayl e
€ :sjeag aanejuasaldsy Aunwwos

"SIsquIaL [1IUN02 Z 94Y) 10 Juauuiadde ay) Jog sjqisuodsal s) afinsbueln) jJo umo) Byl e
7 :Sjeag Jaguiajy [Iounos

alnabugIO J0 UMD tedsy Juaiuyded $J0 1 uuayng

G 15)e9S Jaquiepy pieog |&30]
| :saajuioddy je1SuUIAGId

“saApeIuasstdal Ajunwiuios g sy Jo Jusuguiodde s 10} sjqisuodsal s| diysumo UIyoepy .
Z :S)eoq aAnejuasasday Aunwwos

*slaguieLd [Iounod Z ay) Jo Juswuiodde sy Joy ajqisuodsal S| diysumo] uIyoepy e
Z 1SJeag JaquIa [12UN0)

diysumo] LIyde ealy JudydIe gjog uapiug

G :5)eag Jaquiay pJeog [e10]
} :saajuloddy |e1oulArold

-saAnejuasaidal Aunwwod z ay) Jo uswyuiodde ay) Joy ajgisuodsas s diysumoy aseul] e
Z 'Sjeag aAnejuasasday Aunuwwuoe)

Bunsod vzog Aenuer
6102 ‘19v Buioyjod pue Aajes Apunwwiosy ayy Japun suoneinbay
1(4Y0) Anysibay Auojeinbay s.ouejup




0gio gl 0mmn_ uoIsIAIg Ad1j0d 21Baje.s | |RJRURS) JOUDIOS BY] Jo AnSIUI

¢ :5)eeg JaquIal [I2UNOY

uoneN 1sd14 JaAny Juadiag
‘uoneN s ebnessissipy ‘ysiuedsg J0 umo) m..o.._w YHON &yl Jo diysumo] ‘19Aly pullg JO UMO ] Jealy Jusluy:eD gjozg mEom_< 1se3
9| -sjeag Joquialy pieod jejol |
€ :seojujoddy [e1oula0ld |
'sSaAlejuasaldal
Aunuwos ¢ ayy Jo Jusuiuiodde ay) Jop a|qisuodsas Ajuiol ale JUBWYILISP Sy Ul SSRYIUNWWCD |y »
£ :sjeeg aanejuasasday Aunwiwo)
‘UojESSEL | JO UMO] 8 pue
$9I0YS uoINH Jo AfediDIuniy 'SBUIY BoNIg JO UMC] [BUCRIPPY Jawiwn|d Jo diysumo] ‘yoeag ucy jo abe|ia
‘ydesor 1S Jo diysumo] ‘uciiH Jo diysumo | ‘uAjaaor jo diysumo] ‘uosuyof Jo diysumo] ‘pngie) jo diysumo ]
yoea JaquIawl [I9Uno9 | Jo Juswiuodde auy o) Sjqisucdsal ale JuaWwydEap su ul samunwwoed Buimooj syl e
01 :Sjees Jaquie [1oUno)
UOIEN 18114 UO[BSS3U ] ‘UOESSAY] JO UMO ) ‘SaI0ys uoiny
Jo Ayjedioungy ‘seuny aonug JO UMC] ‘[EUCIIPPY Jewwn|d jo diysumo] 'ydoeag uoliH Jo abeia ‘ydasor 1§ 10 i
diysumo} ‘uojii Jo diysumo ‘uA|eoor Jo diysumo] 'uosuyor Jo diysumol ‘Ungel Jo diysumol Jealy Juswmiyolegy | £40 4 euwoby 1se3
1 :sjeag laquay pseog |eyo
| :seajujoddy [e1duIAcLd
‘yoea aallejuasaldal AJunwwos | jo Jusuwiuiodde ay) 1oy s|qisuodsal aie JUSWYILISP Buy) U SBIUNWWIOD Iy
£ :sjeas aajejuasasday Ajunwwon
‘yoBS JAQUUIBW [IDUNDY | JO uswiuodde ay) Joj 9|qISUOASS) SJe JUSWYIEISD BU) U] SINIUNWWIOD |Iy =
€ 1SJeaS JAqWIRY [19UNOD
dIYSUMO ] JInWNY "OUO JO UMC] ‘dIUSUMO ] UOLIIUE|3N Jealy Juswydije) vioy uuayng

1 1$jeag Jaquiapy pleog [ejo]
| :seajuloddy je1dulAcId

‘yoea aaneussaldel AUNwWwos ¢ jo Jusuguiodde sy} 10) syqisucdsal aie JUsWYOEEP SY) Ul SSIHUNWWOS Y«
¢ :sjeag saneuasasday Ayunwwes

"YoBa JagquiaW |1ounod | Jo uswiuiodde sy} 1o} 9|qISUCOSa) aJe JUSIYIBISP SY} Ul SAJIUNWIOD |IY
¢ 1SjeeS JaqWa [1oUNoY)

Bunsod $z0z Aenuer

6102 19V Buialod pue A1eges Ayunwiwon sl Japun suonenbay

{NN0) Ansibay fliojeinbay s .oueju)




0¢ Jo 61 abed uoisiag Ad1jod diBajens | |eseuad Jojolog auy Jo Ansiniy

"aalejuasaidal Aiunwwiod | jo uawguiodde sy Joy ajqisuodsas ) uojbuiwes jo Apjedisiuniy oyl e
‘aAlpeluasalda) Qunwwod | Jo juaunuicdde ay) Joy ajqisucdsal si aasBu JoumoL Byl e
¢ sjeag sanruasalday Ajunwiwon

"YIES JEqUISW [12UN0d | 10 Juswiuodde ay} Joj SqISUCSa) SJE JUSLIYILISP Sy} Ul SAIUNLILIOD (I e
¥ :5)29C JAQIBW POUNOD

uonen J1siid [[amplen ‘aajed 10 diysumo] ‘ucibuiuean jo Aujediounyy ‘eIpasbuny JO UMO] lealy JuaWYReD oz Aunon xass3

6 :S1B9S JaquIdly pJeog |Rjol

Z :sedjuioddy jerouiaoed

"aAneUasaIda) Aunwwod | 1o Jusunuiodde ay; Jo) sjqisuodsas Apuiol ale JUSLWILORIAP BU) UI SAIUNWILLOD ||y
‘yoea aafeuasaldal Ajlunwwod | Jo juswiuiodde ay) 10§ 3|qisucdsal ale JUSWYIESP aY) Ul SAIUNWWOD |IY  »
¥ :sjeag aaneuasasday Ajunwwon

"YOB JAqUIBW [I2UN0D | 0 Juswiuiodde iy 10 9|qISUdSal SIB JUILULIBISP SY) Ul SAILUNWWCD |
€ :s)eag JaquIa [12UN0S

Yaswnoa| Jo umao] ‘sloysaye Jo Ajedisiungy ‘XessT JO UMO] Baly JUaWIIe?) rALNR Aunog xass3

G s)eag JoqUa pieog |E)OL
} :seayuioddy [e1oulACId

‘saafejuasaldal Ayunwiod Z su) Jo Juawjuiodde ay) Joj ajgisucdsal s|ajejofF o AU ayL e
¢ :sjeas aanvuasasdey Hunwwo)

*slaquiawl ;Iunos Z au jo juawiutodde ay) Joy ajqisuodsal s aye oI 0 DByl e
Z :SIBaS JAqUIBW |I2Uno)

9YE7101113 JO AND SUL ‘ealy JuowydleD gi0¢ ewoBly ise3

1 :5jeag Jaquialy pieogq |ejol
} :sasjujoddy [eloujAcsd

"ysiueds JO UMO] Syl pue 2J0ys UUON ay] Jo diysumol ‘19ARy puljg JO UMO] (UoBS SAnejuasaldal
Aunwiwos 3 Jo uawyuiodde ay) 10) s|gisuodsel ale Juawyseep ay) ul saiunwwo uimoloy sy .
£ :s)eag aanejuasarday Qunwwon

‘Ysiueds Jo UMD BU) pu’ 3J0YS YUON Y1 Jo diysumo] JSAY puUllg JO umo]
Iyoea Jaquiaul [punod | Jo Jusunuiodde ay) 10) s|qisuodsal a1 JUSWLOEISP L) Wl SaunWuod Bumoliojay) e

Busod vzoz Aenuer
6102 19V bunijog pue Ajgies Ayunwiuos) ay) Jepun suoienbay
(4 0) AnsibBay Auoje|nbay s.ourup




0¢ Jo gz abed uoisialg Aaljod d1Bejeng | [eisuag JOKNOS 8y} Jo AnsIUIN

G :S)eas JoqWIIN pieog (B0l
| :seajuioddy [e1DuUIACIg

aAneuasaldal Apunuwod | ey jo juauiuicdde ay) 1o) isundsal $115189H JO UMOL 8] e
| :sjeag aanejuasalday Aunuiwos

“Jaguuaul 1ounod | jo Juswiulodde ay) Joy sjqisucdsal §1 8100 SjeA-aNen Jo diysumo] .
‘slagquiawl (IDunod Z Jo juswiulodde sy) Joj 9)QISUOTSDI S1 1SIBBH JOUMO] BY] e
£ :s)eag Jaquiay [1ouno)

9107 [eA-00IE 10 dIYSUMO] 'JSIESH JO UMO] Baly jJuawydies clol Aeg sower

g ‘sjess JoquIs|y pieog |11
Z :sasjuioddy je1dulacag

‘yoes aapejuasaldas AJunNwwo | Jo Juswiuiodde auy Jo} S|qISUCdsal ale JUSWILDEISP SUJ Ul SSIIUMLWOA |y =
¢ :sjeog sAneyuasasday MQlunuiwon

"yoea JagLus 19unad | jo Jueunuiodde ay) oy sjqisucdsal a4e JUBLIYDRIED AY) Ui SOIUNWLWIOD [y o
€ 159G Jaquuap [12Unon

100S3ld JO Umo] 'diysumo] [euipsen/ubingspuemp] ‘diysumo} esnbny ealy Juawysjes Z2i0¢ aj|lauaIS)

6 :SiEag J2quiay pleog [Ej0L
Z :seajuioddy [eroutaoiyg

‘saAnRUasSaIdal AJunwieo z Jo usuguiodde ay) to) sjqisuodsal s| abBejia pIOJOM-DIIANOWSY e
‘saAlejuasaldal Aunwwos ¢ Jo Juswiundde ay) o) aiqisucdsal sy ajjlausIS) YUON jo Amedidiunpy 9yl e
G :s)eas aapejuasalday Ajunwiod

"YoBa JBquIaW IZUnod | 10 Juswuiodde sy) 1o ajqisucdsal a1 JUSWYORISP S W SANIUNILIOD |IyY  *
Z 15)eas JAqUIAR [I9UnoD

9BEIlIA PIOJOM-BIIANOLISI ‘BIiAuaIS YLON 40 Ajljediolunyy tealy Juswysies 2101 a|lIAUBID

§ :S)eag Joquial pleog |ejol
Z 'saquoddy [eloulaolg

‘8j88d Jo diysumo | sy} pue ucibuiwea jo Aledipuniy ‘SlAsBury Jo umo] dAnBUSSaIdRl
Aunwiwos | Jo wauuodde ay) Joj ajqisucdsal Apuiof 218 JUSWYDEIER a4 Ul SARIUNWIWOD Bumojojayl o

bunsod vzoz Aenuepr
6102 1oV Buriod pue Ajgjes Apunwitios) ayy Japun suonejnbey
{MYO) Ansibay Arojeinbay s.oueup




0¢ Jo LZ ebed uoisialg Ad1jod o1beleng | [e1susg Joy10g 8y} Jo Ansiuing

‘slagquiawl [1punod g sy} jo Juawuiodde ay; Joj ajqisucdsas s diysumo| sjje JOJSBN-SMOLBN XNOIS  «
Z ‘Sjeag Jaquay [Iounod)

diysumo S|ie- JO)SSN-SMOLIEN XNOIS BRIy Juatuydje) Zioz BIOUSY

. 'S)ees sequiapy pieoy [E}0L

| :saajutoddy |ejoutaolyd

*saAnejuasardal Aunwwod ¢ ay) Jo Juawijuiodde ayy Joj s|qisucdsal S| BIOUINM JO AD BUYL e
£ :Sjeag aAeuasaiday Aunwwos

*Slagual lounod ¢ ay) Jo Juswjuiodde ay) Joj a|qisuodsal S| BIOUSY Jo AjID BYL e
€ :5)eag Jaquinly [12unc)

BI0USY| JO AD) (eaUy JualYIeD Zjoi BIOUDY

G !s)eag Jaquusy pieod jejol
1 :seajuroddy je1duiacsd

‘saanejuasaldal Apunwiwwos z auy) Jo Juawuiodde ay) Joj a|qisucdsal S1 aUBIYI0T) JO UMD ] By
Z :sjeag aanejuasasday Ajunwwos

JAgUaL [IoUNod | O Jusuiguodde ay) 1o} 9|QISUOdSal §| SUBIYDOD) JOUMOL AL+
“Jaguiaw Iounoa | 0 juswiulodde ay) Joj 2|qISUOASS) SI S|je Y00 YIOOWS JO UMO] ay] =
7 :51e9g JOqUIB (19Uno)

S3UOSO0N 10 UMO] 'SURIYDOT O UMD 'S4 320N YIOOWS JO UMD (Baly JudWIydjes cJog Aeg sswer

0l :sileag JaqLuap pieog |€jo]
¢ :saaquioddy |e1dsulaold

‘saAlejuasaldal ApunuiwcD Z ay) Jo Juaunuiodde ay) 10y siqisuodsal A9|0s sI Buiseysndey Jo umol ay) e
Z :s)eas aanejuasalday Ajunwuwon

‘PUBPIIS

-1ainbne4 Jo diysumo ] au} pue wesquoop Jo diysumo] 'ApeH-eny |ea jo diysumo] ‘exypesedo jo diysumoy
1yJEa Jaquiaw |12unod | Jo Juawjuiodde sy} Jo) 2|qisucdsal aJB Jusawyoelap AUy U sanunwiwod Buimolior sy e
"Sjeas Jaquiaw [1Iaunod Z Jo Juswijuiodde ay) Joj sjqisucdsal s| Buiseysndey Jo umo] 8y e
g :S)eag Jaqual (12uno)

puepmS-1snbne Jo diysumo) ‘Weaquociy
10 diysumo] ‘AuepH-euY |BA JO diysumo] 'exnesedq 3o diysumol ‘Buiseysndey o uMO) (BalY JUSWIYdIe) £ljoz Aeg sswep

Bunsog pzog Aenuer
6102 ‘1ov Bunjog pue Aypjes Apunwiuos ay) Japun suonenbay
:(MYO0) Ansibay Aiojeinbay s.ouejuQ




0¢ Jo ZZ obed uolsialg Adjjod a1aiens | [esausg Joudlos auy) Jo Ansiuly

G 15)eag JAqUIBN pleog [B)o)
} :saaquloddy je1ouaold

‘saapeLasaida) AUnwwe z ay o Juawuiodde ay) o) s|qisucdsal st abeia plempgulod e
Z :sieag aapeuasaiday Aunwwo)

"SIAQWBW |IDUNOY Z By} 40 Juswiulodde ay) Joj ajqisuodsai s) abe|ia plempiuod e
Z :SIBaG JAqUUa [12UNo)

abe|ip plemp] U0 jeduy Juawiyoyen rA A uojque

0} :Sjeag Jaquiajy pleogq [B10]
Z 'seauioddy [el1outAcld

‘saAleIuasaidal
Ajunwiwon z ay) Jo waunuiodde ay) Joy ajqisucdsal Aguiol aie JuBWYOERISP 8Y) Ul SSNIUNWILIOS Iy
Z :sjeag aaejuasalday Ajlunwiwon

“JI2QUIBLL IIUNGD | Jo Juawiuiodde ay) 10y ajqisuodsal s diysumo] JIB[D IS e
“Jaguiaw Isunod | jo jusunuiodde ays Joj sqisuodsal st BulwoAp-uoidwihld Jo umo | ayl e
"Jaquiaw {1ounod | Jo Juswjuiodde au) Joj ajqIsu0dsal Si BIIOJRd JO UMD Ay e
"19qUIBW [1oUN0D | JO
wawyuodde ay) 4oy sjqisucdsas Aguio] s1e diysumo] uagisiuug pue sbuudg 10 ‘diysumo] elwaydng-umeq e
RIS [IUno9 | 10 uauguiodde ayy Joj ajqisucdsal §) sauoyg uojque jo Aledisiunpy sy .
*JAQIBW |1DUN0D
I 0 wsuyuiodde ay) Joj ajqisuodsal Ajuio] a1e diysumo | HOIMIBAA PUB UCISUIARY-300Ig Jo AjjediDiunpy ay]  «
9 :5)eag JAQUBY |12UN0YH

{Nd pueis| sjodiean) Aojue] Buouemiayg ‘diysumo] yovuean 'diysumo] Jied IS
‘BunuoAp-uojdufld Jo umo] ‘eljollad 4o umo) ‘diysumo] usiysiuulg pue abea ‘sbuudsg 10 ‘ssioyg uojque jo
Auediungy ‘diusumo ) ua|msiuug ‘diysumo] erusydng-umeq ‘uoisulaly-axoo.g o Ajlediuniy (ealy Juswysied oL uoyquieT

G :S}eag JaqUIB|N pieog [BI0L
) :saauioddy [elouacld

‘seaneIueseldes Aunwweos g ay3 Jo waunuodde ay) Joj ajqisucdsal 51 dIYSUMO] S|jB JOISON-SMOLIEN XNOIS
Z :$leag aanejuasasday Ajunuwmon

Bunsod vzog Aenuer
6102 1oV Buijod pue Ayajes Apunwiwion sy Japun suoneinbay
H(MN0) Ansibay Aiojenbay s.ouelu0




0g Jo £Z afed uolIsIAIg Ad1jod 2169 s | [B1ausS) 10)2110S aU) JO AlsIUIN

‘sSaaljeluasaidal
Aunwwos g sy 4o waunuiodde ayy 10y s|qisucdsal Ajjuiof aJe JUBWIYIEISP U} Ul SAINUNWWOD ||y
Z :sieag aanejuasaidey Qunwwos

“lagquiaul jounod | jo uawijuiodde ay) Jo) 3|qisucdsal s SpPUBS| 3] pue UlnOjIUe WBISESYUON JO UMO]| e
“JaquIauwl [Iounod | Jo Juswiuiodde ay) Joj s|qisuodsal §| Aeg 9109 JOUMO| BUE e
JaqIBW [PUnoy | Jo usunuiodde ay) Joj B|qISUOdSa) S1 ulnojluey [euad Jo Ayjediounpy Byt e
“Jaquiaw |1ouno? | 4o sunuiodde ay) Joy ajqisuodsas Apuol
ale diysumo) sjiW pue aading pue diysumol PUB{S| LINGY0D ‘PUB(S| SMIEg UopIog) Jo Alediounpy ayt
Jagquew
[12unod ) jo Wauuiodde ay) J0p a|qisucdsal Apuiol aie diysumao | Yyewwnyya] pue diysumo)] yoeulbissy
g :S}eag JAqUIal (1I9UNo)

diysumo ] Yewwnyya] 'Spuejs| ayl pue unoliuep UiaiSeayloN
Jo umo| 'Aeg 2109 JO UMO] 'puels| slueq uoplo Jo Ayledisiungy ‘diIySuMo] puels| uINgyooD ‘uinojuen
jenuan jo Aledizunpy ‘diysumo] sii pue sading ‘diysumo] sBuing ‘diysumo yoeuibissy ealy Juaiymnes ciol ulnopLeyy

1 :S)eag logqwaiy pieog |ejo)
L :saaujoddy |edulacld

"aAlBUaSaIdal AUNIWoD
L Jo Juaunuiodde ayy o} a|qisuodsal Apuiof ase diysumo] spue|ybiH vo)Buippy pue diysumo] S|y dU0lS e
‘eanejussaidal
Ajunwwoo § jo suguiodde suy 10} ajqisucdsas Apwol a1e dysumoy isijeAo] pue sauedep J81EAIS JOuMO]
Z :sjeeg aaljejueselday AJunwuio)

‘yoee JeqLuawl 1auncs | jo Juswiuiodde aus o) 2qIsUcdsal 91 JUSWYIELSP SUI Ul SNIUNWIICD [y o
¥ :S1ERg JaqUaY |I2UNOY)

diysumo | )
spuejybiH uoiBuippy ‘diysumo] Isyelo ‘diysumo] S 2uols ‘asuede] J91eaI0) JO UMD tBaly Justuydjes) Z1z uojbuippy 9 xouuan

G :S]eag JoqUIal pieogd [eJoL
| :saajutoddy [elouirClg

eAeuasaldas Aunuwos | Jo Juaswuiodde sy Joj sqisuodsal Apuof aie JuswYoRISp AU} Ul SAIUNWWOD |y
1 :s)eag aAnejuasatdey Ajunwwor

*Yaea tagquIBW [IDUN0J | JO Jwawjuiodde ay) Joy 9|qISU0dsa) ale JUSLUIYIEISP ay) Ul SSIIUNWWIOD | »
£ 159G JaQUa HIoUNoY

INY Jo Aeg oy Jo syMeYoW ‘diysumo} ebeuipusk] '0juoIase( JO UMO] tBAIY JUSUYDIR] Z1lo} uo)BuIppy ¥ XouuaT

Bunsod yZoz Aenuer
6102 ‘19v bunijod pue Ajejes Apuniuiosy ay) Jspun suoneinbay
:(N¥y0) AnsiBay AlojeinbBay s.olejuQ



0¢ J0 ¢z obed uoisialg Aaljod a1Bajens | [erauasy JONIOS ay) jo ANSIVIN

9 :Sjeag Jequiapy pieoq |B)jo)|
} :seojujoddy [eloulacld

‘aapejuasasdal
Aunwiwos | ayjy jo juswuiodde ayy 10} sjqisucdses Apuiol are JuswyoR)ep 2 W) SSNIUNWWOS Iy ¢
| ;sjeag aanejussaldsy Arunwiwod)

"YoeS JeqUIawW [IPUNo2 | J0 JuauuIodde 2y} 10) 2|qisuodsel 2JB JUSWYIEIAP B} Ul SSIIUNWWCD (Y
P :S1e0g JOQWIK [IDUN0)

pueg ueipuj %50y pay ‘diysumo ) 3oy pay ‘diysumo] uowoq ‘diysumo] uoBidiN tealy JUsWDIED zZlozg uobidiN

G :S)eeg Joquiejy pieog €10l
| :seajuloddy jeiouiactd

‘aaleuasaldal Ayunwwod | Jo Juswjuiodde ay) Joj ajqisucdsas st diysumo] Jagqiaiyos e
‘aAleUSsaldal Ayunuwod | Jo Jusunuodde ay) Jog aqisucdsas st diysumo | Aeg soeUB] e
Z sjeag sanejuasaadey Ajunwuwiod

yoea
JSquISLL 1I3UNoD | 10 Juaunuiodde ay) Jo s|qisucdsal ase diysumo] Jaqiaiyag pue diysumo) Aeg aoueusal e
Z :5)ees Jequuay [1I9uno)

uoep 18l Je|d shed ‘diysumo] Jeqiesyos ‘diysumo] Aeg soeus] (eaJy JUSWIYDIED rA N uobidiy

g 1S]Bag Jaquiap pieog |ejo]
Z :sasjuloddy [eldoulacly

‘aAnBIUSSalda) Aunwwiod | jo Juswiulodde ayy Jo) sqisuodsal si SIsAlY ysiveds Jo diysumoyg ay] e
‘aaneuasaudal Aunwwos | jo Juswuiodde sy Jo) s|qisuodsal s1 BjouBdS] JOUMOL YL
7 'sjeag aanejuasaldsy Ajunwwos)

YIRS JOqUISLU [1UNOD | 40 Judwiuicdde ay} 10} S|qISUOGSa) DI JUSWIEISP U} Ul $SSRINWWOI Iy
P ISJEAG JSqUaR [19UN0)

SIBAIY
ysiueds Jo diysumo] ‘uewAH pue uuep jo diysumoy ‘ejouedsT J0 UMO ‘UMpleg 40 dIYSUMO| 1Baly JUaLIYIIRD Zi02 uInolUBy

01 :Sleas JaquIsp pieog [e10L

Z 'saaqutoddy |e1ouiacig

Bunsod vzoz Aenuer
6102 ‘jov Buroiod pue Ajojes Ajunwiwiod ay) Jepun suoneinbay
1(MYO) Ansibay Asoyeinbay s.ouejup




0¢€ Jo gZ ebed ualsialg A21jod 21Baens | [eieues J0N01OS B 4O AgsiuIn

g :s)eag laquay pieogq jejol
Z :saajuioddy |e1sulacid

‘yoea aajeuasaldal Ajunwiiod | jo wswuodde auy Joj ajqisuodsal aie JUSWYIBISP 3U} Ul SSUAWWOD ||y e
£ ‘sjeag aanejuasasday AQunwwo)d

YIBS 12quiaL J12unod | Jo uawnuiodde sy Jo) 3|qIsucdsal aue JUSWYIEISP AU} Ul SAUUNWIWOD |y
€ 1S)eag Jaquap J1IouUnc)

Jepuelied jo Ajjedioiunpy ‘diysume] Buissidiy ‘uessemod jo Aiediaungy Jeady jusawiyajed glog Aeg yuoN
6 -S)eag JaqUIB\ pieoq |e)ol
Z :sesjuioddy tepulacid
“aanejuasaldar AYunwiwed | Jo juswiuiodde ay) Jo) eqisucdsed ApuIol 848 JUaWYIeJap BU) Ul SORIUNWIIOD ||y
‘yora aaneuasasdas Aiunwulos | o Juswuiodde auy 10y 9|qIsuodsal ale JUSWYIEIaP 34} Ul SAIUNWIWOD |y »
¥ :sjeag sAlejuasasdey Aunwwod
YIBS JBqUIBW |1HUnod | jo Juswiuiodde sy} 10) a|qisuodssl ale Juswiyoeiap 2y} Ul SAILUNWWOD ||y
€ 15)Eag Joaquial [19uno)
diysumo] prayuog ‘diysume] WIOYSIYD ‘Suia4 1SET JO Allledioiunpy Jeady Juautysies cloz >mm YUON
9 :sjeag Jaquisly pieog [Bjol
| :sasuloddy |e12uIAOld
‘aanejuasaldal Apunwiwos | Jo jusujuiodde ay) Joj 2)gisuodsal Ajuiol aue JusSWIYSEISP 8} Ul SSRIUNWWICD Iy«
[ sieag aanejuasalday Apunwwod)
YOBS Jaguwiaw |1ounod | Jo Juswuiodde su) Joj 9qisuodsal sJe JUSWYSBIaP ay) Ui SSIUNWIWOD Iy @
t :sjeag Jaquialy [1IouUno?)
uialeD i
40 Aedioungy ‘diysumo) ucsswen-nesuided ‘uemenep jo Aledisiuny ‘emenep Jo umo| ealy Juawysien £Jo | Aeg yuoN __

bunsod vzoz Aenuepr

610Z 1oV buiijod pue A1gjes Apuniuwios ay) 1apun suoljeinbay

1(¥NO0) AnsiBay Auoyeinbay s.ouejuQ



0¢ 10 97 abed uoIsIAlg Aoljod MBejens | [eiauss JONDIOS Y} 4O ANSILIN

G :Sjeag Jaquiap preog [0
} :seauioddy jelouiacsd

‘saanEjuasaldal Aunwiwod g ey} jo weauquicdde au) 10} ojqisuodses s| Binquos|i] Joumo] Byl e
Z :sjeag aapeuasaldey Ajjunuiwe)

"SIequIaLL I9uNod Z ay) jo Jusuguiodde ay) 1o} ajqisuodses st BiNquOs||I] JO UMO] DYl e
Z :Sjeas JaqUIBy [I9UNo)

Bunquosiii] Jo umo) easy Juswydsjes |

1

pIOXQ

. isjeag Jaquisyy pieog [e10]
| :saajuioddy fei1ouiaclg

“aAjjejuasaldal
AUnwwod | ayy Jo yuswiyujodde ayy Joj a|qisuodsal Apulol aie JUSWIYDEISP S4) Ul SSIUMUWOD Iy

| :sieeg aAnejuesaldoy Alunwiwo?) |

"yoea Jagquiawl 1Iounod | §o Juasuquiodde ayy Joy a|qIsucdsal aIe JUAWYOEISP AL W1 SARIUNUILIOD |y o
G 'S)eag JaqUIB [19Uno)

diysumo] euoz ‘diysumo | pIoixQ 1S9
-4inog ‘diysumo] yaiymion ‘diysumo] 3ooisine | -euoz jseg ‘diysumo | Wisyus|g-plojpuelg iesly Jusawyaen

giog

popxQ)

g :sjeeg Jaguay pleogq |ejo]
| :seajujoddy [e1dUlACId

‘saanejuasaldal AQunwwes Z ay) jo wauguiodde ay) Jo) ajqisucdsal st [lostabu) Joumo) ay| e
Z :sjees eAnejuasaldey Aunuwon

*SIAQUIBL [[OUNoOd Z ayl jo Juaunuiodde ayy 10) ajqisuodsal s1 jjosiabul jo umo] ay) e
7 ‘s)eas Jaquialy [Iouncy)

[I081eBU) JO UMD realy Jusluy)es

€0}

PAOXO |

bBunsod ¥zoz Aenuer

6102 10V Buioljod pue Aejes Ayunwiiod ay) Japun suocneinbay

(NNO) Ansibay Alojeinbay s .ouejup



0¢ J0 2Z abeyd uoisia|g Aoljod 21Beleng | [isues Jopaljes 8y} Jo Ansiuiy

‘saAejuasaldas
Alununucs z ayy Jo Juswuiodde ay) Jog ejqisuodsar Aputo! ese JUSWILYDERISP BU) Ul SAIUNWWOD [
Z :s)edag aaneuasasday Ajunwwos)

‘sepiey] g

Jo Ajjedioiungy sy pue uauepp-AeIsyiey jo Alfediomngy ‘Aswe|ny jo Ajjedioiunpy ‘eary youal4 jo Ajedisunpy
1Yyoea Jaquiaw |ouno? | Jo juawjuicdde ay) Joj s|qisuodsal aie JUSWIYIERP Syl W Salunwiwod Buimojioj ay] e
¢ isjeag Jaquio |1ounod

(8xe7 ysysuum) uoneN Jsiid yegqmeuysiuy Susysyaweyny ‘sepeyd 1S Jo Aediuniy
‘ualep-ARISIR W JO Alledidiuniy ‘Aswie)y Jo Aujedioiungy 2Ary youal4 Jo Anedidiungy tealy Juauyoses) 2o (ysapn BuissidiN) Aingpng

G :S)eag JaquIay pieog |Bl0L
| ‘saajuioddy [e1oulAolg

‘saaneuasardsas Ajunwwod Z ay) jo juaunuiodde ayy o) ajgqisuodsal S UBHOYIY JOUMO] Byl e
Z :sjeag aAnejuasasday AQunwiwos

*SIDQUIBLLE I2UNOD Z 3y Jo Jusuuiodde ay) J0) a|qisucdsal S| UBNOYIY JO UMC] 3yl e
Z 181898 JaqWIB [1oUno

UBNHONIY JO UMO] B3y Jualiydjes Zloz 1PuISIg Jenry Auey

£ :S]eag 1aquiapy piecq |E}O]
| :sa9juloddy je1ouIACId

‘aAnejuasasdal Aunwiwiod | 1o Juawuiodde ay) Joj 2jqisuodsal S| SaoUBI{ L0 JO UMO] 3Yy] e

1aA1H AUIRY JO UMmO ] By pue diysumoy Aslop ‘diysumo] SPOOpA Y] o e ‘diysumo )

a9)ie e ‘diysumo] owg ‘diysumo | uosmeq] ‘diysumo] sjddeys ‘diysumo) uouaqfy ealejussasdal
Aunuwiwo |} jo waunuiodde sy 10) ajqisuodsal Apuiof ale Juawyoe)ep ay) Ul saijunwwod Bumojoyay) e
Z :s)eas aapejuasasday Aunuiwon

‘sIsguIBlW [1DUNod 7 Jo Juawjuiodde ay) 104 8|qISUOASSI 8] S8OURIJ L0 JOUMD] BY]
"JaquIaW jeuned | jo wawuiodde ay 1o ajgisuodsal Apuiol ale 1Ay Auley
JO UMOo| ay) pue diysumo] Aspop ‘diysumo] spoops 2y) jo axe ‘diysumo] uosme( ‘diysumo] siddey) o
“19qUBLL IBUNod
L Jo usuguicdde ayy oy eiqisucdsas Apuiol e diysumo] as|jea e pue diysumo] ow ‘diysumo) uopaqly e
¥ 1S)eag JaquUajy [1I2uno?)

Janry Auiey jo umo] ‘diysumo] Aspop ‘diysumo) SPOOAA 9yl Jo oyeT 'diysumo] aajlea e 'saoueld
HO4 jJo umo] ‘diysumo] ow3 ‘diysumo] uosmeq ‘diysumo) aiddeyn ‘diysumo] UoMBQq[Y JBALY JUYNED clol 1PUISIq 18A1y Auey

Bunsod zoz Aenuer
6102 10y Bunoijod pue Aleges Ayunwiwon ay) Japun suonentoy
(¥N0) Ansibay fiojeinbay s.ouejuQ




0¢ Jo gZ abey uoisialq Aatjod s16a3ens | [eIeuss) JO)INN0S By} Jo ANSIUIWY

L1 :Sleag JaquIa| pJeog 1e10]
Z :sasjuroddy |e1ouiacid

-abeyia sojuioy] pue diysumo] pielliH ‘diysumo) [@anueas ‘weysibul

10 UMo| “4oeQ uoidey? jo Aljediciunpy ‘diysumo) uipsqueyd ‘diysume] Buossuuy saaneuasaida
Alunwwos Z sy Jo waunuoedde ay) Joj siqisuodsas Apulol a1e Juawiyoelep auy) Ul satunwiwod Bumojop eyl e
Z 'sjeas aaneuasaiday Ajunwwon

-abe|a sojusoy) pue diysumo] pleliH ‘diysumo]

[2iMuiAg ‘Ueys|bug Jo umo] “Yor uojiey) jo Aedoiunpy ‘diysumo] uipaqueys ‘diysumo] Buoisuuy
YoBa JaquIaw (Iounod | Jo Juawjuiodde ay Jo) 91qIsucdsal Bue JUSWIYDIBIOP Syl Ul SAIUNWIWOD Bumoio) ayL
1 1s)eag Joquisyy Nounos

abejIa sojwoy ‘diysumo | sawep ‘diysumo] pieliH ‘diysumo] [ganjueal ‘peys|bug jo umo)
“yoed uoleys Jo Ajediongy ‘diysumo] uilequieyn ‘diysumo] Jnoyialg ‘diysumo] Buonsuuy seasy juswiysiesd gloz Bulweysiwa

G :S)eag Jaquialy pleog [e)ol
| :saaquioddy [eioulAcld

-saaneuasaldas Aunuwo? Z ay) 1o Juaunuiodde ayy 10} a|qisuodsal 51 sai0yg Buleyswa) o QoY) e
Z :s1eag saneuasasday Aununues

‘SLAQISW 19UN0D Z 24y J0 Juauiuiodde sy 10y aigisuodsal si saloyg Bulweysiwe] Jo Ay eyl e
Z :15Je9g JAGUIBYY |15UNOD

saloys Bunueysiwa ] jo A1) teasy juswiysjen) £J0L Bunweysiwa |

G :S)Eag Joquey pleoq [e10]
b :saajuioddy [e1ouiacld

‘saAlRjuasasdal AUnWwWod gz a4y Jo Juaunuiodde auy 1o) ajqisucdsel s1 Burssidiy 188pp j0 Apediolungy syl e
Z :sjees aapruasasday Ajunwwo?)

SIBqUUISW |PUncd Z auy jo Juswjuodde ayy Jo) sjqisucdsed s1 BuissidiN 199 Jo Anjediouniy oy e
Z i51eag Joquialy [1ouUnoD

BuissidiN 158 Jo Aljedimunyy seely Juewysjes oz (ysapn Buissidin) Aungpng

Z S)Eag JoquIsy pieog [€101

| :sesjuloddy eioulAcld

Bunsod yzoe Aenuer
61L0Z ‘10v Buijod pue Ajsies Apunwiwoy ay) Japun suonenbay
{(4y0) AnsiBay Aioje|nbay s.ouejuQ




0¢ 10 §Z 2bey uoisialg Adijod a1Bajenig | (Ri2uRS) 10)1010S 3L} Jo Asiuiy

QgL 'sjeas Joquisiy pieog |ejo)
agl :seauloddy jelauinoag
‘uonenbai ay) ul pagoeds
8q ||\ puB pauuLsiap aq o) 81 S)eas aanejuasasdal Apunwwos jo Juswyuiodde auy o} Pl UOBULIOJY| e
adl :siees aapejuasasday Ajunwiwod

‘uonenbal
3yl Ul paudads aq {im pue PaUILLIBISP 94 0] S| S]ESS JaquuaLu [IPUnoD jo Juawjuiodde ay) o) paje|a) UCHBLLIO| o
Qg1 :sjees Jaqualy jIounod

‘paUILLIBIep Bq 0} uonisodwos) tealy Juswyaes z2z Aeg sopuny |

Qg1 sieas Jquialy pleog [0l
agl :seauoddy [e1duiacid
‘uonenbas ayy u) payioads
aq [\ PUB PRUILLIBIAR 3G 0} S| S1EaS aalejuasaldal AUNWWCD JO Juauiuiodde ay) 0} palejas UORBLLIOJU|
agl :sjeeg sAnejuasaidey Aunwwon

‘uolenbal
3} Ui panads aq [|m pue paulua)ap 8q O] S| S)eas JaquUaLl [IPUN0D JO Juawiliodde ay) 0) pSIBIa) UORBLLUIOJU] e
(gl :sjeag 1aquey 1Izuncy)

‘pauLLBlap aq o} uogisadwos (ealy Jusye) Zo Aeg sspuny]

G| -S)Bag Jaquuidy pieog [e10]
£ :saaquoddy [e1ouAcLd

‘uonen Jsii4 wbews] ‘lwebews) jo AgedDungy ‘piojy3IeT Jo umo] ‘diysumo] Swey|

‘diysumo | AspeH ‘diysumo] uewsjos ‘diysumo] UoSpnH ‘1eqos) Jo umo] ‘diysumo] Asses :saAneluasaldss
Aunwwoo ¢ ay) Jo Jusuyuodde auy) Jo) ajqisuodsal Apuio] a1e JUSWYDEISP Sy} Ul SAPUNLILIOD BUIMO|0} aul +
€ :sjeag aanejuesasdey Ajunwiwosn

‘uonen jsid iwbews] ‘webews] jo Ayediounpy ‘pIojydET JO UMO]

‘'diysumo] swiay ‘diysumo] AspieH ‘diysumc] uewsios) ‘diysumo | uospni ‘eqos) Jo umo| ‘digsumo] Aasen
1Yoed JaguIBW IDUNOY | Jo Juswiuiodde ay) 10) aqIsucdss. ale Juswyselap oy ul selunwwod Bumoloy oyl e
6 :5jeeg JIequay [1ounoy)

uonep 1814 wbews) ‘webews} jo Apjediounpy ‘piojyaie jo umo] ‘diysumo] swisy ‘diysumo] uospnH
‘diysumo] sLueyd ‘diysumo | AspeH ‘diysumo] Uewalo?) JBgos JO UMo | ‘diysumo] Aeser) iealy Juawiysjen £jog Buiweysnua |

Bunsod yzoz Adenuep
6102 ‘10V bumijod pue Ajaes Ajuniuuion ay) 18pun suoljeinbay
1(MM0) AnsiBay Auojeinbay s.oueuQ



0¢ Jo o¢ abed uoisialg Ad1jod 21Bajens | leisuag Jololos 8y Jo Ansiuly

G :sjeag Jequay pieog [e10]
L :sesjuioddy |epulAolg

“121EMBYIUAA JO dIySUMO] Sy} pue euely pue

ese|) 'peaH 0 sdiysumo] pajun syl ‘As|leA uenuaine jo diysumo] ‘sl UBUSINET JO UMOL (@AlBluSSaIdal
Aunwiwod ay) Jo Wwawuodde sy Joj aqisuodsal Apuic] ale JuaWYDESP 34} Ul Salunwiwos Bumoloy syl e
| :sjeag aanejuasasday Aunwwoe)

“JBGWISW IoUnod | Jo uswuicdde ay) 1o} 9|qIsUOdsal SI euRl pue BIRD ‘PEIH JO SAIYySuMOo) papun eyl e
“J12qQUIBLW IDUNO? | Jo jusuipuicdde ay) Joy sjqisuodsal st Asjep ueguaine Jo diysumo] e

"J3QUIBLL ISUNOD | JO Jusuguicdde auy 10} a)qisuodsal SI S|IIH UBJUBINET JO UMO] 9y e

£ :S)1e9S JAqUWIA [19UN0D

uoibay
Jsiemalypn Jo diysumo] ‘aasopaqiip euoby Uuop Jo diysumo] 'Aajuoig/uolsewlpy JO diysumo] ‘BuUE pue
BIE|D) ‘peaH Jo sdiysumol palun aul 'A3jleA uenuaineT Jo diysumo] ‘S|IIH UBNUSINET JO UMO| lealy Juawiyajed cljog Aajles emenp Jaddn

G :sjeag Jaquialy pieog [BJ0L
} :seaueddy [eloulaolgd

‘saanejuasaldal Alunwwos Z ay) jo Jusuwjuiodde ay) 104 9|0ISUOTSES S| BMEME]D] JOUMO] BY] =
Z :sjeag aAnejuasalday Ajununuon

*SIaqQUISLUL IPUN0D Z ay) Jo Juawjuiodde ay) Jo) 9|qISUOdsSal S BMEME)OH JOUMO| ay| =
Z :S)eag JaqWa [19UNoYD)

BMEME)O JO UMO | eIV Judluydjen clog Raea emeno Jaddn

G 'Sleag J3quUsly pleog (2101
| :saajyuroddy jedpuircagd

‘saAleuasaldal Aunwiwos Z syj jo Juawiulodde ay) 10) SQISUCASD) SI SHOIQUIDY JO D By o
Z 's)eag aaneuasasdey Apunwwo)

‘SIBQUISU I9UNO3 Z ayY) 10 Juawiuadde ay) 10) a[qIsuodsal S SHoIqQWIG JO A0 Byl e
Z 151e9g IsquIajy 119UNoY)

ayoIquiad Jo A lealy juswyazen €10 Aallep emen Jaddn

Bunsod yzog Aenuep
6102 10V Buioyjog pue fysjes Apunwuwion ay) Japun suoneinbay
((MN0) Asibay Aiojeinbay s.ouejuQ




2/6/24, 10:35 AM about:blank

Regulations for Ontario Provincial Police (O.P.P.) detachment boards under Part V of the
Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 (CSPA)

Regulation Number(s):

N/A

Instrument Type:

Regulation - Minister

Bill or Act:

Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019
Summary of Proposal;

Public and stakeholder input is being requested to support the development of regulations that address matters related to O.P.P.
detachment boards under Part V of the CSPA, including:

+ Composition of O.P.P. detachment boards {Appendix A).

s Establishment of more than one O.P.P. detachment board for certain O.P.P. detachments.

+ Creating exemptions from the requirement that an OPP detachment have a detachment board (Appendix B).
+ Term of office, remuneration and expenses of members of O.P.P. detachment boards.

+ Determination of each municipality's share of the costs of board operation.

The following describes the ministry's proposed approach to various matters to be prescribed in relation to OPP detachment boards.

¢ Under s. 67 (1), the CSPA requires the creation of one or more than one O.P.P. detachment board for an O.P.P. detachment, in
accordance with regulations. Where there is more than one detachment board within a detachment, the proposals below will apply in
relation to each detachment board and the portion of the area served by the detachment that is represented by each board, as if each
were the detachment board for a separate detachment which served only its portion of the area served by the detachment.

» In accordance with regulations, the CSPA also authorizes exemptions under s. 67 (1.1) from the requirement that there be a
detachment board or more than one detachment board. Where there are no detachment boards within a detachment, the detachment
shall continue to provide Q.P.P.-policing as applicable, without any input from a detachment board.

1. Composition of O.P.P. Detachment Boards:

The regulaticn will set out the composition of each O.P.P. detachment board including, the number and composition of individuals who are
members of 8 municipal or First Nation council ("council members"), the number of individuals who are not council members but who are
appointed by a municipal or First Nation council ("community representatives"), and the number of individuals appointed by the minister

{"provincial appointees™).

In spring 2021, the Ministry asked all O.P.P. policed municipalities and all First Nations that do not have a self-administered First Nation
police service to work together to submit a proposal indicating the composition of a board, or more than one board, that meets the needs
of the communities being served by the O.P.P.. The ministry had also received requests that no detachment boards be established from
certain communities, which have been reviewed. Locally identified detachment leads played a key role in actively engaging with
municipalities and First Nations to develop and submit the detachment board proposals, including allocation of seats and overall
composition, which were then received and reviewed by the Ministry of the Soliciter General. The compositions for the O.P.P. detachment
boards included in Appendix A reflect extensive local engagement and input. All proposals were subsequently subject to the approval of
the Solicitor General of Ontario.

While some detachment board information is still to be finalized, the ministry welcomes any feedback at this time through the Ontario
Regulatory Registry (ORR).

2. Term of Office of O.P.P. Detachment Board Members:

The Ministry is proposing the following terms of office for detachment board members appointed by municipalities or First Nations to an
OPP detachment board:

* Members appointed by a single municipality or First Nation:
o The term of office will be set out by the municipality or First Nation in the appointment but shall not exceed the term of office of the
municipal or First Nation council that appointed the member.

+ Members appointed jointly to O.P.P. detachment boards:
0 The term of office will be jointly determined by the municipalities and First Nations making the appointment and will be set out in the
appointment but cannot exceed a term of four years.

» The member (whether individually or jointly appointed) may continue to sit until the earlier of,
o {a) six months after the expiry of their term of office; or
o (b) the day the member's successor is appointed by the municipality or First Nation.
about:blank 1/2



2/6/24, 10:35 AM about:blank

+ Members appointed by the Minister:
0 The term of office for 2 member of an O.P.P. detachment board who is appointed by the Minister shall be set out by the Minister in the
member's appointment,

3. Remuneration of Q.P.P. Detachment Board Members:
The Ministry is proposing the following requirements for remuneraticn and expenses of O.P.P. detachment boards:

¢ Each year, municipalities receiving policing services from an O.P.P. detachment will be required to pay an amount of remuneration for
ministerial appointees serving on the board. The amount of remuneration will be determined by unanimous agreement by the
municipalities within the detachment area.

« If the municipalities receiving policing services from an O.P.P. detachment are unable to mutually determine the amount of remuneration
to be paid to ministerial appointees serving on the board, the minister shall determine the amount to be paid by all municipalities within
the detachment area.

+ Municipalities receiving policing services from the O.P.P. detachment may also decide to distribute the costs among themselves in a
manner different from equal shares. As long as unanimous agreement is maintained, the costs will be shared according to the agreed-
upon arrangement among the municipalities within the detachment area.

4. Allocation of Estimated Costs Among Municipalities:
The Ministry is proposing the following as it relates to the allocation of estimated costs among municipalities:

+ O.P.P, detachment boards will be required to prepare estimates on an annual basis detailing the total amount necessary to cover the
operational expenses of the board, excluding the remuneration of board members.

» Board costs will be allocated equally among all municipalities that receive OPP policing services from the detachment unless the
municipalities in the detachment area unanimously decide to allocate the costs among themselves in some other manner. As long as
unanimous agreement is maintained, the costs will be shared according to the agreed-upon arrangement among the municipalities in the
detachment area.

Analysis of Regulatory Impact:

SOLGEN may be consulting with stakeholders to identify potential costs associated with the given regulation coming into force.

Further Information:

@ Appendix A (Download Adohe Reader)
Appendix B (Download Adobe Reader)

Proposal Number:

24-SOLGENO0O2

Posting Date:

January 30, 2024

Comments Due Date:

February 13, 2024

Contact Address:

Ministry of the Solicitor General

Strategic Policy Division

25 Grosvenor Street
Toronto, ON M7A 1Y6

Comment on this proposal via email

about Ontario
accessibility
news

privacy

terms of use

* » 2 2

« © King's Printer for Ontario, 2023

about:blank 212



Kris CTOSI(EI.’! - Hodgins

From: Jenny Leblond <jleblond@chisholm.ca>
Sent: Monday, February 5, 2024 10:.01 AM
To: ‘CAO Clerk’; cao@mattawa.ca; CAO@calvintownship.ca; ‘Jason Trottier'; "Jason

McMartin'; ‘loanne Montreuil’; admin@nipissingtownship.com; ‘Brayden Robinson’;
‘Ashiey Bilodeau'

Subject: FW: OPP Detachment Board Description Update — Posting on the Ontario Regulatory
Registry (ORR)

FYI

Thanks,

Jenny

Jennistine {Jenny} Leblond,

CAO Clerk-Treasurer

Township of Chisholm

2847 Chiswick Line, RR# 4

Powassan, ON POH 120

Phone: 705-724-3526 ext 203

Fax: 705-724-5099

My working hours may not be your working hours. Please do not feel obligated to reply outside of your
normal work schedule.

From: Jensen, Michele (SOLGEN) <Michele.Jensen@ontario.ca> On Behalf Of Caldwell, Sarah {She/Her} (SOLGEN)
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 10:57 AM

Cc: Sukhdeo, Devendra (SOLGEN) <Devendra.Sukhdeo@ontario.ca>; Subramanian, Sheela {(SOLGEN)
<Sheela.Subramanian@contaric.ca>; Ryerson, Rachel (SOLGEN) <Rachel.Ryerson@ontario.ca>

Subject: OPP Detachment Board Description Update — Posting on the Ontario Regulatory Registry (ORR)

Good Morning,

To prepare for the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019 (CSPA) coming into force on April 1,
2024, the Ministry of the Solicitor General has been working with municipalities and First Nations
since March 2021 to develop and finalize the detachment board compositions for the Ontario
Provincial Police {O.P.P.) that will be newly established across the province. | would like to express
my gratitude for your support and contributions to this ongoing process.

| am writing to let you know that the description of the regulation that will set out O.P.P. Detachment
Board compositions and other related matters has been posted on the Ontario Regulatory Registry
(ORR) for public review and feedback. We hope that the description accurately reflects your input to-
date.

The Ministry welcomes your feedback, particularly any corrections to board descriptions, at the
following link: https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingld=46373&language=en.

The posting will be open until February 13, 2024. If you have any questions, please contact
SOLGENIinput@ontario.ca at your earliest convenience.

1



Once again, thank you for your support and collaboration and we look forward to receiving your input.
| kindly request that you forward this email to all communities in your detachment.

Sincerely,

Sarah Caldwelt

Assistant Deputy Minister, Strategic Policy Division
Ministry of the Solicitor General



Ministry of Northermn Development Ministére du Développement du Nord

o i
Regional Economic Development Branch Direction du Développement économique Régional nta rl o
70 Foster Drive, Suite 200 70, promenade Foster, bureau 200
Sault Ste. Marie ON P6A 6V8 Sault Ste. Marie ON PGAGVS
Telephone: 807-475-1648 Téléphone: 807-475-1648

February 2, 2024

To whom it may concern:

The Ministry of Northern Development is moving forward with the modernization of the Northem
Services Boards Act (NSBA) in alignment with the Modemizing Ontario for People and Businesses
Act, 2020. The NSBA has not undergone a review since 1999, and the ministry is looking for
feedback on potential burden reduction initiatives through changes to the NSBA. Local Services
Boards located in the unincorporated territory in Northern Ontario are governed under the NSBA.

The ministry is seeking public feedback on matters which include the following:

¢ Modernizing NSBA administration processes (i.e., opportunity to align to digital / technological
advancements);

Improving clarity related to the definition of powers;

Aligning Local Services Board (LSBs) and government fiscal schedules / year,

Timing of LSB elections and length of terms of office;

Providing services outside of the gecgraphical boundaries (i.e., mutual aid (fire response /

emergency services)),

¢ Reviewing legislated financial requirements (i.e., review report by certified accountant vs.
audit); and

o Flexibility in establishing LSB rules / procedures related to in-camera and public board

meetings.

® & @ o

As part of seeking public feedback, the following items are considered out of scope:

¢ Increases to LSB Program funding;

e Increased responsibility relating to additional powers beyond the current nine (9) powers (fire
protection, recreation, water supply, sewage, roads, garbage collection, public library services,
street or area lighting and emergency telecommunications);

Additional types of services (i.e., property planning matters, landfill site operations, etc.); and
Discussion on amalgamation with neighboring municipalities.

As part of the consultation process, all Ontarians are able to provide comment through the Regulatory
Registry. We encourage you to take the time to provide feedback to matters that may be of interest.

The link to the Ontario Regulatory Registry Red Tape Reduction- Northern Services Boards Act
Modernization (ontariocanada.com) Copy and paste the link below into the address toolbar to
complete the survey questions: hitps://forms.office.com/r/SqCvy25M91

Should you have additional questions relating to the modernization of the Northern Services Board
Act please contact the LSB program coordinator Elizabeth Norman, at Elizabeth.Norman@ontario.ca.



Ministry of Northem Davelopment
Regional Economic Development Branch

70 Foster Drive, Suite 200
Sault Ste. Marie ON P6A6VS
Telephone: 807-475-1648

Regards,

ol i s

Melanie Muncaster

Ministére du Dévaloppement du Nord
Direction du Développement économique Régional
70, promenade Foster, bureau 200

Sault Ste. Marie ON PBA 6V8
Téléphone: 807-475-1648

Director Regional Economic Development Branch

Ontario @



District of Parry Sound

o : Social Services
f‘ Administration Board

Chief Administrative Officer’s
Report

January 2024

Mission Statement

To foster healthier communities by economically providing
caring human services that empower and enable the
people we serve to improve their quality of life.



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) Funding

The District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board and Canada Mortgage and Housing Corpo-
ration (“CMHC”) share a common goal of preserving existing affordable housing stock and housing Canada’s
most vulnerable. CMHC recognizes the District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board as a
critical partner.

We are pleased to share that we have accepted an offer of funding from CMHC which will allow us to com-
plete necessary repairs to extend the life of our housing stock while improving the long-term sustainability of
our units, through the National Housing Co-Investment Fund ("NHCEF").

CMHC has committed $1,846,045 to support the repair and renewal of our social housing stock over the next
three years. We would like to thank CMHC for their support and look forward to this renewed relationship.

Information Technology Update

During the last quarter of 2023 the I.T. Department focused on planning and deploying a new security solu-
tion for Esprit place. This solution focuses on the safety and security of our clients as well as the staff in both
the Shelter and our main office at 1 Beechwood. Updated access controls have also been planned and will be
implemented in the first quarter of 2024.

There was also a large focus on the migration to our newly implemented domain allowing us to move for-
ward with further centralized controls of our network and application access. As security requirements contin-
ue to become more complicated, our goal is to make things as simple as possible for the staff to avoid user
frustration, ticket volume increase and general technology fatigue.

As always, our support channels were busy. Over 2023, we saw the largest ticket volume on record. With
1,429 official support requests from January 1% to December 31 of 2023. Our ticket numbers reflect most
requests though we still have several informal requests which we are working on capturing moving forward.

2023 Ticket Statistics (as of December 31, 2023)

January 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023 Status
Tickets created during period: 1,429
Tickets Resolved: 1,423

Tickets Stilt open: 6 @l 1423 - Resolved
Tickets that were reopened: 11 4 - Waiti
Average response time: 2h 01m 08s - S
2 - In progress




Tammi MacKenzie, CAQO

Human Resources Update

The last quarter of 2023 began to show some improvement in the recruitment landscape, as we were able to
fill some key positions. We are hopeful that this will continue into 2024. Registered Early Childhood Educa-
tors and Counsellors for Esprit Place remain our biggest challenge.

We have filed our AODA compliance report, which is a legal obligation under the Accessibility for Ontarians
with Disabilities Act and are happy to report that the DSSAB has met full compliance under the Act. We con-
tinue to look for opportunities to support applicants and employees with accessibility.

As we begin to prepare T4 information for the 2023 year, we are mindful of the new Canada Dental Care
Plan T4/ T4A boxes.

To support the administration of the new Canadian Dental Care Plan, the following new boxes have been
added to the tax slips beginning with the 2023 tax year.

o Box 45 on the T4: Statement of Remuneration Paid
¢ Box 15 on the T4A: Statement of Pension, Retirement, As

A corresponding reporting code (not deduction) will represent the dental coverage you had access to under
our dental plan as of December 31% of the tax year. “Access” refers to the plan coverage available to you and
not to your individual family status or the coverage you may have elected. For example, your T4 may be cod-
ed with a “3” even if you have no spouse or dependents.

Code || Access

1 Not eligible to access any dental care insurance or coverage of dental services of any
kind
2 Payee only
3 Payee, spouse, and dependent children
4 Payee and their spouse
5 Payee and their dependent children
Facebook Pages

A friendly reminder to follow our Facebook pages!
+ District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board
+ Esprit Place Famnily Resource Centre
+ EaryON Child and Famil
¢+ The Meadow View

3




Tammi MacKenzie, CAQO
Social Media

Facebook Stats

District of Parry Sound Social MAY JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV
Services Administration Board 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Page Followers 474 478 490 500 513 521

Post Reach this Period (# of people who

3,789 4,010 2,249 4,112 2,667 4,324
saw post)

Post Engagement this Period (# of

. 241 692 234 428 287 305
reactions, comments, shares)

Esprit Place Family Resource MAY JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV
Centre 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 22023
Total Page Followers 131 131 132 133 133 151
h this Peri

Post Reach this Period (# of people who 29 203 62 Ee 92 5,743
saw post)
P is Peri

ost !Engagement this Period {# of i 5 ' 5 16 624
reactions, comments, shares)
DSSAB Twitter Stats MAY JUONE AUG SEPT OCT NOV
https: itter.com/psdssab 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Tweets 8 10 N/A 19 11 8
Total Impressions 291 301 56 229 206 167
Total Profile Visits 137 128 N/A 135 N/A N/A
Total Followers 27 30 31 32 34 40
DSSAB LinkedIN Stats MAY JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV
https.//bitly/2YyFHIE 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Followers 416 434 437 441 444 444
Search Appearances (in last 7 days) 228 281 185 115 49 52
Total Page Views 41 56 33 22 49 48
Post Impressions 546 786 182 568 1,036 570
Total Unique Visitors 19 25 19 14 22 18



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

NEW!| Instagram - Esprit Place NOV
Family Resource Centre

: \ 2023
https://www.instagram.com/espritplace

Total Followers 0

# of posts 0

Social Media Follower - Trends

600
500 =
400 — - e —
300 —
o / S/
100 : : : = : =
0 _ e e— ——
FE NS R 3 8 NS YN RA99 2833928335
2E 2552788888838 538838R383852288¢%8¢&
= [ acebook Followers - DSSAB s Tiyitter followers - DSSAB s | inkedin Followers - DSSAB
Facebook Followers - Esprit Place == Instagram - Esprit Place
Municipal Presentations

Over the last couple of months, our Communications Officer and | have continued our visits to Municipalities
as follows:

¢ November 6™ — Seguin Township
¢ November 14™ — Township of Carling

o November 14" — Municipality of Callander

At each meeting, we outlined the DSSAB’s programs and services and explaining to members of each Coun-
cil how we can help members of their community. All Councils expressed their appreciation for the work

done by DSSAB staff. These presentations were part of a series of Municipal presentations taking place over
the next year.

J’G Callander

ONTARIO

-




Tammy MacKenzie, CAQ

Sponsor-A-Family Program

This holiday season, we launched a ‘Sponsor-A-Family’ program. By donating gift cards, sponsors empow-
ered the women we serve through Esprit Place to engage in the spirit of the season and purchasing for the
needs of her family.

We would like to take a moment to thank each of the families, individuals, and even youth sports teams who
rallied together to represent the true spirit of the season by becoming sponsors in our first holiday Sponsor-A-
Family program. In less than two weeks we were able to find sponsors for all 12 families, and even received
sponsorship for two additional families who required our services over the holiday season. We are so grateful
for the continued generosity of this community.

h Fspedd Place

SPONSOR - A FAMILY

{ [




Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Licensed Child Care Programs

Total Children Utilizing Directly Operated Child Care in the District
November 2023

Fairview First Steps Highlands Waubeek

Age Group o) o ELCC ELCC ELCC £l gatel
I
nfant 3 3 1 18 27
(0-18M)
Toddler 10 7 9 21 27 74
(18-30M)
Preschool

17 17 20 29 44 127
(30M-4Y)
# of Active

29 27 32 51 89 228
Children

Enrollment remained steady for the month of November with operating capacity at the child care center’s
being maxed out given the available staff. There remain some contract positions unfilled in the centre-based
programs that is affecting full enrollment, and the Home Visitor west contract position remains unfilled. With
the new Directed Growth Strategy from the Ministry of Education, we have been unable to commit to open-
ing more Home Child Care premises until this year as funding for new spaces has been greatly reduced. We
will be consulting with the Child Care Service Management team as we navigate the new ministry funding
guidelines.

School Age Programs

November 2023

Location Enrollment Primary Secondary
Mapleridge After School 26 7 0
Mapleridge Before School 11 0 0
Sundridge Centennial After School 13 0 0

Home Child Care 37 15 2

# of Active Children 87 22 2

These school age programs continue to be viable. The Sundridge Centennial program is currently at capaci-
ty. We are working with Mapleridge Public School to utilize an additional space at the school so we can sep-
arate the current group into two smaller groupings that can better meet the needs of the children. Mapleridge
is also at licensed capacity and has created a waitlist.

7




Tammy MacKenzie, CAO

Directly Operated Child Care Waitlist by Program
November 2023

HCCP
Waubeek

Highlands

&

First Steps

Fairview 17

[=]
g
=

20 A0 &0 B0 100 120

The blue bar indicates the current number of children needing care now that cannot be accommodated.
There is a notable shift in the ages needing care being equally divided among all three age groups. The red
bar shows the number of children that will be needing care in future months. Waubeek has seen a significant
increase in families calling to be placed on the waiting list as they are newly pregnant so children will hopeful-
ly be in care when parents are ready to retum to work. Please note: these numbers may be duplicated as
families are placing their children on multiple waiting lists.

Inclusion Support Services
November 2023
Licensed Monthly New

Earl YTD T Waitlist Dis
Age Group yON ELCC’s  Total otal Wai E als charges
Infant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(0-18M)
Toddler

0 11 11 21 1 0 0
(18-30M)
Preschool 6 32 38 60 2 4 4
(30M-4Y)
School Age (4Y+} 4 20 24 46 0 0 9
Monthly Total 10 63 73 - 3 4 13
YTD Total 12 80 - 132 40 41 32

The six Resource consultants have participated in and successfully completed certification to be trainers in
Reaching In, Reaching QOut which allows them to lead in-service workshops that model and teach resilience-
building approaches for children under 8 years of age and their families. Specifically, adults are trained to role
model thinking and coping strategies while simultaneously enhancing adult-child relationships. Resource
Consultants will be available to use this new certification to support the capacity building of educators across
the district beginning this year. |




Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

EarlyON Child and Family Programs
November 2023

Activity

Number of Children Attending

Number of New Children Attending

Number of Adults Attending

Number of Virtual Programming Events
Number of Engagements through Social Media

Number of Views through Social Media

November YTD

833 10,155
43 276
287 6,370
10 49
212 7,035
9,845 99,712

On December 2™, a Family Holiday party was held at the Sound Community Hub with 37 adults and 33 chil-
dren in attendance. The adults and children engaged in Christmas activities along with a nutritious snack and
an exciting visit from Santa. The Holiday party was held at the South River location on December 9%, with 16
adults and 13 children in attendance. The Virtual Facilitator position has now been filled and plans are under-
way to add virtual educational and fun activities for both adults and children this year. We were able to in-
crease our virtual events to 10 in Novermnber and are hopeful that attendance will increase as families become

more aware of the virtual programming.

Funding Sources for District Wide Childcare Spaces

November 2023
of # of

At ::hndren Families e #Chlldrenot ::::llles
CWELCC* 74 73 CWELCC 6 6
CWELCC Full Fee 199 195 CWELCC Full Fee 3 3
Extended Day Fee Subsidy 1 1 Fee Subsidy 1 1
Fee Subsidy 37 28 Ontario Works 1 1
Full Fee 19 18 Total 11 11
Ontario Works 15 11
Total 345 326

* CWELCC - Canada-Wide Early Learning Child Care;
eligible for children 0 - 6

BN A



Tamm‘ MacKenzie, CAO

Child Care Service Management Update

The Ministry of Education has recently issued the 2024 Child Care Funding Guidelines, Allocations and Can-
ada-Wide Early Leamning Child Care Guidelines (CWELCC). Investments from the Government of Ontario
and the Government of Canada in the child care and early years system will total more than $3.9B for 2024.
Funding will support the implementation of previously announced fee reductions, workforce supports and
other measures. This investment represents an increase of $42M over 2023,

Key changes to the funding guidelines include, updates on funding for cost escalation, additional funding for
emerging issues, updates under Wage Enhancement Grant (WEG) and Home Child Care Enhancement
Grant, updates on allocation holdbacks, adjustment to align to the calendar year, expiry of the one-time tran-
sitional grant, expiry of the Canada-Ontario Early Childhood Workforce Agreement, and the value-for-money
audits. Please see Appendix A for more detail.

In 2024, the Ontario Child Care Workforce Strategy will be introduced. This strategy will support the recruit-
ment and the retention of qualified professionals, help achieve system growth, and ensure increased access to
high quality licensed child care in the province. The Ontario Child Care Workforce Strategy will continue the
cornmitment to support Ontario’s child care and early years professionals by implementing better wages and
working conditions, supporting career laddering and entry to the profession, and building the profile of the
profession by implementing new programs and building on existing initiatives.

Quality Assurance Update

[t's been a busy year for child care and the focus for Workforce Strategy and Quality Assurance was on
providing ongoing support for educators in the field of early childhood education. Due to the continuing strug-
gle with retention and recruitment of RECE's great effort and funding was put into maintaining and recruiting
staff for child care programs around the district through the Become An ECE Campaign. The campaign cen-
tered on raising awareness and value of the ECE profession and supporting early childhood educators in the
workforce with a focus on building capacity. Along with the campaign focus, effort was put into offering an
array of professional leaming opportunities and training to all educators to build on early learning skills and
knowledge and promote a high-quality early learning environment.

In the spring to support the importance of professional development a full day training was offered to all early
years and child care educators for the east and west Districts of Parry Sound. The focus for the training was
to support the unique needs of the group with a focus on How Does Learning Happen, along with the im-
portance of mental wellness and self-care.

In addition to training opportunities a resource lending library has been created for all early years and child
care programs in the district. These resources will be made readily available for programs to access to assist
in supporting the educators and leaders in the program both professionally and personally. The resources will
support mental health, the learning environment, leadership & coaching, behaviour management, curriculum
development and more.

During the months of September to December, a total of 31 EartlyON and Child Care programs were visited.
During those visits a quality assurance assessment was completed. The assessments were used to provide an
overall evaluation of observations during the visits as well as feedback to the Supervisors and educators at the
centres. The assessment tool helps to measure the overall quality of the staff, learning environment and pro-
gramming being provided. Following the visits, highlights and recommendations were provided and any nec-
essary follow-up or changes were noted. All visits were successful and recommended changes have been ini-

tiated or recoinized bi the iroiram Suiervisors. |

10



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

To enhance and build on existing [ndigenous resources, two early learning kits
have been created for the early years and child care programs to borrow. The
kits are designed to assist and support educators in delivering the traditional
teachings of the Indigenous culture and supporting the importance of an inclu-
sive and diverse early learning environment. In addition, a beginner’s smudg-
ing kit and prayer book have been purchased for each child care program.

7 Grandfather Teachings

Income Support & Stability Divisional Update

With the retirement at the end of October of our longtime Supervisor of Income Support in the Parry Sound
Office, we have continued our integration of the Housing Stability and Ontario Works programs. Qur former
Supervisor of Housing Stability is now the Supervisor of Income Support & Stability and now oversees the
Ontario Works and Housing Stability programs in West Parry Sound. Qur former Supervisor of Income Sup-
port in the South River Office is now the Supervisor of Income Support & Stability for East Parry Sound. This
change will continue to support the provision of integrated services for the clients we serve.

Income Support & Stability front line users’ insightful recommendations have recently been launched in our
Fiit Program. Go Live was December 11™ Their input led to some streamlined approaches to real time data
entry, improved categorization features and functionality. These changes will empower the program to gener-
ate robust data that will enable our Leadership Team to effectively advocate with local municipal, provincial
and federal levels of government for funding that will positively impact the District of Parry Sound and the
people we serve.

The continued effort of building joint protocols between Income Support & Stability and Housing Services,
Tenant Services and Esprit is a strategic initiative to minimize duplication, remove silos and foster a seamless
client experience when working with any program at the DSSAB. Through this collaboration we have been
able to streamline processes and enable an integrated approach to client services. Shared protocols enhance
communications and information flow between Supervisors and front-line staff in each department while re-
ducing and eliminating redundancies.

11




Tammi Mac:l(enziei CAO

[ncome Support & Stability West have dedicated time to supporting the Esprit Women’s Shelter and their
staff throughout the work week. This cornmitment is an integrated approach to work with the counselors at
Esprit and the women grappling with the profound challenges associated with intimate partner violence. This
approach allows the teams to combine their diverse expertise to address the multifaceted needs of these
women. From counselling to legal assistance to transitional housing solutions, to accessing social assistance
funds, this fosters trust and open communication between departments and the women accessing the ser-
vices.

The Director of Income Support & Stability attended the OMSSA Policy Conference in Toronto from No-
vember 29™ to December 1. Some very informative plenaries included a panel discussion with the ADM’s
from MCCSS, MEDU, MMAH and Health. Other relevant plenaries included an update on Employment Ser-
vices Transformation and Supportive Housing hosted by lain DeJonge.

Staff attended 'Creating Amazing Customer Service’ training on November 14™,

Many clients have benefited from the Orphan Clinics hosted by the Nurse Practitioner-Led Clinics over the
past few months. The East Parry Sound team met with the NPLC team to discuss the challenges access to
primary care is in this part of the district. We are grateful for the support and partnership of the NPLC’s to
help address barriers for people working towards self-sustainability.

On November 7™, the Director of Income Support & Stability attended the DPSVAWCC meeting held in Par-
ry Sound. As well, he also attended the Health and Social Services meeting on December 6" and the West
Parry Sound Equity, Diversity and Inclusion meeting on December 12*.

Ontario Works Caseload

750
700
650
600 : i ——— -8
il T
550 i
500
450
2 “ < L L A
F oSS NG
o £ & N x <& &
Y@ L« N i
132 > Q
e 7)) m—)(0] w22 = 2023

12




Tammy MacKenzie, CAO

Ontario Works Intake - Social Assistance Digital Application (SADA) & Local Office
Ontario Works Applications Recelved

80
70
60
50
40
30
20

10

O A ™ o
& x S . & &
¥ooE &L T &

e 2020 (2] s 2022]  emtpum(23

ODSP Participants in Ontario Works Employment Assistance

60
50 _
40 g § -
. /\'\_——’:_____;_W See——
20 .
10
0
3 3 e A . < < 5 £
& & 4 WY & & F & F
& & i\ ¥ & & & &
< L,Q‘Q QQ QQ,
—2021 2022 2023

13



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ

The OW Caseload as of the end of November was 619. The number continues its slow upward climb we
have seen month over month in 2023. We are supporting 31 ODSP participants in our Employment Assis-
tance program, We also have 54 Temporary Care Assistance cases. [ntake was steady month over month.

We had 57 Ontario Works Applications (41 of those online through SADA).

Employment Assistance & Performance Outcomes

% of Closures Exiting to Employment

80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

e Parry Sound DSSAB 2022 === Provincial Average 2022
== Parry Sound DSSAB 2023 Provincial Average 2023

% of Caseload Exiting to Employment

7.00%
6.00%
5.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%
0.00%

o Parry Sound DSSAB 2022 = Provincial Average 2022
e Parry Sound DSSAB 2023 == Provincial Average 2023

Our Employment Outcomes performance in November exceeded last years performance and continues to
be well above the provincial average. These are great results considering the early start to the winter in our

area. Additionally, we also exited 7.6% of the caseload for any reason in November.

14



Tammi Macl(enzieI CAQ

MyBenefits Enrollment 2023

26.00%
25.00%
24.00%
23.00%
22.00%
21.00%
20.00%
19'00%::::9.0.::.9’-=---'- e e ==
e S S E R R R LR R
SARRBICRAgNInEINRAda8E883RR~
s Caseload Percentage
DBD Enrollment

Payment Receipt Method
November 2023

m Direct Bank Deposit
® Reloadable Payment Card

® Paper Chegue

21-Jul
28-Jul
04-Aug

yyyooooanEsSE2223 s
33 @ I ccobw
13333333888322224
ot S h b D th S
:anocﬁmwoﬁmwgézﬁg

Overpayment Recovery Rate

November 2023

B Less than 5%
W Exactly 5%
® More than 5% but less than 10%

m Exactly 10%

B More than 108




Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Ontario Works Update

Ontarioc Works implemented the Paperless By Default strategy initiated by the Ministry in November 2023.
Ontario Works is already paperless and uses electronic documents management. The final part is aligning
with the rest of the province and connecting the paperless strategy to clients already enrolled in my benefits.
This means all statements including Direct Deposit will no longer print at the local office, they will be accessi-
ble for viewing on the MyBenefits app. This will help achieve accuracy in client records and a more sustaina-
ble and technologically friendly approach to delivering social assistance.

The Employment Placement program with Employment North has seamlessly connected job seekers with
suitable employers and incentivized retention for employer and employee. Ontario Works has connected 10
people since the program started in 2022. Participants gain employment and the necessary tools to be suc-
cessful. The partnerships between Ontario Works, Employment North and Employers offer ongoing support
to contribute to sustained growth and career opportunities.

In preparation for Employment Services Transformation, we received approval for One-Time Funding to pro-
vide Transformational Case Management training to DSSAB staff. Blending Bridges Out of Poverty and
Coaching Principles, the training will support staff to shift from a ‘transactional’ mindset to a ‘transformational’
mindset.

16



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

Housing Stability Program - Community Relations Workers

Supsl November 2023 .. .. ..
All services performed, provided, or arranged by the Homeless- Income Source S
ness Stability Program staff to promote, improve, sustain, or re- Seni
store appropriate housing for individuals active with the Home- entor 4 14
lessness Stability Program, periodically within the month, not re- ODSP 10 28
quiring intense case management. Ontaric Works 4 21
Low Income 22 33
Intense Case Management November 2023 el el
Intense Case Management involves the coordination of appropri- Income Source a8
ate services and the provision of consistent and on-going weekly _
. o : ) . Senior 13 19
supports, required by the individual to obtain, and sustain housing
stability. ODSP 4 14
Ontario Works 7 15
ovem| E W YTD
N ber 2023 ast got Short Term Housing Allowance
Homeless 2 5 78
Active YTD
At Risk 2 4 107
Esprit Outreach Homeless 0 0 6 November 49
Esprit Qutreach at Risk 0 0 10 2023
Esprit in Shelter 2 22
Program Total 185
Housin ility: H hold Income Sources and | nce from HPP;
November 2023 November 2023
Total HPP Total
Income Source Reason for Issue
Senior 5 $1,195.40 Rental Arrears $453.51
ODSP 15 $3,517.42 Utilities/Firewood $1,344.04
Ontario Works 1 $212.00 Transportation $562.00
Low Income 6 $3,650.01 Food/Household/Misc $5,202.85
Emergency Housing $1,012.42
Total $15,261.42

17



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ

Ontario Works: Household Incom rces and Issuance from HPP
November 2023 November 2023
Total HPP

Income Source Reason for Issue o

ODSP 8 $4,508.44 Rental Arrears $1,897.00

Ontario Works 26 $15,685.09 Utilities/Firewood $4,015.29

Low Income 1 $454.26 Transportation $446.41
Food/Household/Misc. $558.85
Emergency Housing $13,730.25
Total $20,647.79

By-Name List Data

September 2021- November 2023

Active Housed Inactive

Quifiow - Housed  =@= nflow - Actively Homeless

20
-
g

- > _. *._____..,_:3— . -____-;——-—'""-_-..___—_—.

January February htarch Apnl May June July August September October November Decamber

Housing Stability Update

On November 28, 2023, staff attended a Seniors Connect Community Engagement hosted by Community
Support Services in Pointe Au Baril.

On December 5% the West Parry Sound Supervisor of Income Support & Stability attended a Community
Partners meeting hosted in the Seguin Council Chambers. The goal was to discuss outreach from community
services to the community.

Community Relations Workers created and planned very successful Income Support & Stability ID Clinics in
East & West Parry Sound. They collaborated with Ontario Works to implement two separate clinics to target
both sides of the district. The success of these clinics provided crucial identification to social assistance recipi-
ents, seniors and the vulnerable population. These clinics have not only provided essential identification but
will also empower clients by opening doors to services and opportunities previously difficult to access with-
out proper identification. This has a tangible impact on the lives of those we serve and moves them towards
stability and inclusivity. Through open communication and shared commitment in the IS&S program, the idea
evolved into a collaborative effort that surpassed our expectations.

18




Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ

Housing Programs
Social Housing Centralized Waitlist Report
November 2023
w

lE’le'rt'y Sound Pai:r Sound Total
Seniors 48 125 173
Families 134 445 579
Individuals 513 200 713
Total 695 770 1,465
Total Waitlist Unduplicated 470

Social Housing Centralized Waitlist (CWL) 2022 - 2023 Comparison
Applications and Households Housing from the CWL

l::);:;th z:: 2:: Cancelled Housed Is-lf;l;sing g‘tl)zr;th 2;: ;I:;v Cancelled Housed IS-II:JI:xsing
Jan 5 1 Jan 5 1 13

Feb 9 1 2 Feb 5 1 10

Mar 12 5 2 1 Mar 6 35

Apr 12 1 1 Apr 11 17 6

May 11 1 3 May 13 2 9 2

June 15 3 2 June 9 1 2 1

July 13 2 10 1 July 5 1 5 1

Aug 5 17 2 1 Aug 14 1 3 1

Sept 16 10 1 1 Sept 12 4

Oct 14 12 6 Oct 8 1 1 4 2
Nov 12 1 8 3 Nov 12 3

Dec 1 5 Dec

Total 125 6 68 26 3 Total 100 8 102 15 2

SPP = Special Prionty Applicant

19



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Housing Programs Update

Housing Programs had a busy year. We saw a longtime team member retire, and a new team member join.
Our team had the opportunity to participate in various trainings over 2023, one being an in-person training in
Toronto which was a great networking experience. We're looking forward to new opportunities in 2024!

We have had a significant amount of “Ontario Renovates™ 10-year loans start to fulfill their terms. These loans
were allocated to eligible homeowners for home repairs such as work to foundations, wells, roofs, etc. There
will be another 11 loans ending in 2024, In total, there were 15 loans discharged from the Ontario Renovates
Home Repair program in 2023. Of those, 11 were considered “defaults”, as they sold their home before the
term of the loan ended. During a “default”, the homeowner will pay back a portion of the loan to the DSSAB.

In 2023, Housing Programs saw an overall decrease of new social housing applications. Fortunately, we were
able to process a significant number of applications for COHB (Canada Ontario Housing Benefit), which al-
lowed those seeking affordable housing access to funding — applicants must obtain a rental agreement within
the district before they can apply for COHB and must meet financial eligibility. Although we have reached
our maximum COHB allocation and are suspended from submitting new applications until spring 2024, we
continue to promote the program with community partners and take information from applicants.

[n 2023, Housing Programs was able to process three separate “offers of accommodation” from the chrono-
logical waitlist for 66 Church. It has been several years since someone was housed based on their chronologi-
cal application date. This is due to special priority placements on list, as well as internal transfers — two of
those offered moved in during 2023, and one is scheduled to move in early 2024.

Housing Programs created and distributed a survey in the fall to local landlords and known developers via
social media to gather information about local rental rates/trends and to determine what the average cost of
rent would be for various sized units. The table below summarizes the average monthly rent of units posted
online in the District of Parry Sound. It reflects the increase we're seeing in private market rents in our area,
which directly corelates to the number of clients we’ve seen inquiring about COHB funding.

Average Monthly Rent by Unit Size

$3,000.00
$2,561.11

$2,500.00

$2,085.00
$2,000.00
$1,521.88
$1,500.00
$1,100.00
$1,000.00
$500.00
[

Bachelor 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom

20




Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

Parry Sound District Housing Corporation
November 2023

Activity for Tenant and Maintenance Services

Current YTD
Move outs 2 33
Move in 4 32
L1/L2 forms 0 5

N4 - notice of eviction for non payment of B ¥

rent

N5 - notice of eviction disturbing the quiet : 13
enjoyment of the other occupants

N6 - notice of eviction for illegal acts or a
misrepresenting income for RGI housing

N7 - notice of eviction for willful damage i
to unit

Repayment agreements 2 65
No Trespass Order 0 1
Tenant Home Visits 23 205
Mediation/Negotiation/Referrals 17 185
Tenant Engagements/Education 6 95

21



Ta.mmi MacKenzie, CAO
Tenant Services Update

Tenant Services spent the fall getting all remaining new leases out to tenants who weren't able to make it to
the workshops we provided in the common rooms. As well as making efforts to connect with each family unit
to understand the history, family dynamic, and needs of them, as the family units tend to be more difficult to
connect with {children, jobs, busy people). We now understand there is some work to be done in re-building
what seems like a bit of a lost relationship there (this is in our goals for the very near future to develop a strat-
egy to address this).

We also pursued a “holiday cheer” campaign around the buildings, bringing crafting supplies, Christmas trees,
omaments, and treats to share space with our tenants. It was very well received, we had lots of participation
and those who attended seemed to really enjoy their crafts they made and loved the cheerful atmosphere
(complete with holiday favourite music of course!).

For the family units we delivered holiday goodie bags to each door to celebrate the season.

(photo consent provided)

At the end of 2023, we put our heads together to create goals, wishes, and hopes for 2024. Some of the brain-
storming ideas that came forward are a formal tenant engagement strategy prioritizing working WITH and
FOR our tenants toward successful outcomes in our buildings, as well as working collaboratively with pariner-
ing departments so that the customer experience is smooth and efficient. Calling in additional supports
through the Ontario Works and Housing Stability programs, to assisting with reaching out for a recalculation
of rent when a tenant’s household composition or income changes, to transitioning through the housing stock
when appropriate if a family unit is no longer needed after children grow and move out. More to come on that
engagement strategy in months to come.

This past year we sadly experienced 9 deaths within our housing portfolio. The Tenant Services Team were
available to support and provide referrals for the tenants as they moumed their neighbours.

__...,_.__ -

22



Tammi MacKenzieI CAQ

Property Maintenance

November 2023

Pest Control

Vacant Units

Vacant Units -
The Meadow View

After Hours Calls

Work Orders

Fire Inspections

Capital Projects
November 2023

13

193

3 buildings are currently being inspected monthly for bedbugs; 7 units have
been treated

one-bedroom (8); multiple bedroom (5)
(not Inclusive of The Meadow View)

one-bedroom market units available

Smoke detector defect, water leaking from upstairs, fire panel “trouble” alarm,
bed bugs, power outage, funace trouble, Bell Canada requiring access to me-
chanical room

4 staff participate in the on-call phone tree system

Created for maintenance work, and related materials for the month of Novem-
ber

Will provide in next month’s report

¢ Architectural and structural inspections are currently underway for the planning phase of the Esprit Ren-

ovation project

¢ Roof replacement completed for a child care centre in Parry Sound
» Scheduled painters, and flooring replacement for our Parry Sound Office
» Software upgrade for Housing Operations continues

Duplex Project Update

South River; Drywall installation complete, main floor being prepared for flooring installation. Walls and ceil-
ings have been primed with one coat of paint. Trim work has commenced. Bi-fold closet doors installed.
Mudding and priming on-going at time of review. Occupancy timeline is on track for February 1%, 2024,

Burks Falls: Unit paver sidewalk and exterior siding complete. New front doors installed and capped. Insula-
tion & strapping on basement perimeter walls installed. Two new steel columns with concrete slabs com-
plete. Occupancy timeline is on track for March 2024



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Esprit Place Family Resource Centre

November 2023
. November
Emergency Shelter Services YTD
2023

Number of women who stayed in shelter . o
this month
Number of children who stayed in the

. 6 49
shelter this month
Number of hours of direct service to 140 e
women (shelter and counselling) ’
Number of days at capacity 5 85
Number of days over capacity 21 92
Overall capacity % 110% 85%
Resident bed nights (women & children) 331 2,624
Phone interactions (crisis/support) 32 309

November
Transitional Support YTD
2023
Number of women served this month 12 137
Number of NEW women registered in the program 6 31
Number of public ed/groups offered 0 3
; November
Child Witness Program YTD
2023

Number of children/women served this month 28 188
Number of NEW clients (mothers and children) 45
registered in the program
Number of public ed/groups offered 0 7

24



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Esprit Place Family Resource Centre Update

Esprit Place continues to be very busy supporting women and children fleeing violence, as well as women
experiencing homelessness from across the District of Parry Sound. Qur residential program remained at or
over capacity for the duration of the fall and continued to be near capacity during the holiday season. Opera-
tionally we have begun to undertake a complete review and update of Esprit Place policies and procedures
with a completion goal of mid-2024. We have also undergone a comprehensive review and upgrade of our
security camera system, led by our IT Director. Cameras have been installed and activated and the next
phase of the project will include enhanced access controls and a reviewing of current monitoring practices.
This is a significant enhancement to our building that will ensure the ongoing safety and security of Esprit
Place residents and staff.

As previously reported, CMHA has supported an Addiction’s Counsellor to be present at the shelter a half
day a week. This partnership has increased access to timely addiction and mental health support for our cli-
ents and has strengthened the relationship with this important community partner. As a direct result of the
success of this arrangement, CMHA has also committed an additional Crisis Counsellor to work in the shelter
for one half day bi-weekly. This individual will meet with all new residents to ensure that appropriate referrals
are made to CMHA programs and partner programs across the district.

We are also priontizing partnerships with other local community organizations to ensure Esprit clients have
easy and timely access to support and resources. Esprit staff have been engaging with St. Mary’s Church to
arrange for Esprit clients and outreach clients to have comfortable and easy access to their boutique and free
community meal programs, and Hope Pregnancy Centre will start delivering a Finance and Budgeting Pro-
gram at Esprit Place for clients.

Although COVID-19 is no longer considered an emergency within the community, it, as well as other season-
al respiratory viruses continue to have an impact on shelter operations. Staff illness has created challenges
with scheduling and has increased the demand for relief staff and management to secure appropriate opera-
tions. We are closely monitoring updates from our local Public Health Unit and have prioritized infection pre
vention and control measures within Esprit Place to try and mitigate the risk of outbreak.

The holiday season was very busy at Esprit Place. As usual, our community was very generous during the
Christmas period. Last year was the inaugural year for our Sponsor-a-Family Campaign spearheaded by our
incredible Communications Officer. We surpassed our goal of sponsorship for 12 families and were able to
provide gift cards and small gifts to 14 families and individuals. We received support from throughout the
community including, but limited to, local individuals, businesses, and hockey teams. In addition, Parry Sound
EMS selected Esprit Place as a recipient of its toy drive, many local citizens donated cash, toys, gift cards,
food, stuffed shoeboxes, and Zak's Clothing made a significant in-kind contribution of new women'’s clothing.
These donations were used to ensure the women and children staying at Esprit Place, as well as many other
families across the district had the Christmas season they deserved.

25



Appendix A

Ministry of Education Ministére de I'Education »

Early Years and Child Care Division de la petite enfance et de la o nta rlo @
Division garde d'enfants

315 Front Street West, 11" Floor 315, rue Front Quest, 11e étage Toronto,

Toronto, ON M7A 0B8 ON M7A 0B3

TO: Consolidated Municipal Service Managers (CMSMs)

District Social Services Administration Boards (DSSABs)

FROM: Holly Moran, Assistant Deputy Minister
Early Years and Child Care Division
DATE: November 30, 2023
SUBJECT: 2024 Child Care, EarlyON Child and Family Centres, and Canada-wide

Early Learning and Child Care Funding

We continue to invest and make strides in our work together to deliver affordable, accessible
and high-quality child care to Ontario’s families. With that, and as promised in September, | am
pleased to share the following to support municipal planning for 2024:

2024 Child Care Funding Allocations
2024 Child Care and EarlyON Child and Family Centres Service Management and
Funding Guidelines (EYCC guidelines)

e 2024 Canada-wide Early Learning and Child Care System Guidelines (CWELCC
guidelines)

e 2024 transfer payment agreement (to be shared under separate cover).

Investments

Investments from the Government of Ontario and the Government of Canada in the child care
and early years system will total more than $3.9B for 2024. Funding will support the
implementation of previously announced fee reductions, workforce supports and other
measures. This investment represents an increase of $42M over 2023,

$1.6B is being invested in pre-CWELCC child care programs, including:

$1.2B in general allocation and Child Care Expansion Plan

$26M in base funding for Licensed Home Child Care

$146M in Canada-Ontario Early Learning and Child Care funding

$203M in Wage Enhancement/Home Child Care Enhancement Grant funding
$162M is being invested in EarlyON Child and Family Centres, including:

$101M in provincial allocation
$61M in Canada-Ontario Early Learning and Child Care funding



$2.1B is being invested in CWELCC, including:

$1.9B for fee reductions and workforce compensation
$28M for CMSM/DSSAB CWELCC administration
$66M for space creation

$75M for emerging issues

$85M for start-up grants

$34.5M in other investments, including:

$25.5M for off-reserve Indigenous-led Child Care, and Child and Family Programming; and
$9M for mental health programs over three years, from 2022-23 to 2024-25.

Key changes

A. Updates on funding for cost escalation

The ministry recognizes that licensees may be subject to cost escalation beyond their control
(e.g., rent increases, inflation). The ministry has included cost escalation funding of
approximately $235M to support licensees. CMSMs/DSSABs should provide cost escalation
funding to licensees using updated cost escalation factors. Refer to Section 7 of the 2024
CWELCC guidelines for more information.

B. Additional funding for emerging issues

In addition to the cost escalation funding, the ministry is also allocating an additional $75M
to support emerging issues for CWELCC-enrolled licensees. CMSMs/DSSABs are required
to implement a fair and transparent process (such as through an application) to allocate this
funding to licensees who demonstrate that their revenue for eligible spaces (including
routine funding, fee reduction, wage enhancement, workforce compensation, cost escalation
and parent fees) is insufficient to support the licensees’ non-discretionary costs. This
funding is a new and separate allocation under the 2024 transfer payment agreements.

The ministry will be seeking to gain an early understanding of uptake of this component of
the program. CMSMs/DSSABs must report funding commitments by Monday, February 5,
2024. See attached template. Refer to Section 8 of the 2024 CWELCC guidelines for more
information.

C. Updates under Wage Enhancement Grant (WEG) and Home Child Care Enhancement
Grant (HCCEG)

The ministry has increased the hourly wage maximum for WEG and HCCEG to help close
the gap between RECEs in the education sector and eligible RECEs in licensed child care
settings. The new hourly wage maximum for WEG is $30.59 per hour, for full HCCEG is
$305.90 per day and for partial HCCEG is $183.54 per day.

D. Updates on allocation holdbacks

For 2024, the ministry has removed the 5 per cent holdback policy on all allocations. In its
place, the ministry will withhold a portion of CWELCC funding equal to the difference
between a CMSM’s/DSSAB's fee reduction allocation calculated at full licensed capacity
versus calculated at assumed targeted operating capacity.



CMSMs/DSSABs will still have flexibility within their CWELCC allocation to provide funding
up to the licensees’ targeted operating capacity. To access additional funding to support
operating capacity beyond the assumed targeted operating capacity (and up to full licensed
capacity), CMSMs/DSSABs will be required to demonstrate that space occupancy exceeds
the assumed targeted operating capacity.

. Adjustment to align to the calendar year

For 2024, an adjustment is being made to realign the allocation with the cash payment
stream. As the January 2024 fee reduction and workforce compensation amounts totaling
$161M are included in the December 2023 payments, these amounts are not part of the
2024 allocations as they will have already been provided. The adjustment will be applied to
monthly payments (from January to December).

. Expiry of the one-time transitional grant

In 2021 and 2022, the ministry introduced changes to provincial administrative funding,
specifically the requirement to cost share all provincial child care administration funding at a
rate of 50/50 and reducing the allowable administrative funding threshold from 10% to 5%.

Considering the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and the significant changes to the
system introduced by CWELCC in 2022, the ministry provided a transitional grant to
CMSMs/DSSABs for 2023 to support CMSMs/DSSABs while they found efficiencies and
adjusted their administrative cost structures. After three years of funding, over which the
ministry has invested a total of $220M to help stabilize the system during exceptional
circumstances, the one-time transitional grant will be discontinued for 2024.

. Expiry of the Canada-Ontario Early Childhood Workforce Agreement

In August 2021, the governments of Ontario and Canada signed the Early Childhood
Workforce Agreement (WFA), which provided Ontario with about $150M in one-time federal
funding to support the recruitment and retention of the early childhood workforce. The
Agreement was amended in September 2022 to permit completion of the initiatives by
March 2023. In recognition of the workforce supports in the CWELCC Agreement the early
years and child care workforce support provided through the WFA will not continue in 2024.

. Value-for-money audits

CMSMs/DSSABSs who directly operate child care centres are required to retain independent
advice (e.g., third-party services) and conduct a value-for-money audit on their direct
delivery of child care services.

The purpose of the value-for-money audit is to determine whether provincial funding is being
used efficiently and effectively by directly operated centres, and whether the child care
services could be offered by a third-party provider instead. The audit report,
recommendations and management responses should be posted publicly.



Other important information

Recently announced Ontario Child Care Workforce Strategy

The Ontario Child Care Workforce Strategy was announced on November 16, 2023. The
Workforce Strategy will support the recruitment and the retention of qualified professionals, help
achieve system growth, and ensure increased access to high-quality licensed child care in the
province. The ministry is working on the implementation of the Workforce Strategy and will be
communicating further details in the coming months.

EarlyON Child and Family Centres

To support EarlyON Child and Family Centres in delivering mandatory core services that are
responsive to local needs, the ministry has provided clarification in the guidelines around
eligible expenses for light meals or snacks for EarlyON program participants.

The ministry has also made updates to emphasize the critical role that EarlyON staff play in the
early identification of child development concerns and in connecting families to specialized
services.

Clarification on CWELCC recoveries

On September 8, the ministry distributed an additional Q&A document to provide greater clarity
on the 2023 CWELCC System Update materials shared in late May and early June 2023.
CMSMs/DSSABs are encouraged to review the ministry’s expectations related to recoveries
upon year-end reconciliation.

Specifically, as part of the year-end financial review and reconciliation process with licensees,
CMSMs/DSSABs must ensure CWELCC funding is used to support the actual eligible costs
incurred by licensees and, when vacancies on eligible spaces lead to cost avoidance,
CMSMs/DSSABs should work with licensees to identify savings related to those avoidable costs
and recover up to 52.75% of such savings (which is the government contribution towards the
base fee).

Upcoming CWELCC funding approach

The ministry continues to work on finalizing a new child care funding approach that aims to
integrate current child care funds into the new CWELCC funding formula. Information about a
new funding approach will follow later providing sufficient time to support a smooth
implementation.

Thank you for your ongoing support and valuable feedback. We look forward to working
together to support the sector, children and families. If you have any questions, please contact
your Early Years Advisor or Financial Analyst (contact list can be found on the ministry website).

Sincerely,

Original signed by
Holly Moran



Assistant Deputy Minister
Early Years and Child Care Division
Ministry of Education

c. Early Years Advisors, Programs and Service Integration Branch
Financial Analysts, Financial Accountability and Data Analysis Branch

Attachments:

* 2024 Child Care and EarlyON Child and Family Centres Service Management and
Funding Guidelines

2024 Canada-wide Early Learning and Child Care System Guidelines

Appendix A - 2024 Child Care Funding Allocations

Appendix B - 2024 EarlyON Funding Allocations

Appendix C - 2024 CWELCC Funding Allocations

Update on Emerging Issues Funding Application and Commitment Status



District of Parry Sound

Social Services
F.,*f Administration Board

Chief Administrative Officer’s
Report

February 2024

Mission Statement

To foster healthier communities by economically providing
caring human services that empower and enable the
people we serve to improve their quality of life.



Ta.mmi MacKenziei CAO
NOSDA Chair’s Meeting

On Jan. 10", myself and Board Chair Rick Zanussi attended a NOSDA Chair's meeting where the topic of the
Federal “Reaching Home” Funding reductions was discussed. We have not been a recipient of this funding
allotment, however we as a Board will be discussing our support of our NOSDA partners in their ask for this
reduction of 57% to be reversed.

Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (HIRA) Session

On Jan. 12* | attend a Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment or HIRA session to support the Municipal-
ity of Magnetawan who are modernizing their emergency management program. The first phase of this pro-
ject is well underway, and the purpose of HIRA is to assess the potential risk of hazards with the capacity to
cause an emergency or disaster. This process helps to set priorities for prevention, mitigation, preparedness,
response, and recovery efforts.

2024 Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA) Annual Conference

[ had the privilege to participate in the 2024 Rural Ontarioc Municipal Association (ROMA) Annual Confer-
ence, January 21% to 23" at the Sheraton Centre Toronto Hotel. Rural municipalities are facing unprecedent-
ed challenges related to homelessness, access to primary health care and attainable housing. More than 1,600
participants from as many as 300 municipalities, as well as organizations across Ontario, participated in this
conference.

The conference theme, “Closer to Home” specifically reflects ROMA's recent focus on improving rural access
to primary health care. The event featured dozens of speakers, sessions and workshops that reflect the broad
scope of rural municipal responsibilities. Keynote presenters included:

+ Hon. Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario

e Hon. Paul Calandra, Ontario’s Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
» Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs

« Hon. Kinga Surma, Minister of Infrastructure

o Marit Stiles, Leader of the Ontario NDP and Official Opposition

+ Bonnie Crombie, Leader, Ontario Liberal Party

o Mike Schreiner, Leader of the Green Party of Ontario

» Robin Jones, ROMA Chair

« Colin Best, AMO President

| participated in nine delegations to various ministries with NOSDA . We were received very well by all minis-
ters and representatives and look forward to their responses.

_ |



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

ﬁ Caroline Mulroney @C Mutroney - im

Thank you to AFMO, NOSDA & @TIACtweets for meeting with me during
#ROMA2024, we discussed the importance of Francophone tourism to
Northern Ontario’s economy & safeguarding essential French-language
service dellvery for ail ages across Ontarlo, including in rural & remote

areas.

Michael Parsa & Follow
& EMichaetParsa

It was a pleasure to meet with
@NOSDA2 today at @ROMA Ont to
discuss ways that we can work together
to continue improving social assistance
delivery for everyone in rural Ontario.

Thank you for sharing your insights,

#ROMA2024



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ
Town of Parry Sound Official Plan Visioning Session

On January 30™ we attended a Visioning Workshop hosted by the Town of Parry Sound at the Bobby Orr
Community Centre, as they undertake an update to their Official Plan with the help of MHBC planning. [den
tified as a key community member, the DSSAB was invited to attend and provide input into this important
initiative. This event was well attended, and providing for thought provoking and engaging conversations in a
workshop format. The town is inviting feedback from the community through a visioning questionnaire

found here until Friday February 9%, 2024. For more information on the Official Plan Review and to keep up
to date with updates and opportunities to get involved, please visit the Official Plan Review webpage.

Ontario Health Team

On January 26", we were pleased to be present at the Charles W. Stockey centre in Parry Sound where Dep-
uty Premier and Minister of Health, Sylvia Jones, announced the approval of the West Parry Sound Ontario
Health Team. Since June of 2018, when the Ministry of Health announced its intention to restructure how
health care is organized and delivered across the province, local partners have been working to ensure that
West Parry Sound has an official voice at the table. Becoming one of 58 localized health organizations tasked
with better integration of local services will provide the WPS OHT partners with opportunities to champion
the unique challenges of the area and to build local solutions, based on the real-time needs of West Parry
Sound. As an organization that depends on integration and partnerships, we are proud to be a partner in the
creation of the new West Parry Sound Ontario Health Team. This will mean further advancement of partner-
ships, with greater financial resources from the province, which will broaden the scope of collaboration be-
tween health and human service providers. Together, we will continue to work towards better outcomes for
those we serve.

West Parry Sound Ontario Health Team

Announced by Ministry of Health

Facebook Pages

A friendly reminder to follow our Facebook pages!
o District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board
+ Esprit Place Family Resource Centre
s EarlyON Child and Family Centres in the District of Parry Sound
+ The Meadow View

4




Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ
Social Media

Facebook Stats

District of Parry Sound Social JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
Services Administration Board 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Page Followers 478 490 500 513 521 530

Post Reach this Period (# of people who

4,010 2,249 4,112 2,667 4,324 2,441
saw post)

Post Engagement this Period (# of

. 692 234 428 287 305 289

reactions, comments, shares)
Esprit Place Family Resource JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
Centre 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Page Followers 131 132 133 133 151 175
Post Reach this Peri f 1

ost Reach this Period (# of people who 203 62 55 92 5743 1610
saw post)
Post !Engagement this Period (# of 5 y 2 6 624 202
reactions, comments, shares)
DSSAB Twitter Stats JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
https://twitter com/psdssab 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Tweets 10 N/A 19 11 8 4
Total Impressions 301 56 229 206 167 77
Total Followers 30 31 32 34 40 42
DSSAB LinkedIN Stats JUNE AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
https:/ /bitly/2YyFHIE 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
Total Followers 434 437 441 444 444 444
Search Appearances (in last 7 days) 281 185 115 49 52 25
Total Page Views 56 33 22 49 48 30
Post Impressions 786 182 558 1,036 570 368
Total Unique Visitors 25 19 14 22 18 16

5



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

:EW! l.ntagram‘; Esprit Place NOV DEC

e o 2023 2023
ttps:/ /www.ins ritplace

Total Followers 0 55

# of posts 0 18

Social Media Follower - Trends

600

500 B
— ——

400 v

300

200/ -

100 =

0 —— ———

SIESERSE~ I~ BE B~ I~ R B B S HES S IS BT IS TN RS IR T~ T B B B B BRI B BRI

3553553588588 3553538¢3888383538333838¢:3£8¢%

== [ acebook Followers - DSSAB

Twitter followers - DSSAB

i
1

«Linkedin Followers - DSSAB
Facebook Followers - Esprit Place s Instagram - Esprit Place




Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ
Licensed Child Care Programs

Total Children Utilizing Directly Operated Child Care in the District
December 2023

Fairview First Steps Highlands Waubeek

Age Group o, ¢ ELCC ELCC ELCC HCCE Total
:Sf?;ﬁ) 2 3 3 1 19 28
(Tl‘;f:)i:[) 10 7 12 21 24 74
F;;:E’)' 17 17 20 29 53 136
gh‘?{d’::ve 29 27 35 51 96 238

Fairview, First Steps, and Waubeek Early Learning and Child Care Centres are at their operating capacity and

Highlands has reached their licensed capacity to try and accommodate as many families off the waitlist as
possible.

School Age Programs
December 2023

. i Secon
Location Enrollment m Wai ﬂistdary
Mapleridge After School 26 6 3
Mapleridge Before School 11 0 0
Sundridge Centennial After School 13 0 0
Home Child Care 37 10 1
# of Active Children 87 26 4



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Directly Operated Child Care Waitlist by Program
December 2023

HCCP
Waubeek

Highlands m Secondary

: m Primary
First Steps

Fairview

L=

20 40 4] B0 100 120

The blue bar indicates the current number of children needing care now that cannot be accommodated. The
red bar shows the number of children that will be needing care in future months. The greatest need for spaces
remains consistent across the west side of the district and the southeast corner, namely Emsdale, Keamey,
Sprucedale, and Novar communities.

Inclusion Support Services
December 2023
Age Group EarlyON Licensed Monthly YTD Total Waitlist New Discharges
Infant 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Toddler 0 10 10 21 1 ! 0
(18-30M)
P

——— 6 32 38 67 4 3 0
(30M-4Y)
School Age (4Y+) 4 13 17 49 1 0 0
Monthly Total 10 55 65 - 6 5 0
YTD Total 12 80 - 137 46 46 32



Tamm‘ MacKenzie, CAQ

EarlyON Child and Family Programs

December 2023

Activity December YTD
Number of Children Attending 711 18,866
Number of New Children Attending 25 601
Number of Adults Attending 223 6.893
Number of Virtual Programming Events 3 52
Number of Engagements through Social Media 146 7,181
Numnber of Views through Social Media 4,323 104,035

The EarlyON Child and Family Centres have had great success this past year as shown by the Year-to-Date
totals. Over 18,000 children and over 6,000 adults have visited the programs! In addition, we have surpassed
our goal of 100,000 views on the EarlyON Facebook pagel

Fanding Sources for District Wide Childcare Spaces

December 2023
Active ::l;idnn :::lllu g JoUce T e ::I:I:dren ::::illes
CWELCC* 75 74 CWELCC 1 1
CWELCC Full Fee 203 199 CWELCC Full Fee 1 1
Extended Day Fee Subsidy 1 1 Fee Subsidy 1 1
Fee Subsidy 38 27 Ontario Works 0 0
Full Fee 20 19 Total 3 3
Ontario Works 12 9
Total 349 329 * CWELCC - Canada-Wide Early Learning Child Care;

eligible for children 0 - 6



Tammy MacKenzie, CAO

Ontario Works Caseload

750
700
650
600 R
550 g™ =
S00
450
4 o KY 2 A x A < 5 A
o\;bé &'8‘ é\,g& vg"\ O 5 &;fs 6‘9@ \6& & @\oo’
o < \'a Q\,QI v & Q.‘"e'
o SRS
—— 7020  —3071 2022 2023

Ontario Works Intake - Social Assistance Digital Application (SADA) & Local Office
Ontario Works Applications Received

Ontario Works Applications Received

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

e 2020 =—@==32021 2022 e=@p==3023

10




Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
ODSP Participants in Ontario Works Employment Asgistance

60
50
40

30

20
10

A

o ’S\ 2 o

R AR S A S S

w & ¥ & o &
« o

o~
&
O

—702] = 2022 mm—?(023

The OW Caseload as of the end of December is 622. The number continues its slow upward climb we have
seen month over month in 2023. We are supporting 33 ODSP participants in our Employment Assistance
program. We also have 55 Temporary Care Assistance cases. Intake was steady month over month. We had
48 Ontario Works Applications (43 of those online through SADA) in the month of December.

Employment Assistance & Performance Outcomes

% of Closures Exiting to Employment

80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

= Parry Sound DSSAB 2022

Provincial Average 2022

- Parry Sound DSSAB 2023 - - Provincial Average 2023

2

11



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

% of Caseload Exiting to Employment

7.00%
6.00%
5.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%
0.00%

Parry Sound DSSAB 2022 ——Provincial Average 2022

Parry Sound DSSAB 2023 Provincial Average 2023

Our Employment Qutcomes performance in December have exceeded last years performance and continues
to be well above the provincial average and our target range. These are great results considering the early
start to the winter in our area and the declining job postings according to the Labour Market Group. Addition-
ally, we also exited 6.9% of the caseload for any reason in December.

MyBenefits Enrollment 2023

26.00%

25.00%

24.00%

23.00%

22.00%

21.00%

20.00%

19.00%

06-Jan
13-Jan
20-Jan
27-Jan
03-Feb
10-Feb
17-Feb
24-Feb
03-Mar
10-Mar
17-Mar
24-Mar
31-Mar
07-Apr
14-Apr
21-Apr
28-Apr
05-May
12-May
19-May
26-May
02-Jun
09-Jun
16-Jun
23-Jun
30-Jun
07-)ul
14-jul
21-Jul
28-Jul
04-Aug
11-Aug
18-Aug
25-Aug
01-Sep
08-Sep
15-Sep
22-5ep
29-S%ep
06-Oct
13-Oct
20-Oct
27-0ct
03-Nov
10-Nov
17-Nov
24-Nov
01-Dec

—(Caseload Percentage

12



Tammi Macl(enzieI CAO

DBD Enrollment

Payment Receipt Method
December 2023

® Direct Bank Deposit
@ Reloadable Payment Card

® Paper Cheque

Overpayment Recovery Rate

December 2023

® Less than 5%

| Exactly 5%

® More than 5% but less than 10%
B Exactly 10%

® More than 10%




Tammy MacKenzie, CAO

West Porry Sound Health Centre
Rural Nurse Practitioner-Led Clinic

District of Parry Sound WS[H:I@

Social Services

Administrtion Board c ARES

Chents

Referral Source Client Gender
5 rd I N -" L Fermale
A =T S— A Male
50% Housing Stability

v
V| 416% Tenant Services Location of Encounter

25% Ontario Works m o 3% m

12.5% Esprit Place

Referral Out

Min Attorney General

Encounter Data for 2023-2024 Q3 (Oct-Dec)

14



Tamm‘ MacKenzie, CAQO

Housing Stability Program - Community Relations Workers

Support December 2023 i
All services performed, provided, or arranged by the Homeless- Income Source
ness Stability Program staff to promote, improve, sustain, or re- Sen 5 ”
store appropriate housing for individuals active with the Home- enor ! !
lessness Stability Program, periodically within the month, not re- ODSP 10 28
quiring intense case management, Ontario Works 4 17
Low Income 22 33
Intense Case Management December 2023
Intense Case Management involves the coordination of appropri- Income Source gagt West
ate services and the provision of consistent and on-going weekly )
. e . . . Senior 13 19
supports, required by the individual to obtain, and sustain housing
stability. ODSP 4 14
Ontario Works 8 15
Contact/Referrals Low Income 9 54
December 2023 i ey est LT Short Term Housing Allowance
Homeless 0 3 81
Active YTD
At Risk 2 1 110
Esprit Outreach Homeless 0 0 6 December 44
Esprit Outreach at Risk 1 1 12 2023
Esprit in Shelter 2 24
Program Total 191
Housin: ility: H hold Incom I I nce from HPP:
December 2023 December 2023
Total HPP Total
Income Source Reason for Issue
Senior 4 $1,682.21 Utilities/Firewood $400.00
ODSP 10 $3,423.52 Transportation $1,037.91
Ontario Works 3 $3,276.62 Food/Household/Misc ~ $7,798.83
Low Income 4 $2,12561 Emergency Housing $1,271.22
Total $10,507.96

15



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO

Ontario Works: Household Income Sources and Issuance from HPP

December 2023 December 2023

Income Source Ll Reason for Issue fotal
Senior 1 $941.29 Rental Arrears $2,219.00
ODSP 4 $2,178.11 Utilities/Firewood $4,885.81
Ontario Works 10 $7.309.98 Food/Household/Misc.  $8,370.47
Low Income 8 $5,260.60 Emergency Housing $214.70

Total $15,689.98
By-Name List Data

September 2021~ December 2023

64 208 75

Active Housed tnactive

=@ Quttlow - Housed =@~ Inflow - Actively Homeless
40

—

__,-'“' —=if — _h"w. »
20 b ___,z'!' ~— P
. k- ot e I —— & =
"’P’A\.\' — - i
0 —r =
September Oclober MNovember December January  Fabruary March April May June July August

16



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ

Housing Programs
Soclal Housing Centralized Waitlist Report
December 2023

E:::t'y Sound r::; Sound Total
Seniors 48 125 173
Families 131 443 574
Individuals 506 200 706
Total 685 768 1,453
Total Waitlist Unduplicated 466

Social Housing Centralized Waitlist (CWL1) 2022 - 2023 Comparison
Applications and Houscholds Housing from the CWL

gz;;th :;: g:: Cancelled Housed ls-ll;l:lsing g:;;gth :;: 2:: Cancelled Housed IS-Il:)l:xsing
Jan 5 1 Jan S 1 13

Feb g 1 2 Feb 5 1 10

Mar 12 5 2 1 Mar 6 89

Apr 12 1 1 Apr 11 17 6

May 11 1 3 May 13 2 9 2

June 15 3 2 June 9 1 2 1

July 13 2 10 1 July 5 1 5 1

Aug 5 17 2 1 Aug 14 1 3 1

Sept 16 10 1 1 Sept 12 4

Oct 14 12 6 Oct 8 1 1 4 2
Nov 12 i 8 3 Nov 12 3

Dec 1 5 Dec 1 2 3 3
Total 125 6 68 26 3 Total 101 8 104 18 5

SPP = Special Prionty Applicant

17



Ta.mmi MacKenziei CAQ

¢ Housing Programs added only one new application to the centralized waitlist in the month of December
+ Two applications were cancelled:

¢ one was cancelled as the applicant has now entered long term care

¢ one was cancelled as the applicant is deceased
e All three housed applicants in December held special priority placement on the waitlist

Parry Sound District Housing Corporation
December 2023

Activity for Tenant and Maintenance Services

Current YTD
Move outs 2 35
Move in 4 36
Li/L2 forms 0 8
N4 - notice of eviction for non payment of ) %
rent
N5 - notice of eviction disturbing the quiet 13
enjoyment of the other occupants
N6 - notice of eviction for illegal acts or 0
misrepresenting income for RGI housing
N7 - notice of eviction for willful damage 5
to unit
Repayment agreements 0 65
No Trespass Order 0 1
Tenant Home Visits 19 224
Mediation/Negotiation/Referrals 9 194
Tenant Engagements/Education 4 99

18



Tammi MacKenzie, CAQ

Property Maintenance

December 2023

Pest Control

Vacant Units

Vacant Units -
The Meadow View

After Hours Calls

Work Orders

Fire Inspections

Capital Projects
December 2023

15

121

3 buildings are currently being inspected monthly for bedbugs; 8 units have
been treated

one-bedroom (10}, multiple bedroom (5)
(not inclusive of The Meadow View)

one-bedroom market units available

Smoke detector defect, water running in vacant unit, hot water tank repairs, fur-
nace trouble, OPP wellness check, toilet not flushing
4 staff participate in the on-call phone tree system

Created for maintenance work, and related materials for the month of Decem-
ber

Annual inspections were done for 5 apartment buildings, sprinkler inspection
complete for 1 building

» Architectural and structural inspections are currently underway for the planning phase of the Esprit Ren-

ovation project

¢ Painting and flooring replacement underway for Beechwood Office
o Software upgrade for Housing Operations continues
* Water pipe replacement investigation underway

Duplex Project Update

South River: Work on hot water tanks ongoing at the time of the review. Flooring complete in all units. The
stair nosing installed. Railings to upper level cutstanding. Doors are installed and painted. Millwork installa-
tion has commenced. Range hoods installed. A small portion of drywall / painting in main level bedrooms
complete. Area to be primed & painted. Occupancy timeline is on track for February 1%, 2024,

Burks Falls: Priming was ongoing at the time of the review. Exterior railing outstanding. Dryer vent goose-
necks and new hose bib have been installed. Dust from brick removal on new soffit to be cleaned. Contractor
to confirm reason for break in eavestrough at the rear of the building, Occupancy timeline is on track for

March 2024.

19



Tammi MacKenzie, CAO
Esprit Place Family Resource Centre

December 2023
: December
Emergency Shelter Services YTD
2023

Number of women who stayed in shelter 190
this month
Number of children who stayed in the

. 3 49
shelter this month
Number of hours of direct service to 137 {950
women (shelter and counselling) ’
Number of days at capacity 1 86
Number of days over capacity 0 92
Overall capacity % 75% 84%
Resident bed nights (women & children) 233 2,857
Phone interactions (crisis/support) 32 309

ores December
Transitional Support 2023 YTD
Number of women served this month 22 159
Number of NEW women registered in the program 3 34
Number of public ed/groups offered 0 3
December
Child Witness Program 2 YTD
2023

Number of children/women served this month 28 216
Number of NEW clients (mothers and children) "
registered in the program
Number of public ed/groups offered 0 7

20



Lions Club of Powassan

P.O. Box 597
Powassan, ON POH 170

January 15, 2024
Dear Contributor,

The members of the Powassan Lions Club would like to thank you for your
donation to the Powassan Lions Christmas Fund.

Thanks to your generosity, we were able to distribute Toys, Gift Cards and/or
Turkeys to 42 families, including 20 Children in the Powassan area.

We also distributed treats to the senior’s homes along with a visit from Santa
Claus.

Thank-you for your donation and we wish you all the best for 2024.

Yours truly,

Nicole Oshell
President, Powassan Lions Club






FONOM -

Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities

February 2, 2024

WHEREAS current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are undermining Ontario’s
economic prosperity and quality of life

WHEREAS nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for services in areas of
provincial responsibility, and expenditures are outpacing provincial contributions by
nearly $4 billion a year

WHEREAS municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not grow with the economy or
inflation

WHEREAS unprecedented population and housing growth will require significant
investments in municipal infrastructure

WHEREAS municipalities are being asked to take on complex health and socia!
challenges — like homelessness, supporting asylum seekers and addressing the mental
health and addictions crises

WHEREAS inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy decisions are sharply
constraining municipal fiscal capacity

WHEREAS property taxpayers — including people on fixed incomes and small businesses
— can’t afford to subsidize income re-distribution programs for those most in need
WHEREAS the province can and should invest more in the prosperity of communities
WHEREAS municipalities and the provincial government have a strong history of
collaboration

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities
asks the Province of Ontario to commit to undertaking with the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario a comprehensive social and economic prosperity review to
promote the stability and sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion be sent to the Premier of Ontario, Minister of
Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Minister of Finance, the Association of Municipalities
of Ontario, the Leaders of the Opposition, and the Federation of Northern Ontario
Municipalities.

615 Hardy Street North Bay, ON P1B 852 Tel: (705) 478-7672
Email: fonom.info@gmail.com  Website: www.fonom.org






Comprehensive Social and Economic Prosperity Review

WHEREAS current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are undermining Ontario’s
economic prosperity and quality of life

WHEREAS nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for services in areas of
provincial responsibility, and expenditures are outpacing provincial contributions by
nearly $4 billion a year

WHEREAS municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not grow with the economy
or inflation

WHEREAS unprecedented population and housing growth will require significant
investments in municipal infrastructure

WHEREAS municipalities are being asked to take on complex health and social
challenges — like homelessness, supporting asylum seekers and addressing the mental
health and addictions crises

WHEREAS inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy decisions are sharply
constraining municipal fiscal capacity

WHEREAS property taxpayers — including people on fixed incomes and small
businesses — can’t afford to subsidize income re-distribution programs for those most
in need

WHEREAS the province can and should invest more in the prosperity of communities

WHEREAS municipalities and the provincial government have a strong history of
collaboration

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the ____ Municipality asks the
Province of Ontario to commit to undertaking with the Association of Municipalities of
Ontario a comprehensive social and economic prosperity review to promote the
stability and sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion be sent to the Premier of Ontario, Minister
of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Minister of Finance, the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario, the Leaders of the Opposition, and the Federation of
Northern Ontario Municipalities.

premier@ontario.ca; ministermah@ontario.ca; minister.fin@ontario.ca; amo@amo.on.ca; MStiles-
QP@ndp.on.ca; info@bonnieforleader.ca; leader@gpo.ca; fonom.info@gmail.com







From the Office of the Clerk
The Corporation of the County of Prince Edward

The County T:613.476.2148 x 1021 ' F: 613.476.5727

PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY & ONTARIO clerks@pecounty.on.ca | www.thecounty.ca

January 22, 2024

Please be advised that during the regular Council meeting of January 16, 2024 the
following motion regarding support for the Province to expand the life span of fire
apparatus, specifically pertaining to the replacement of fire trucks due to insurance
requirements was carried:

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-46

DATE: January 16, 2024
MOVED BY: Councillor Nieman
SECONDED BY: Councillor Branderhorst

WHEREAS By-Law 3256-2013, being a By-Law to Establish, Maintain, and Operate
a Fire Department established service level standards for the Corporation of the
County of Prince Edward Fire Department;

AND WHEREAS apparatus and equipment are directly tied to the delivery of fire
protection services authorized by Council in By-Law 3256-2013, and a safe, reliable
and diverse fleet is required to serve operational needs;

AND WHEREAS fire Apparatus is governed by industry best practices, the
application of law and recognized industry partners, including the Ontario Fire
Service Section 21 Guidance Notes, National Fire Protection Association Standards,
The Occupational Health and Safety Act, and Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS);

AND WHEREAS Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS) is a provider of data, underwriting,
risk management and legal/regulatory services focusing on community fire-
protection and fire prevention systems in Canada, establishing apparatus
replacement schedules based on safety and risk mitigation practices;

AND WHEREAS on November 16, 2023, Council, received report FD-06-2023
regarding asset Management - Fire Apparatus Fleet Report and noted the budgetary
pressures of meeting FUS replacement schedules;

AND WHEREAS no provincial funding is available for new fire trucks, yet, small and
rural municipalities must meet the same standards set by FUS as larger
municipalities for fire equipment, including additional pressure to move fire trucks out
when they reach a specific age, even though they can still meet the safety
regulations;



@ From the Office of the Clerk

The Corporation of the County of Prince Edward

The County T:613.476.2148 x 1021 | F: 613.476.5727

PRINCE ECWARD COUMTY » ONTARID cferks@pecounty.on.ca | www.thecounty.ca

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of Prince
Edward County direct the Mayor to draft a letter to MPP Minister Todd Smith
requesting a meeting to discuss the life span of fire apparatus, specifically pertaining
to the replacement of fire trucks due to insurance requirements; and

THAT the Mayor draft a letter to FUS requesting the creation of a new community
fire-protection and fire prevention insurance system that does not put all
municipalities under the same umbrella, with distinct categories for rural and urban
municipalities;

THAT this resolution be sent to Premier Doug Ford, the Honourable David Piccini,
Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development, Paul Calandra,
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing requesting a response on this matter
within 30 days of receipt; and

THAT this resolution be shared with all 444 municipalities in Ontario, The Federation
of Canadian Municipalities (FCM}, The Association of Municipalities Ontario (AMO),
and The Eastern Ontario Wardens’ Caucus (EOWC).

CARRIED
Yours truly,
Catalina Blumenberg, CLERK

cc: Mayor Steve Ferguson, Councillor Nieman, Councillor Branderhorst, Marcia Wallace,
CAO and Fire Chief Chad Brown



Township of
NIPISSING TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
L'lft the walf it sfhoufd be” :«%ﬁ?”% RESOLUTION

DATE: February 20, 2024

NUMBER: R2024-

Moved by

Seconded by

That the statement of accounts dated:
February 3, 6, 13, 15, and 16 2024;

Totaling $126,099.11 be approved.

For Against

PIPER
BUTLER
FOOTE
KIRKEY
YEMM

Carried

Mayor: TOM PIPER



e

Tm::msﬁ ip of

I TOWNSHIP OF NIPISSING
NIPISSING
“Life the way it should be” ;‘%}ﬁg RESOLUTION
DATE: February 20, 2024

NUMBER: R2024-

Moved by:

Seconded by:

That this part of our meeting will be closed to the public as authorized by
Section 239(2)(a) and (e) of the Municipal Act, 2001, c. 25, for consideration
of the following subject matter:

(a) the security of the property of the municipality or local board;

Council to review information regarding an investigation into a complaint of land
uses not compatible with current zoning.

(e) Litigation or potential litigation, affecting the municipality.

Council to review a Notice of Action received.

Time: p.m.
For Against

PIPER
BUTLER
FOOTE
KIRKEY
YEMM
Carried

Mayor: TOM PIPER



